T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee

Date: THURSDAY, 19
NOVEMBER 2009

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5
CIVIC CENTRE,
HIGH STREET,
UXBRIDGE
uUB8 1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and

Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery, (Chairman)

Alan Kauffman, (Vice-Chairman)
Anita MacDonald

Michael Markham

Carol Melvin

John Oswell

David Payne

Published: Wednesday 11 November 2009

Contact: Gillian Brice
Tel: 01895 250693

Fax: 01895 277373
gbrice@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://lbh-modgov:9071/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=116&Year=2009

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

R

ﬁi"
4

=

(—L“” -

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



Useful information

4
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at w e
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, \‘3‘* A
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a ‘;étu j
short walk away. Limited parking is available at V/
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and MZE

how to book a parking space, please contact

R i
Democratic Services Sl N i \Fg
opping % i
Chimes
Cemr Shopping
)

Please enter from the Council’s main reception ‘ P O
where you will be directed to the Committee ‘(“\% ]
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for £ park
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact . . ..# M, :
us for further information. — Rt

Muzraring
rar park

Please switch off any mobile telephones and
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed,
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

Representatives of Conservation Area Advisory

Panels are also members of the Committees and
they advise on applications in their conservation
area. They do not vote at Committee meetings

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-
1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3  To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 6 October (attached) & 27
October 2009 (to follow)

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

5  To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in public
and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The

name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or
land concerned.

Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Royal Quay, Harefield; | Residential development of 95 9-48
Coppemill Lock, Park residential units in 8 buildings of
Lane, Harefield two to four storeys, with decked
and surface car parking for
43159/APP/2009/711 apartments and existing offices,

associated landscaping, access
alterations and footbridge across
canal basin.

Recommendation : Refusal

Non Major Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
7 | Yeading Brook Cavendish | Shared use cycle/footbridge over 49 - 64

between Torcross ; Yeading Brook (River Crane), as
Road & Whity Road, part of the proposed cycle track
Ruislip between Whitby Road and

Queens Walk, Ruislip
66331/APP/2009/1968

Recommendation : Approval




8 | Land rear of 114, 116 | Eastcote & | Single storey detached two- 65 - 82
& 118 Abbotsbury East bedroom dwelling with associated
Gardens, Ruislip; parking and new vehicular
Eastcote crossover, involving demolition of
an existing garage.
66232/APP/2009/1711
Recommendation : Approval
9 | Land at rear and Eastcote & | Two storey, detached four- 83-118
froming part of 63, 65 | East bedroom dwelling with habitable
and 67 Lowlands Ruislip; roofspace with associated parking
Road, and new vehicular crossover.
Eastcote
Recommendation : Approval
56032/APP/2009/967
10| 33 Parkfield Road, Ickenham; | Single storey brick outbuilding to 119 -
Ickenham rear for use as shed 130
40891/APP/2009/1338 Recommendation : Approval
11| 126-128 High Street, | West Part change of use of Nos. 126- 131 -
Ruislip Ruislip; 128 from Class A2 (Financial and 140
Professional Services) to Class D2
3874/APP/2009/1837 (Assembly and Leisure) for use as
a bingo hall (licensed under the
Gaming Act) and alteration to front
of No. 128.
Recommendation : Refusal
Non Major Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
12| 290 West End Road, Manor; Change of use from Class A1 141 -
Ruislip (shops) to Class A3 (Restaurants 150
and Cafes).
5677/APP/2009/1971
Recommendation : Approval
13| 20 Chestnut Avenue, Northwood | Installation of 1 internally 151 -
Northwood ; iluminated fascia sign. 156
3401/ADV/2009/61 Recommendation : Approval
14| 21 Hillside Road, Northwood | Single storey front infill extension 157 -
Northwood Hills; and loft conversion, involving 164
conversion of garage to habitable
19722/APP/2009/1861 use.

Recommendation : Refusal




15| 315 West End Road, South Provision of 1.9m high close 165 -
Ruislip Ruislip; boarded timber fencing along the 172
Masson Avenue and West End
61905/APP/2008/3233 Road boundaries, with new access
gates and visibility splays Masson
Avenue (Part Retrospective
Application).
Recommendation : Approval
16| 80 High Street, West Change of use from Class A1 173 -
Ruislip Ruislip; retail to gaming arcade (Sui 182
Generis) (Dual planning
34237/APP/2009/652 application with ref:
3862/APP/2009/653.
Recommendation : Refusal
17| 70 High Street, West Change of use from gaming 183 -
Ruislip Ruislip; arcade (Sui Generis) to Class A1 192
retail (Dual planning application
3862/APP/2009/653 with ref: 34237/APP/2009/652).

Recommendation : Approval

18
19

Any Items Transferred from Part 1

Any Other Business in Part 2

Plans for North Planning Committee




Agenda ltem 3

Minutes &gp
NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE s > X &
f»-:,;ﬂ’r
6™ OCTOBER 2009 o
| N _ HILLINGDON
Meeting held at the Civic Centre, Uxbridge LONDON

Come into effect on: Immediately

Members Present:
Councillors Allan Kauffman, John Hensley, Janet Duncan, Michael Markham,
Carol Melvin, John Oswell and David Payne

Advisory Members / Co-optee Members present:

Ms Lesley Crowcroft -

Eastcote Residents Association and Eastcote Village Conservation Area
Advisory Panel.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies had been received from Councillor Eddie Lavery with Councillor John
Hensley substituting and Councillor Anita MacDonald with Councillor Janet

Duncan substituting

Officers Present:
Nigel Bryce, Meg Hirani, Manmohan Ranger, Sarah White and Charles Francis

Declarations of Interest

Councillor Markham declared a personal interest in Item 12 and left the room for
this Item.

Councillor Melvin declared a personal interest in Iltem 13 and left the room for
this Item.

Councillor Payne declared a personal interest in ltems 7 and 9 and left the room
for these Items.

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

It was agreed that all items of business would be considered in public except
item 15 which was considered in private.

Consideration of Reports:

Reports were considered as set out below:

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

PagEage 1 -



SOUTHBOURNE DAY CENTRE, 161 ELLIOTT AVENUE,
RUISLIP

Erection of a two storey building to provide 23 one and
two-bedroom apartments, together with associated
parking, involving the demolition of existing day centre
building (Outline application).

66033/APP/2009/1060

The officer in his presentation advised members that amended
information had been circulated as there had been some
amendments made since the report had been published.

In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative
of the petition received objecting to the proposal addressed the
meeting. The agent was not present at the meeting.

A Ward Councillor addressed the meeting in support of the
petitioners and a number of issues were raised. These included
the bulk and size of the proposed development and the amount
private amenity space. Concerns were raised in relation to
access/egress and traffic congestion given the close proximity
of a Doctors Surgery and Dance School to the proposed
development. Further concerns were raised about the lack of
comments from Thames Water in relation to drainage and
sewage.

The Ward Councillor also referred to a questionnaire which had
been circulated to local residents (and then collected an hour
later). It was reported the questionnaire had indicated the
majority of respondents were opposed to the development and
66 letters of objection had been received.

The Committee also raised concerns about the historic
community use of the site. The Committee requested further
information on alternative community uses and enquired
whether any attempts had been made by the applicants to
secure a community use for the site.

Resolved — That the application be Deferred - to enable
more information to be submitted by the applicant on
alternative community uses that could be provided for on
site and on any attempts that have been made by the
applicants to secure a community use for the site.

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

PdRge 2 -




LAND AT REAR AND FORMING PART OF 63, 65 AND 67
LOWLANDS ROAD, EASTCOTE

Two storey, detached four-bedroom dwelling with
habitable roofspace with associated parking and new
vehicular crossover

56032/APP/2009/967

The officer in his presentation advised members that amended
information had been circulated and there had been a further
letter received in objection to the proposal on the grounds of
loss of light to the garden, over dominant design, the position of
the property not being sited 1 metre from the boundary of 63,
65 and 67 Lowlands Road and the distance of the dwelling
from the adjoining gardens not being 15 metres.

With the agreement of the Chairman, a Ward Councillor
addressed the meeting in support of the petitioners objecting to
the proposal (before the petitioner spoke). The original
proposal was for two, 5 bedroom houses which had now been
revised to a single 4 bedroom house. The proposal has a poor
layout and appearance and will not harmonise with the area.

In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative
of the petition received objecting to the proposal addressed the
meeting. The agent was not present at the meeting.

Members raised a number of concerns including the size and
bulk of the development, the difficulty in comparing its height to
adjacent dwellings from the available plans and the size of the
crossover. A Member also highlighted that part of the red line
site was not in the applicant's ownership. In response, the
Legal Officer explained that anyone can put in an application
for planning permission provided the correct notification
(service of notice) is undertaken in accordance with the
requirements of the General Development Procedure Order
1995. Officers checked and confirmed that the correct part of
the application form had been completed.

A member suggested that as there were a number of concerns
raised that the application be deferred for a site visit.

It was moved and seconded that the application be deferred for
a site visit and for further plans to be produced showing the
height of the proposed building in the context of existing
buildings and the size of the cross over to be revised. On
being put to the vote deferment was agreed.

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

PagEage 3 -




Resolved — That the application be deferred to enable a
site visit to take place and also for officer’s to produce
further plans showing the height of the proposed building
in the context of existing buildings and the size of the
crossover to be revised.

37 FRITHWOOD AVENUE, NORTHWOOD

Two storey building comprising of 5 two-bedroom flats
with associated parking in basement and habitable
roofspace, involving demolition of the existing house
(Outline application for approval of access, appearance,
layout and scale).

29009/APP/2009/1182

In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative
of the petition received objecting to the proposal addressed the
meeting. The agent was not present at the meeting.

A Ward Councillor addressed the meeting in support of the
petitioners objecting to the proposal. The current proposal is
only slightly modified from the previous application. The
proposal has a poor layout and appearance and will cause
significant overlooking of adjacent properties.

Members raised a number of issues including vehicular
access/egress to the site, the difficulty in discerning the levels
of the proposed site from the available plans and the degree of
overlooking created by a sloped application site.

Members also referred to the ground floor and first floor plans
and the amount of sunlight available to the study and bedroom
2. Officers confirmed that there would be sunlight issues to
these rooms and room lights would need to be on at all times,
which would be contrary to sustainable development plans.

The Committee asked for an additional condition to be added
to include the impact of the front projection of the development
on the rooms (identified above) within the development

In answer to an issue raised in relation to fenestration,
members were informed that the application meets all the
Council's guidelines and complies with 45° line

Resolved — That the application be refused for the reasons
set out in the officers report and adding the condition for
refusal as detailed below:

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

Pdiroes 4 -




The applicant has failed to demonstrate in terms of a
daylight/sunlight assessment that the study rooms in plots
1 and 3 and 2" bedrooms in plots 2 and 4 will be provided
with appropriate levels of sunlight/daylight to service
these rooms. In addition, the proposed development by
reason of its design and layout would fail to provide
adequate outlook to these rooms. As such, the
development would provide an inadequate living
environment for future occupiers, contrary to London Plan
Policy 4.A3, Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Documents HDAS: Residential Layouts.

TEXACO, HIGH ROAD, EASTCOTE
Retention of internally illuminated free-standing totem sign
3689/APP/2009/40

In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative
of the Eastcote Conservation Panel objecting to the proposal
addressed the meeting as the application was located in a
Conservation Area.

It was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was
agreed that the application be Refused for the reasons set out
in the report.

Resolved — That the application be Refused for the
reasons set out in the officer’s report

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

10.

35 BUSHEY ROAD, ICKENHAM

Single storey side/rear extension including reduction in
height of roof and 1 rear and 1 side rooflight (Part
retrospective application)

48449/AAAPP/A2009/793

It was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was
agreed that the application be Approved subject to the
conditions set out in the report.

Resolved — That the application be Approved subject to
the conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s
report and to request the Enforcement Team monitor the
work

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

PagE@ge 5 -




11.

42 LAWRENCE DRIVE, ICKENHAM
Single storey rear extension with roof lantern
23057/APP/2009/1053

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and
on being put to the vote was agreed.

To amend Condition 4 to read as follows:

‘The roof area of the extension hereby permitted shall not be
used as a balcony, roof garden or similar amenity area’.

Resolved - That the application be Approved subject to the
conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s report
and addendum sheet circulated at the meeting and change
to condition 4 as detailed above.

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

12.

76 PARK WAY & 59-61 WINDMILL HILL

Change of use of 61 Windmill Hill and 76 Park Way from
Class A1 (Retail) to Class A3 (Restaurants and Cafes), with
new shopfronts and alterations to existing shopfront at 59
Windmill Hill

16366/APP/2009/1873

Members raised a concern about food preparation and the
impact this might have on air quality. Officers advised that as
no new cooking facilities were proposed the extended
restaurant would utilise the existing flue and ventilation
equipment serving the existing restaurant.

The recommendation for Approval was moved, seconded and
on being put to the vote was agreed subject to the conditions in
the report and addendum sheet and as amended:

To the drawing numbers, replace drawing numbers. 04 and 06
with 04 Revised. A and 06 Revised. A and add Drawing.
Number. 07 received 2" October 2009.

To add additional condition 7:

'Prior to the commencement of works on site, full details of the
provision to be made for the secure and covered storage of
refuse and recycling shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be
provided on site prior to the premises being brought into use
and thereafter maintained.

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

PdgROs © -




To add additional informative (28) Food hygiene

Add additional informative 'You are advised that this permission
only allows the change of use of the premises to Class A3
restaurant use. Use which includes an A5 takeaway use would
require further permission.’

Resolved - That the application be Approved, subject to
the conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s
report and addendum sheet circulated at the meeting.

13.

41 GREEN LANE, NORTHWOOD
12112/APP/2009/1591

Change of use of basement and ground floor from Class
A1 Retail to Class A3/A4 Restaurants/Cafes and Drinking
Establishments, to include new door and ventilation duct
to rear

A Ward Councillor addressed the meeting and raised a number
of issues in relation to the report including the widespread
support from all the Ward Councillors for the application, the
vacancy rates on the High Street and the comments received
from various consultation bodies.

Members discussed the historic use of the site and the vacancy
rates on the High Street. Officers advised that the vacancy rate
information contained in the report was based on survey data
from July 2009 and it would be unlikely that updated
information would change the officer recommendation.
Members agreed that vacant shop premises are detrimental
and would be contrary to Hillingdon’s policies.

It was noted that the application was very similar to agenda
ltem 12 and a Member suggested that approving this
application would be in the best interests of the local
community.

Resolved — That the Recommendation be overturned and
application Approved and for Conditions to be retuned and
agreed by committee.

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

PagEdge 7 -




14.

PAUL STRIKLAND CANCER CENTRE. MOUNT VERNON
HOSPITAL

Extension of existing fencing and new access gate
63630/APP/2009/1291

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and
on being put to the vote was agreed.

Resolved — That the application be Approved, subject to
the conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s
report.

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

15.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and
on being put to the vote was agreed.

Resolved -

1. That enforcement action as recommended in the
officer’s report was agreed.

2. That the decision and the reasons for it outlined in
this report into the public domain, solely for the
purposes of issuing the formal enforcement notice
to the individual concerned.

The meeting closed at 9.35 p.m.

Action By:

James Rodger
Meg Hirani

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Charles Francis on 01895 556454. Circulation of these
minutes are to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

North Planning Committee — Minutes - 6 October 2009

PdRgsS 8 -




Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address ROYAL QUAY, COPPERMILL LOCK PARK LANE HAREFIELD

Development: Residential development of 95 residential units in 8 buildings of two to four
storeys, with decked and surface car parking for apartments and existing
offices, associated landscaping, access alterations and footbridge across
canal basin.

LBH Ref Nos: 43159/APP/2009/711

Drawing Nos: Site Location Plan: 7002/001#
Site Survey: 7002 0024
Landscape Plan: 7002 005A
Sun Study: 7002 00¢€
Energy Statement with job number A053175 by WYG Engineering date
24th March 2009
Design and Access Statement by rg+p dated April 200¢
Transport Assessment by WYG Environment Planning Transport with jok
number A018830 dated 27 January 2009
Schedule of Trees by Simon JOnes Associates dated January 200¢
Summary of Ground Contamination Desk Study Assessment by
Environmental Consultancy with issue number V1 dated Feb 04
Archaeology Assessment by Glasgow University Archaeological Researct
Division
Ecological Scoping Survey by WYG Environment with job number E004200
1 dated February 2009
Flood Risk Assessment by WYG Engineering with job number A01883(
dated January 2009
Block C Ground Floor Plan: 7002 017E
Block C First Floor Plan: 7002 018E
Block C Second Floor Plan: 7002 019E
Block F First Floor Plan: 7002 031E
Block F Second Floor Plan: 7002 032E
Block F Elevations: 7002 054E
Landscaping Plan - detail: 7002 069/
Site Plan: 7002 003C
Site Ground Floor Plan: 7002 040C
Site First Floor Plan: 7002 041C
Site Lower Ground Floor Plan: 7002 039LC
Site Second Floor Plan: 7002 042C
Site Fourth Floor Plan: 7002 044LC
Site Elevation 5 & 6: 7002 068E
Site Elevations 3 & 4:7002 064E
Site Elevations 1 & 2:7002 063E
Site Third Floor Plan: 7002 043C
Block A Ground Floor Plan: 7002 007C
Block A First Floor Plan: 7002 008C
Block A Second Floor Plan: 7002 009C
Block B Elevations 1: 7002 049C
Block D Second Floor Plan: 7002 023C
Block D Ground Floor Plan: 7002 021C

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



Block B Third Floor Plan: 7002 014C
Block B Second Floor Plan: 7002 013C
Block B Elevations 2: 7002 050C

Block E Elevations: 7002 053C

Block F Ground Floor Plan: 7002 030C
Block D Elevations: 7002 052C

Block E Second Floor Plan: 7002 028C
Block E First Floor Plan: 7002 027C
Block E Ground Floor Plan: 7002 026C
Block D First Floor Plan: 7002 022C
Block H Second Floor Plan: 7002 061C
Block H Elevations: 7002 062C

Block H First Floor Plan: 7002 060E
Block H Ground Floor Plan: 7002 059C
Block G Elevations: 7002 058C

Block G Second Floor Plan: 7002 057C
Block G First Floor Plan: 7002 056C
Block G Ground Floor: 7002 055C
Block A Elevations: 7002 048C

Block B First Floor Plan: 7002 012C
Block B Ground Floor Plan: 7002 011C
Site Section A-A: 7002 035E

Site Section B-B: 7002 037B

Site Section C-C: 7002 038B

Site Section DD: 7002 045C

Date Plans Received: 03/04/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/04/2009
Date Application Valid: 03/04/2009 30/07/2009

05/10/2009
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks full planning permission for the redevelopment of part of the site for
95 residential units within eight separate 2 to 4 storey buildings at Royal Quay in Harefield.
The units comprise 32 x 1 bedroom units and 63 x 2 bedroom units. A total of 146
residential parking spaces are provided within the application site with 146 parking spaces
for commercial use also shown on the plans. The main vehicle access to the residential
development is via Park Lane, with secondary access to Summerhouse Lane for both
existing commercial building occupiers and the proposed residential occupiers.

The land is designated an Industrial and Business Area (IBA) site within the adopted
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007. It is also within a sensitive
location, being within a Conservation Area, with two listed building located on-site, within
Colne Valley Park and adjacent to the Grand Union Canal. The site is also subject to
flooding and contains a nature conservation area. The site is also relatively isolated,
having a very low Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1a.

A number of objections to the proposed development have been raised. The key areas of
concern includes; the bulk and siting of the proposed buildings with resulting impacts on
the Conservation Area and the listed buildings, proposed density, poor level of residential
amenity for future occupiers, an inadequate transport assessment and inadequate

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



facilities for people with disabilities.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application results in an over development and cramped form of development having
regard to its density, site layout, bulk, scale and design of the buildings. This will be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the Coppermill Lock conservation area,
the Grand Union Canal and surrounding street scene. In this regard the development is
contrary to Policies BE4, BE13, BE19, BE32 and PR16 of the Hillingdon's Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007, the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts and Policies 3A.3 and 4B.1 and Table 3A.2 of the
London Plan February 2008.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, given its siting and layout, would detrimentally affect the setting of the
adjacent listed building, the Manor House. In this regard the development is contrary to
Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The development fails to achieve a satisfactory housing mix and balanced community on
the site by reason of the lack of any larger (3 or more bedroom) units on the site in order
to meet local needs and as such would be contrary to Policies H4 and H5 of Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and Policy 3A.5 of the London
Plan 2008.

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application site fails to protect the privacy of the future occupiers of the development.
The habitable room windows in the majority of the flats are overlooked by each other and
by the existing office building on the site resulting in lack of privacy for future occupiers of
the units. In this regard, the proposal is contrary to Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon's Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to make adequate provision of appropriately designed play space to
meet the needs of children arising from the development and is thus contrary to Policies
BE20, BE21, BE24 and R1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
September 2007 and Policy 3D.13 of the London Plan.

6 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to provide adequate provision for waste and recycling including
the location of some provision outside of the recommended collection distances from the
highway. The proposal is thus contrary to Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

7 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The applicant has failed to provide a contribution towards the improvement of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development,

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



including contributions for education, health, community facilities, libraries, construction
training and improvements to the canal. The scheme therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and the
London Borough of Hillingdon's Supplementary Planning Document on Planning
Obligations.

8 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The application has failed to demonstrate that traffic associated with the development can
be adequately accommodated on the adjoining highway network. As such development
would be prejudicial to the free flow of traffic and detrimental to the safety of the highway
users contrary to Policy AM7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies September 2007.

9 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposals do not include high quality landscaping and tree planting strategy to
integrate the development with the sensitive surroundings of the site. This is considered to
be to the detriment of both the character and appearance of the area, the Grand Union
Canal and the Coppermill Lock Conservation Area. The development is therefore
considered contrary to Policies BE32, BE38 and PR16 of the London Borough of
Hillingdon's Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

10 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal fails to provide adequate facilities for people with disabilities and fail to
incorporate Lifetime Home Standards and Wheelchair Home Standard Units within the
development. The proposal therefore would fail to comply with London Plan Policy 3A.5
and the Council's Supplementary Planning Documents 'Accessible Hillingdon' and
'Residential Layouts'.

11 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The internal access road is of inadequate width and the lack of continuous pedestrian
footways results in conditions detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety contrary to
policy AM7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September
2007.

12 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, at the time of determination, whilst showing the provision of
affordable housing on the site, has failed to secure the provision of such housing in the
form of a legal agreement or other device. In the absence of such provision having been
secured, the proposed development conflicts with Policies 3A.9, 3A.10 and 3.11 of the
London Plan (February 2008) and the Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary
Planning Document (July 2008).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.

OoL9
OoL11
EC1

EC2
EC3

EC5
BE3

BE4

BE10
BE13
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22
BE23
BE24

BE25
BE31
BE32

BE33
BE36
BE38

OE1

OES
OE7

OES8
OE10

H4
H5
H8
R1

R10

R17

Areas of Environmental Opportunity - condition and use of open lanc
Green Chains

Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation
importance and nature reserves

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance

Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas
Facilities for the recreational use of the canal

Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union
Canal

Proposals for the establishment of residential moorings

Proposals for high buildings/structures in identified sensitive areas
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Phasing of development in areas of potential flooding or inadequate
sewerage capacity

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Change of use from non-residential to residential

Development proposals in or near areas deficient in recreational
open space

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreatior

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



leisure and community facilities

LE1 Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development

LE2 Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas

LE3 Provision of small units in designated Industrial and Business Areas

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AMG6 Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access
Roads by through traffic

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM18 Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities
for canal borne freight

PR16 Coppermill, Harefield

HDAS Residential Layouts

Planning Obligations
Accessible Hillingdon

LPP The London Plan (February 2008).
PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development
PPS3 Housing

PPS13 Transport

PPG15 Historic Environment

PPS25 Development & Flood Risk

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The subject site is approximately 1.6 hectares with an eastern boundary to Summerhouse
Lane, a southern boundary with Park Lane and a western boundary to the Grand Union
Canal at Coppermill Lock, Harefield. The central part of the site is proposed to be
developed for housing which has an area of approximately 0.95ha, including internal
driveway access to Park Lane and Summerhouse Lane.

The land is a former industrial site within the Black Jacks & Coppermill Lock Conservation
Area. The existing buildings on the site include the Bridge House, Manor House, the
Watermill and the Long Room. Manor House and the Watermill are Grade Il listed buildings.
Whilst the Long Room is not listed, it is still a prominent traditional canal related building
important to the character of the Conservation Area. The Bridge House was constructed in
1993. The land around these buildings is currently used for parking, landscaping and
internal driveways.

The Grand Union Canal extends into the property from the north creating a quay in the
centre of the site and peninsula of land between the quay and the Canal to the west. The
quay previously provided barge access to the heart of the site and the sluice gates

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



(adjacent to The Watermill) provide white water canoeing on this stretch of the canal.

An embankment extends along part of the site's eastern boundary with Summerhouse
Lane. Consequently the proposed housing development would be above a two storey
decked parking area and appear predominately as two storey buildings along
Summerhouse lane. Further to the east of this boundary, the landscape continues to rise to
2 storey residential houses on Barrington Drive. Other uses in the vicinity are a 3 storey
office buildings on the opposite side of Park Lane, Coy Carp Public House to the south-
west and Lock Keepers Cottage on the opposite side of the Canal to the north-west.

Adjacent to the southern boundary, there is a signalised on-way bridge over the Grand
Union Canal which links Park Lane to Coppermill Lane. The primary vehicle access to the
site is via an existing driveway off Park Lane. A secondary access would be the existing
driveway off Summerhouse Lane to the northern end of the site.

The site is 1200 metres to the west of the Harefield Town Centre. The closest bus route is
the U9, which links Belfry Avenue in Harefield which is 300 metres to the south of the site,
to Uxbridge Station. The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1 (on a
scale where 6 is high and 1 is low).

3.2 Proposed Scheme
Initially, an application was received for a 98 residential units within eight separate blocks.

A revised scheme for the erection of 97 residential units within eight separate blocks
ranging in height from 2 to 4 storeys was submitted as an amendment to the originally
submitted scheme.

The applicant submitted further revision to the scheme and now seeks a full planning
permission for 95 residential units. Residential Blocks G and H are located above two
levels of a decked car park and fronts Summerhouse Lane. Blocks A, B and C surround
the decked car park and are located in the eastern section of the site. Blocks E, D and F
are located on the peninsula of land between the quay and the Canal.

The units comprise 32 x 1 bedroom units and 63 x 2 bedroom units. The applicant has
indicated 146 residential parking spaces are proposed with 146 spaces allocated for
commercial use. The main vehicle access to the residential development would be via
Park Lane, with a secondary access from Summerhouse Lane. The development is
described further below.

THE EASTERN SITE

BLOCK A

Block A is an L-shaped residential flat building and is located on the eastern side of Manor
House and adjacent to Summerhouse Lane and is a part two and part three storey building.
Block A is approximately 12m away from the rear wall of Manor House and 8m on the
return side of Manor House and contains 6x1 bedroom and 3x2 bedroom flats. All of the
flats within this Block are provided with a balcony and would also have access to the
decked amenity area.

BLOCK B
This residential building is located on the eastern side of the application site and fronts the
internal access way and The Watermill. Block B is 3 and 4 storeys in height and comprises

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



18x2 bedroom flats of all which have 4.3sq.m sized balconies. Block B also benefits from
access to the decked amenity area.

BLOCK C

Block C is located adjacent to Block B and the Long Room. This block is 3 storeys in
height and comprises 3x1 bedroom and 6x2 bedroom flats. These flats all have balcony
access and access to the communal decked amenity area.

BLOCK G

Block G is affordable flats which comprise 12x2 bedroom flats. Each of the flats would
have access to private amenity space in a form of a balcony and would have access to the
communal decked amenity space. Block G consists of 3 storeys of residential above two
levels of decked car parking.

BLOCKH

Block H is also affordable flats and comprises 6x1 bedroom and 6x2 bedroom flats. All of
the flats benefit from private balconies. Block H consists of 3 storeys of residential above
two levels of decked car parking. Both Blocks G and H address Summerhouse Lane and
parts of the building would appear as two storeys when viewed from the highway.

The decked parking would provide 209 spaces over two levels for both commercial and
residential and a further 9 residential parking spaces are proposed adjacent to Manor
House.

THE PENINSULA SITE

BLOCKE,DANDF

These residential buildings are sited between the Grand Union Canal and the canal basin
(the Quay). Block E is closest to The Watermill (approximately 14m) and Block D is north
of Block E, opposite to the Long Room and Block C. Blocks E and D contain 12 flats each
comprising 6x1 bedroom and 6x2 bedroom units each. These two blocks are three storeys
in height.

Block F is located furthest north of the site and is located opposite to the Long Room and
Lock Keepers Lodge on the opposite site of the Canal. This block steps up from two
storeys at the northern end to three storeys towards the south. Block F consists of 11 flats,
comprising 5x1 bedroom and 6x2 bedroom units.

13 car parking spaces are provided in the forecourt to Blocks E and D. Therefore, it would
seem that some of the residents would be required to park in the decked car parking area
in between the Blocks A, B, C, G and H.

REMAINING OFFICE BUILDINGS

There are no works proposed to the office buildings. The applicant has indicated a
provision of 85 parking spaces for the office occupants to be provided within the proposed
decked car park (basement level) and 61 existing car parking spaces within the site to be
retained.

The applicant has also submitted a series of technical papers that assess the impact of
the proposal. Some key conclusions from these papers are summarised below:

SUMMARY OF CASE FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
The statement concludes there is large supply and availability of office floor space relative
to expected take up over the whole North West M25 sector. An area that covers Outer

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



London and the Home Counties between the M4 and M1 motorways, including Heathrow,
Slough, Maidenhead, Uxbridge, Watford, Rickmansworth, Hemel Hempstead and St
Albans.

GROUND CONTAMINATION

The site was previously used as a copper mill (1783-1863), a paper mill (1870-1879),
asbestos manufacturing (1882-1931), and then rubber manufacturing (1935-1980s). The
overall environmental risk at this site associated with ground contamination is of a
Moderate to High order. Detailed site investigation is needed and a remediation strategy is
required to be developed.

TRANSPORT ASSESSMENT

The report concludes that the site has adequate cycle and pedestrian routes and that traffic
generated by the proposed development will not have a material impact on the local road
network. The report also identified that there would be no improvements to Public
Transport Accessibility Levels (PTAL) by increasing the frequency of the service or
extending the bus service to the site.

FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT

The site to the east of the canal basin falls into Zone 1 and the site west of the basin are
indicated as being within Flood Zone 3a. To mitigate against potential flooding the following
measures will be included throughout the development;

-Defined spill routes across the peninsula.

-Pedestrian egress routes from all units at a level of 43.0m or higher

-Minimum floor level for habitable rooms: 43m

-Emergency vehicle access to most of the site at a level of 43.0 or higher.

-Any enclosed spaces below 43.37m will be restricted to non-sensitive uses e.g. car
parking and any critical facilities e.g. electrical switch gear will be installed above this level.
-Flood resistant construction to be used below a level of 43.37m.

The report concludes that the site is on previously development land and with the mitigation
measures outlined above the development will be safe and will not increase flood risk
elsewhere and will result in a slight decrease in flood risk overall.

ECOLOGIACL SCOPING SURVEY

The report finds that the habitats within the proposed development site have limited
potential to support protected species and makes recommendations to limit any significant
effect of any protected species that may be using the site.

ENERGY STATEMENT

The Energy Statement demonstrates how the design includes energy efficient and
renewable energy technologies to provide an overall average of 71.11% CO2 reduction per
square metre, of which 66.45% is by low and zero carbon technologies. This is based on a
scheme with integrated energy efficiency measures, i.e. increased building fabric
insulations/air-permeability rates/ energy efficiency lighting, well beyond the average
acceptable values of current building regulations, and incorporating a community heating
with Ground Source Heat Pump system. There would also be a 45kW Archimedes Screw
(micro-Hydropower installation) with an average annual production of 27kW/hour.

ARCHAEOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT

A discovery of an iron arrowhead and bone point during previous construction work on the
site highlights the possibility of pre-historic archaeological features lying sealed beneath
later deposits. Evidence indicates that the site may have been occupied since the 11th
Century, perhaps by successive mills over a period of several hundreds years. Any

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



structural elements of the late Medieval and post-Medieval mill industries that may survive
within the proposed development would be of potential archaeological significance. While
18th and 19th Century development on the site may have compromised -earlier
archaeological features, evaluation would be required to establish this. A mitigation strategy
is recommended, such as a series of trial trenches which would also require a safety plan
due to the contamination potential of the site.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

43159/APP/2005/191 Royal Quay, Coppermill Lock Park Lane Harefield

ERECTION OF 3 RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS OF 3 TO 4.5 STOREYS COMPRISING 83
RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS, CAR PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 07-04-2005 Refused Appeal: 22-03-2006 Withdrawn

43159/AR/99/1504 Royal Quay, Coppermill Lock Park Lane Harefield

ERECTION OF CLASS B1 OFFICES AND DECKED CAR PARK (AMENDED PHASE Il OF
DEVELOPMENT PARTIALLY IMPLEMENTED)

Decision: 03-03-2004 Approved

43159/H/89/2471 Coppermill Lock Park Lane Harefield

Erection of 2-3 storey buildings for use as offices and workshops; a decked car park and a
boathouse facility; restoration/refurbishment of listed buildings and other buildings in the
Conservation Area for office and workshop use; Access improvements including widening of
Summerhouse Lane

Decision: 29-03-1993  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

In 1993 application 89/2471 for the erection of 2,3 and 4 storey buildings for uses as offices
and studio/workshops with a 4 storey decked car park comprising 9686sq.m and 342 car
parking spaces was approved following the completion of a S106 agreement. The
approved floor space replicated the pre-existing industrial floor space of the Harefield
Rubber Company. Phase 1 of the scheme included refurbishment and occupation of the
two listed buildings and the Long Room and the erection of a new building (Building A).
Phase 1 has been implemented together with the S106 obligations comprising a
boathouse/mooring; improvement to the access from Park Lane and provision of shuttle
traffic lights on Coppermill Bridge.

In November 2000 the Planning Committee resolved to grant planning permission to
application 99/1504 for 6879sqg.m gross internal B1 office floor and 281 parking spaces,
subject to a S106 agreement. This was in addition to the existing 4 buildings on-site plus
the boathouse. The S106 agreement related to a payment of £9,000 in respect of improved
public transport links, the implementation of a Green Travel Plan and improvements to
narrow boat facilities. The S106 agreement was completed in 2004 and the approval
issued in March 2004.

In January 2005 a Planning application was received for the erection of 3 residential
buildings of 3 to 4.5 storeys comprising 83 residential apartments, car parking and
landscaping. This application was refused by the Planning Committee on 7th April 2005 for

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



the following reasons;

1. The application fails to provide sufficient evidence demonstrating that there is no realistic
prospect of the land being used for industrial and warehousing purposes in the future. In
this regard the development is contrary to Policies LE2 and PR16 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plans.

2. The application is considered to be an overdevelopment of the site having regard to its
density, height, siting, bulk, scale and design of the buildings. This will be detrimental to the
character and appearance of the locality and conservation area. In this regard the
development is contrary to Policies H6, BE4, BE13, BE32, OE1 and PR16 of the adopted
Unitary Development Plan, the Council's Design Guide 'Residential Layouts and House
Design' and Policy 4B.3 of The London Plan.

3. The proposal, given its siting, design and scale, would detrimentally affect the setting of
the adjacent listed building, the Watermill. In this regard the development is contrary to
Policy BE10 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan.

4. The application has failed to demonstrate that the proposal would not impact on the
site's archaeological remains, in particular the potential remains of the sheet copper rolling
mill that was established in 1782 by the Company of Mines Royal. In this regard the
development is contrary to Policy BE3 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan and
Planning Policy Guidance Note 16 'Archaeology and Planning'.

5. As a result of the proposal's density and siting, the application fails to provide adequate
useable private amenity space and recreational public open space including the provision
of satisfactorily located children's play space. In this regard the development is contrary to
Policies BE23, BE38 and R1 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan.

6. The application fails to protect the privacy of the future occupants of the residential units.
The habitable room windows in some units in Block A will be overlooked by the existing
office buildings on the site. In addition, an adequate level of privacy will not be provided to
the ground floor unit habitable room windows which overlook the internal road network. As
a result, these units will need to have their blinds permanently closed, which achieved a
poor level of residential amenity for these dwellings. Furthermore, the relationship of the
ground floor units to the internal driveway is contrary to secure by design objectives. In this
regard the development is contrary to Policies BE23 and BE24 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan and the Supplementary Planning Guidance 'Community Safety by
Design'.

7. The application fails to include an accurate tree survey showing the location, height,
spread and species of all trees. Therefore, there is no evidence that the trees proposed to
be felled will not have a detrimental impact on the landscape setting of the conservation
area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE32 ad BE38 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan.

8. The density of the residential development is considered to be too high and inconsistent
with the public transport accessibility of the site, contrary to Policy 4B.3 of The London
Plan, resulting in an over reliance on the private car by residents.

9. The applicants have failed to demonstrate that traffic associated with the development
can be adequately accommodated on the adjoining highway network. As such the

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



development would be prejudicial to the free flow of traffic and conditions of general
highway safety contrary to the aims of Policy AM7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan.

10.The application fails to provide adequate facilities for cyclists and motorcyclists contrary
to Policy AM9 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan and Annexure 4 of The London
Plan and Council's Parking Policies and Standards 2nd Deposit Draft (December 2001).

11. The application fails to provide adequate facilities for people with disabilities in terms of
parking and ensuring an adequate number of dwellings are designed to accommodate
people with disabilities. This is contrary to Policies H9 and AM15 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan.

12. The proposed development fails to demonstrate either the provision of energy efficient
measures and renewable energy technology or that such measures are not feasible as an
integral part of this development. For this reason, the proposal conflicts with Policies 4A.7
and 4A.9 of the London Plan.

13. The application fails to demonstrate that the development will not be subject to flood
risk or increase flood risks down stream. Furthermore the application fails to demonstrate
that the development will reduce the impact of flooding. The scheme therefore conflicts
with Policies OE7 and OES8 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan and Policies 4B.6 of
The London Plan.

14. The application fails to provide public access to the Grand Union Canal, enhance the
role of the Canal as a wildlife corridor, complement the visual qualities of the Canal or
enhance views to and from the watercourse. Furthermore, the inclusion of building
elements that overhang the watercourse may interfere with the safe operation of the Canal.
The scheme therefore conflicts with Policies BE31 and BE32 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan and Police 4B.6 of The London Plan.

15. The application fails to provide for affordable housing on site. The scheme therefore
conflicts with Policy H11 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan and the Council's
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Affordable Housing.

16. No agreement has been reached with the applicant in respect to contributions towards
the improvement of education facilities, health care facilities, youth leisure and recreational
facilities, open space, canal side improvements, conservation area improvements, and
public transport services and facilities arising from the demands created by the proposed
development. The scheme therefore conflicts with Policies BE4, BE32 and R17 of the
adopted Unitary Development Plan.

The applicant subsequently lodged an appeal, but withdrew it in March 2006.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



PT1.4

PT1.5

PT1.6

PT1.7

PT1.8

PT1.9
PT1.10

PT1.12

PT1.13

PT1.16

PT1.17

PT1.21

PT1.23

PT1.24

PT1.25

PT1.30

To safeguard a network of Green Chains from built development to provide a visu:
amenity and physical break in the built up area and opportunities for recreation an:
corridors for wildlife.

To carry out and promote countryside management projects to improve the
environment and nature conservation value of countryside and open land,
particularly in areas which are degraded or derelict and important corridors along
roads and watercourses.

To safeguard the nature conservation value of Sites of Special Scientific Interest,
Sites of Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation, designated local nature
reserves or other nature reserves, or sites proposed by English Nature or the
Local Authority for such designations.

To promote the conservation, protection and enhancement of the archaeological
heritage of the Borough.

To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to
their special architectural and visual qualities.

To seek to preserve statutory Listed Buildings and buildings on the Local List.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and the
character of the area.

To avoid any unacceptable risk of flooding to new development in areas already
liable to flood, or increased severity of flooding elsewhere.

To seek to ensure the provision of 8000 additional dwellings in the Borough
between 1 January 1987 and 31 December 2001.

To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and
mobility standards.

To seek to ensure the highest acceptable number of new dwellings are provided ir
the form of affordable housing.

To seek publicly accessible recreational open space in association with proposals
for development where appropriate to help reduce deficiencies in recreational opel
space or to ensure that provision does not fall below accepted standards.

To encourage industry and warehousing to located within existing Industrial and
Business Areas and offices and other business uses, shops and public buildings
employing or attracting large numbers of people to located within Town Centres or
other areas identified for such purposes.

To reserve designated Industrial and Business Areas as the preferred locations fol
industry and warehousing.

To encourage the provision of small industrial, warehousing and business units
within designated Industrial and Business Areas.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

PT1.32 To encourage development for uses other than those providing local services to
locate in places which are accessible by public transport.

PT1.35 To accord priority to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes, and to seek to provide a network
or cycle routes through the Borough to promote safer cycling and better conditions
for cyclists.

PT1.38 To seek a reduction in road accident casualties through highway improvements
including traffic calming and the design of new highway schemes.

PT1.39 To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

Part 2 Policies:

oL9 Areas of Environmental Opportunity - condition and use of open land

OoL11 Green Chains

EC1 Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation importance
and nature reserves

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

EC3 Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological
remains

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE25 Modernisation and improvement of industrial and business areas

BE31 Facilities for the recreational use of the canal

BE32 Development proposals adjacent to or affecting the Grand Union Canal

BE33 Proposals for the establishment of residential moorings

BE36 Proposals for high buildings/structures in identified sensitive areas

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

and landscaping in development proposals.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



OE1

OES
OE7
OES8

OE10

H4
H5
H8
R1
R10

R17

LE1
LE2
LE3
AM2

AMG6

AM7
AM8

AM9

AM14
AM15
AM18

PR16
HDAS

LPP
PPS1
PPS3
PPS13
PPG15
PPS25

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measure:

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Phasing of development in areas of potential flooding or inadequate sewerage
capacity

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Change of use from non-residential to residential

Development proposals in or near areas deficient in recreational open space

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Proposals for industry, warehousing and business development
Development in designated Industrial and Business Areas
Provision of small units in designated Industrial and Business Areas

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access Roads by througt
traffic

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Developments adjoining the Grand Union Canal - securing facilities for canal borne
freight

Coppermill, Harefield

Residential Layouts
Planning Obligations
Accessible Hillingdon

The London Plan (February 2008).
Delivering Sustainable Development
Housing

Transport

Historic Environment

Development & Flood Risk

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- 27th May 2009
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 27th May 2009

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The application was advertised under Article 8 of the Town and Country Planning Act (1990) as
major development. A site notice was erected on the site and a public notice was placed in the local
paper on 6th May 2009. Over 270 residents were notified and local resident groups were notified
including: Waterside Mews Residents' Association, Harefield Village Conservation Panel, Harefield
Tenants and Residents Association and the Canal Locks Conservation Panel. On 4th August 2009,
the residents were consulted again on a revised plan. A total of 69 letters of objection have been
received from residents. In addition, 3 petitions against the proposal have been submitted with 57,
310 and 28 signatures.

The latest (2nd set) of revised plans were not subject to re-consultation due to the minor nature of
changes, as it was not likely that the proposal would have raised any issues not already raised.

Issues raised by the objections are summarised below.

Individual objections

1) Out of keeping with the character of the area and the tranquillity of the canal setting

2) Development will bring more traffic and congestion to already busy roads at peak times and the
road network has limited access

3) Land is prone to contamination and flooding

4) Already noise pollution from Denham aerodrome and the development would add more

5) The area should be reserved for wildlife

6) Loss of views over the canal and from the users of the canal

7) Lack of parking for businesses

8) Proposed bollards and granite blocks would block the entrance to The Watermill

9) Congestion over canal bridge as it is only one way

10) Non-residential parking already occurs on Barrington Drive, the proposal will result in overspill
into neighbouring roads

11) Excessive number of residential properties on this plot

12) Concerned at the proposed high density residential development

13) Resulting mix use development on the small site leading to disputes between residents and
business occupiers

14) Summerhouse Lane is very narrow and two cars cannot pass each other

15) Proposed residential block heights will dominate the area which are mainly 2 storey houses

16) Local schools, doctors, and public transport would also be put under strain by extra demands
17) Future residents are not likely to walk to nearby village centre due to the gradient of the road
(Park Lane)

18) Traffic and congestions at the roundabout in Harefield which will have a knock-on effect on the
bus provision

19) Yellow lines should be applied to Summerhouse Lane, entrances to Jacks Lane and Barrington
Drive

20) Impact to Listed Buildings

21) Lack of parking for the proposed residential units

22) No pedestrian access on Summerhouse Lane adjacent to the Long Room and this is already
hazardous to pedestrians

23) Privacy and overlooking into properties along Barrington Drive

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



24) Previous application was refused on density and traffic issues and the proposal is for more
residential and car parking areas

25) Summerhouse Lane is not adopted and maintenance is paid for privately. There would be
additional traffic using Summerhouse Lane which is not an adopted road

26) Manor House would be overshadowed by the development

27) The future residents are likely to have at least 2 cars per household and the number of parking
spaces is not sufficient, the area is a very car dependant place due to the location

28) Affect on the landscape of canal and the setting of the surrounding

29) The proposed development would ruin the nice and quite canal setting where walkers, cyclist
and users of the area would be affected

30) Existing sewer and drainage will not be able to cope with increased residential dwellings

31) Potential for landfill gas

32) The previous application for business office units has not been completed

33) Construction works will go on for two years and there will be disruptions to the existing
operations within the site and construction traffic on local roads

34) Object to QM3 Modular construction method as this method is only effective in areas where
access is not a concern

35) The bell tower should be reinstated

36) 'Ready made accommodation units' to be delivered from the factory to the site by lorry is
unacceptable. The nearby roads cannot cope with lorry movements.

37) Occupants in this location will both see and hear aircraft operations as the site is under the flight
path and therefore an informative should be included in any consent.

38) There is a current lack of doctors surgeries in the area

39) Residential buildings are too close to office buildings

Petitions
57 signatures raising concerns regarding peak hour traffic congestion in the local area and burden
on local services in the village.

310 signatures raising concerns regarding:

- inappropriate intensification

- Out of character with the area

- unacceptable impact on traffic congestion with close proximity to traffic lights and single file bridge
over canal

- excessive demands and pressure on local infrastructure

- damage to and future pressure on protected & priority species of wildlife

- threat to important habitats with proposed removal of trees

28 signatures raising objections to

- traffic, congestions, cars accessing Park Lane from Junction 17 to the M25 and vice versa

- noise and disturbance

- not in keeping with the listed buildings

- Properties along Barrington Drive will suffer loss of visual amenity, views to the canal and
surrounding area.

ENGLISH HERITAGE

The site is situated in an area of considerable archaeological and historic importance. Previous
archaeological work on the application site encountered redeposited worked flint, indicating
archaeological activity from the prehistoric period in the near vicinity if not from within the site itself.
This evaluation appears to be limited to the extreme south-western corner of the area. However
other remains from the prehistoric period have been recorded from the site, including an 'iron
spearhead', recovered during groundworks in the early 20th century.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



English heritage do not consider that any further work need be undertaken prior to determination of
this planning application but that the archaeological position should be reserved by attaching a
condition to any consent granted under this application. The recording of the two listed structures
and associated features or ancillary buildings prior to any alteration should also be secured.

Archaeology: No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of
a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which
has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Standing historic building recording: No development shall take place until the developer has
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological recording of the standing historic
building, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the
applicant to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

THE WILDLIFE TRUSTS - HERTS & MIDDLESEX

An Ecological Scoping Survey carried out by WYG Environment (February 2009) found that this
development has the potential to impact on protected species. Bats may forage along the canal
basin and Grand Union Canal which may be affected by development of the site. The Ecological
Scoping Survey made a number of recommendations to ensure that the development does not
impact on protected species.

All bats and their roosts are legally protected by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and the
Conservation (Natural Habitats & c.) Regulations 1994. If bats are present it is illegal to intentionally
kill, injure or catch them, damage, destroy or obstruct their roosts, or to disturb bats. Bat roosts are
also legally protected, even when bats are not present all of the time, Due to significant population
reductions, some bat species have been identified as priority Biodiversity Action Plan species,
including soprano and common pipistrelle (UK BAP) and natterer's bat (Herts BAP)

We therefore request the following Conditions be attached to any permission granted;

Lighting: No external lighting shall be installed or affixed to any buildings on the site unless the LPA
has first approved in writing details of position, height, design and intensity.

Reason: To ensure the site continues to be suitable for use by bats. Certain buildings and habitats
around the site may be important for bats, which may be adversely affected by light pollution in
sensitive areas. The design of the lighting scheme should follow the recommendations given in the
Bat Conservation Trust's advice note on bats and lighting in the UK (BCT, 2008).

Reptiles: Any key features within the redevelopment area that could potentially be used by reptiles for
basking, foraging, shelter, over-wintering and/or egg-laying, must be subjective to a destructive
search by a suitability qualified ecologist. Key features include log and brash piles, grass heaps,
stone/rubble piles, mammal burrows.

Reason: The site has been highlighted as having the potential to support reptiles. Reptiles are
protected under the Wildlife and Countryside act (1981) as amended which makes it an offence to
intentionally kill or injure these species.

Birds: No removal of trees, shrubs or hedges, shall be carried out on site between the 1st March and
31st August inclusive in any year, unless searched beforehand by a suitably qualified ornithologist.
Reason: Nesting birds are protected from disturbance under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended).

Landscape: No works of site clearance or demolition to begin until a detailed landscaping plan has
been submitted to the LPA for approval in writing. This is to include details for the species of local
provenance to be planted/sown and a structurally diverse habitat plan (preferably including a pond
and dead wood habitats), consisting of a list and map of species to go in the tree plantings, scrubs
and hedgerow and a sample programme of management.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



Reason: To increase opportunities for wildlife in new developments, in compliance with guidance in
paragraphs 5.32 to 5.36 of PPS9, and the NERC Biodiversity Duty, and in compliance with policies
ENV1 (Green Infrastructure) and ENV3 (Biodiversity and Earth Heritage) of the East of England Plan
(May 2008)

BRITISH WATERWAYS LONDON

After due consideration of the application details, British Waterways has the following comments to
make:

Plans
The plans appear to be incorrectly labelled in places the lettering of the blocks appears to vary
between plans and the sections.

Design and Layout

We feel that the massing of the buildings should respect the setting of the lock and the adjacent
listed and other low level buildings, particularly as the area currently has a very open feel to it, and
any development of this scale will have a significant effect on its character. The materials and
design of the buildings is also important in order to respect the waterway environment.

The block closest to the lock will have a particular impact on this open nature. Its design includes a
stairwell overlooking the lock, which we feel does not make the best use of the building's outlook
towards this waterway feature. It also does not enhance the waterside environment in the view from
the lock and adjacent towpath.

Moorings

The development presents an excellent opportunity to allow access to the canal basin and bring it
back into use for boating activity. There is a chronic shortage of and demand for moorings, and the
development should incorporate a mix of residential and leisure moorings in the basin, which would
also provide animation and activity on the waterside to complement the development. In addition this
would generate a commercial return to supplement the development.

Waterway Wall

The waterway wall is in a poor condition in areas around the site, and in order that the proposed
development does not adversely affect its structural integrity, and that the wall is of a standard that
matches the life of the development, we request that a condition (as below) requiring a survey of the
wall be attached to any permission. We would request that the applicants consult with us regarding
any works close to the waterway and our ownership boundary.

Lighting/ CCTV

We assume that lighting and CCTV is likely to be included as part of the scheme, which will improve
security along the canal side of the site. We welcome CCTV coverage (or at least dummy
cameras) of the towpath to help prevent crime. However, any new lighting scheme should ensure
there is minimal overspill into the canal to prevent it harming wildlife habitats, particularly bats who
use the canal as a feeding corridor. Low-level 'bat friendly lighting' should be used.

Off Site Works

The development would bring more people to the area who would benefit from the waterside location
and surroundings, thus putting more pressure on local open spaces, including the canal and its
towpath. It is therefore considered that the proposed development presents an opportunity to
contribute to environmental improvements to the local canal environment and seek a contribution
towards canalside improvements in the area that would meet the demands and expectations of the
future site occupiers.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



Maintenance

We would also request that the council consider the occupiers of such developments contributing a
service charge towards maintenance of the immediate canalside area around the site, including
towards litter collection, to help maintain the area to a high standard to meet the expectations of the
future occupiers of the development.

Waterborne Freight Transport

In the interest of sustainable development and to satisfy Blue Ribbon Network Policy 3C.25 & Policy
4C.8 of the Consolidated London Plan, BW would like to see the development utilise its waterside
location for waterborne transport.

British Waterways is promoting the use of canals for freight transport and with TfL jointly
commissioned Peter Brett Associates to investigate the feasibility of freight by water in West
London. This work revealed that in certain circumstances (depending on distance and number of
locks required to travel through) there is a sound economic case (and environmental and social
case) for considering freight by water as a viable alternative to road transport. Clearly, this offers
benefits including reduced lorry miles, reduced congestion, reduced carbon emission and reduced
number of HGV related accidents.

The construction cycle for the development could potentially be serviced from the canal.
Construction waste can be removed by water and building materials and plant can be delivered by
water. This would require a piled berth for service vessels to moor adjacent to the site and may also
be assisted by a construction pontoon (however please note that a license would be required from
British Waterways to enable any construction work to take place from the waterspace). During
occupation there may also be an opportunities for domestic and commercial waste and recyclables
to be transported from the site to a Waste Transfer Station by water, as demonstrated by LB of
Hackney's Waste by Water initiative.

The best practice guidance 'The control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition'
published Dec 2006 by GLA, together with London Councils states:

'Where construction sites are located near to waterways or railways it may be feasible for
construction materials to be delivered or removed from the site using these means, rather than by
road. The obvious benefit is that it will reduce the number of trips made by HGVs on local roads,
therefore reducing local emissions and disturbance to sensitive receptors. This option is rarely used
in London, but developers following this guidance, should try to make use of the waterways
wherever possible. The Mayor's draft Freight Plan also seeks to encourage the use of waterways
and rail in place of roads whenever practicable.'

Sustainability and Ecology

Use of the canal network and heat exchange technology offers significant savings on energy costs
and is a sustainable solution to power heating/ air cooling units. We therefore attach a copy of our
factsheet regarding this technology.

We note the proposed incorporation of measures to utilise hydro power, and support this where it
does not affect British Waterways' operations.

We have also just announced an agreement with The Small Hydro Company Ltd to generate
210,000 mega watt hours of renewable energy per annum using our waterway network.

We welcome the incorporation of brown or green roofs in new developments, and this may be
appropriate as part of this scheme. Bat and bird boxes would also be beneficial to ecological
credentials of the development.

Landscaping
We would like to be consulted on landscaping proposals for the development, including any planting
proposed close to the waterway or our land. We would also prefer to see some softening of the car

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



parking area close to Blocks D and E.

Hillingdon Narrowboats Trust
We are keen to ensure that any proposal does not adversely affect the amenities or operation of this
nearby group.

If the Council is minded to grant planning permission, it is requested that the above comments are
taken into account, and a contribution is made towards canalside improvements. The following
conditions and informatives should also be attached to the decision notice:

Conditions

Prior to the commencement of development a Risk Assessment and Method Statement outlining all
works to be carried out adjacent to the water must be submitted and approved in writing by the local
planning authority in consultation with British Waterways. The risk assessment shall also include
details of the proposed safety equipment along the canal frontage, which shall be installed prior to
first occupation of the development herby permitted.

No development shall take place on site until full details of the proposed landscaping scheme have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with British
Waterways. The landscaping scheme should include reference to plant species types, surface
treatments, fences and walls, any signage and information boards together with the means of on-
going maintenance for a five year period. The approved landscaping scheme shall be implemented
by the first planting scheme after the development commences. Reason: In the interest of
preserving open views to and from the canal, the living environment for future residents and the
canal setting.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, full details of any proposed
lighting and CCTV scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with British Waterways. The approved lighting and CCTV scheme should
be implemented prior to first occupation of the development. Reason: In the interest of crime
prevention, ecology, visual amenity and the canal setting.

Before development is commenced, a feasibility study shall be carried out to assess the potential for
moving freight by water during the construction cycle (waste and bulk materials) and following
occupation of the development (waste and recyclates). The use of waterborne transport shall be
maximised during the construction of the development unless the above assessment demonstrates
that such use of the canal is not physically or economically feasible. Reason: To encourage the use
of the canal for transporting waste and bulk materials in accordance with Blue Ribbon Network
Policies 3C.25 & 4C.8 of the Consolidated London Plan, 2008.

Informatives

The applicant is advised that any discharge of surface water into the waterways requires British
Waterway's written permission before development commences. Please contact Ben Loader on
0207 985 7288 for further information.

The applicant/developer must contact British Waterways' third party works engineer, Andy Nicholls,
in order to ensure that any necessary consents are obtained and the works are compliant with the
current British Waterways' 'Code of Practice for Works affecting British Waterways.'

In the event of any balcony overhangs or other encroachments into British Waterway's airspace,
land or water, the applicant must enter into an appropriate commercial agreement with British
Waterways before development commences. Please contact Ben Loader in British Waterways
London's Estate Team on 020 7985 7288 for further information.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



Any access from the towpath, closures of the towpath or scaffolding oversailsing British Waterway's
land or water during the construction must be agreed in writing with British Waterways before
development commences. Please contact Ben Loader in British Waterways London's Estate Team
on 020 7985 7288 for further information.

THAMES WATER UTILITIES

Following initial investigation, Thames Water has identified an inability of the existing waste water
infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this application. Should the Local Planning Authority
look to approve the application, Thames Water would like the following 'Grampian Style' condition
imposed.

Development shall not commence until a drainage strategy detailing any on and or off site drainage
works, has been submitted to and approved by, the local planning authority in consultation with the
sewerage undertaker. No discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into the
public system until the drainage works referred to in the strategy have been completed.

Reason

The development may lead to sewerage flooding; to ensure that sufficient capacity is made available
to cope with the new development; and in order to avoid adverse environmental impact upon the
community.

Should the Local Planning Authority consider the above recommendation is inappropriate or are
unable to include it in the decision notice, it is important that the Local Planning Authority liaises with
Thames Water Development Control Department prior to the Planning Application approval.

THREE RIVERS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Three Rivers District Council objects to the planning application for the following reason:

The Council recognises that the site is allocated in the London Borough of Hillingdon's Unitary
Development Plan under PR16 but nevertheless the site is surrounded by the Metropolitan Green
Belt and Countryside where there is a presumption against development. The site also lies within the
shared Coppermill Lane Conservation Area. Development proposals in a Conservation Area should
either preserve or enhance the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area. This Council is
not satisfied that any very special circumstances have been demonstrated as to why inappropriate
development should be granted and for the reasons set out below also fails to preserve or enhance
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

The proposed development is considered to be overdevelopment by reasons of the number of units,
the scale, massing and bulk of the buildings. This is exacerbated by the siting and layout of the
buildings, This Council recognises that some form of development is required for this site, but the
current application is unacceptable as it includes tall buildings that are out of keeping with the
character and appearance of the area. The unacceptable height of the buildings is exacerbated by
their siting close to the canal and river environment as well as failing to provide to recognise the
topography of the landscape. The development will result in an obtrusive and incongruous form of
development that will have a detrimental impact on the visual amenities of the area.

The 3(4) storey developments fronting the Grand Union Canal will adversely affect the outlook from
the Coppermill Lock Conservation Area. Whilst it may be very nice for the residents to look out over
the Canal and surrounding countryside and Green Belt it will have a claustrophobic affect on the
open appearance of the Conservation Area ere contrary to Three Rivers Local Plan Policy C2 setting
of conservation areas).

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



The type of development proposed is contemporary and therefore this form of development does not
reflect the vernacular of 19th Century canal side warehousing and will be contrary to the
architectural features of the retained B-Class warehousing that appears to be retained as part of the
scheme at present (although there doesn't appear to be any statement that the B Class use will be
retained in perpetuity and a future development may propose the redevelopment of this use for
housing also). This would be contrary to Three Rivers Local Plan Policy C1 and adversely affect the
features of archaeological and historic significance including the historic boundaries adjacent to the
Conservation Area.

The proposed development fails to include family housing. It has a poor mix and given the site's
location which does not enjoy good access to a range of services or public transport, there will be
high demand for travel by private motor car.

Furthermore, as the direction of travel by occupiers of the development in their motor cars is likely to
be to and from Denham Railway Station, Junction 17 of M25; Maple Cross employment area; and
the A412/A40/M40, the amount of traffic generated by the development will result in noise and
disturbance to the quiet country lanes of West Hyde. This will have a detrimental impact on the
openness of the countryside and green belt and fails to safeguard the countryside from
encroachment.

This Council is of the view that the scheme is overdevelopment and will lead to residents parking on
the surrounding road and area which will obstruct through traffic and make general highway
conditions dangerous. It should be noted that Coppermill Lane has no public footpath provision.

There is a significant shortfall of amenity space in the development for future residents.
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

Environment Agency remove two of their initial objections (unacceptable Flood Risk Assessment
and flood risk/drainage). However, the Environment Agency would uphold the objection on
inadequate buffer zone to watercourse.

This is because of the proximity of Block E to the bank top of the Grand Union Canal. This objection
can be resolved if Block E is moved back from the bank top to provide an open buffer zone of at
least 4m alongside the Grand Union Canal. This will provide a continuous buffer strip along the
western side of the site. Due to the constraints placed upon the development by the available space
on site we have not asked for a wide buffer zone along the whole length of the bank, only along that
part adjacent to the Grand Union Canal.

Officer Comment: The applicant has resolved the buffer zone issue by providing 4m alongside the
Grand Union Canal to the bank top.

Internal Consultees
POLICY

The site is designated as an Industrial Business Area (IBA), in the UDP Saved Policies document.
Policy LE2 states that these areas are designated for business, industrial and warehousing
purposes. Other uses will not be permitted unless it can be satisfied that:

-there is no realistic prospect of land being used for industrial or warehousing purposes in the future;
and

-the proposed use does not conflict with policies and objectives of the plan

-the proposal better meets the plan's objectives, particularly in relation to affordable housing and
economic regeneration.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



The UDP goes on to state that in applying this policy the following factors should be taken intc
account:

-evidence of a lack of demand for warehouse uses

-The length of time vacant premises or land have been marketed and the interest expressed by
potential occupiers

-The amount and nature of vacant floorspace in the borough

-The size and layout of existing premises

The Council's Employment Land Study (ELS) was published in July 2009 and contains a review of
all IBA's in the borough. Comments in relation to Royal Quay are contained in Chapter 8 of the
document in paragraphs 8.36-8.43, under the heading Summerhouse Lane. It is stated that the long
vacant cleared site at Royal Quay has the potential for a residential led mixed-use scheme, which
would benefit the local area by making the site more vibrant. The drawback would be that any mixed-
use scheme would potentially erode the employment designation status.

The challenge for this site is to develop a scheme that adds value to the local business community
whilst not harming the amenities of any future residents or those of the existing businesses. The
recommendation for this site at paragraph 8.43 of the ELS is as follows:

'Redraw the boundaries of the existing IBA to exclude the already completed housing component in
the north of the IBA, release the vacant part of Royal Quay to housing through a site allocation policy
and include Salamander Quay into a designated Locally Significant Employment Location (LSEL)'

The ELS forms a key part of the evidence base for the implementation of policy LE2 and also for the
emerging Core Strategy document. It indicates that the principle of residential development on the
vacant part of Royal Quay is acceptable, however the issue of protecting the amenity of surrounding
areas will need to be carefully considered.

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION
The scheme does not address conservation and listed building issues.

Due to lack of detailing and information provided within the scheme, the proposed development
would be unacceptable to the wider context of the Conservation Area. More variations and local
features should be incorporated to the proposed design of the scheme. The relationship between the
proposed buildings and the listed buildings are poor and is not acceptable.

The proposal still fails to provide sufficient detail on soft and hard landscaping which are very
important elements of the scheme due to its location.

TREES and LANDSCAPE

The importance of providing high quality landscape setting for this sensitive site is a key issue. The
density of the development, the limited space available for providing attractive and useable amenity
areas, the mix of urban/waterside character, the proximity to the Green Belt and the heavy
dependence on the roof garden (which will serve blocks A, B, C, G and H) increase the need for
clear landscape objectives which lead to a well designed and detailed scheme. At the moment, the
landscape objectives, as expressed in the Design and Access Statement and on plan, remain
unclear and the sparse information provided lacks conviction.

Objection is raised to the proposal because the Design & Access Statement and Masterplan fail to
provide clear objectives which promise to deliver a high quality landscape scheme in accordance
with saved UDP Policy BE38.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

Contamination

The following documentary information was provided with the application:

* Summary Ground Contamination Desk Study Assessment of Royal Quay, Harefield on behalf of
Farningham McCreadie Parnerships by White Young Green Environmental, February 2004 (ref:
REPORT/E04200/ST/FEB04/DTS/ V1)

The above document included within it a desk study, site reconnaissance and a qualitative risk
assessment of the Ground Contamination issues in relation to the site carried out by White Young
Green Environmental Consultants (WYGE). The desk study used a number of previous (third party)
desk studies carried out for the site and has relied entirely on third party intrusive site investigation
as well, the most relevant of which were the LBH Wembley Desk Study Report (1999) and the LBH
Wembley Site Investigation Report (2001), which considered contamination issues and indicated:

* Paper mills on the site from 1674 were converted to copper mills after the opening of the Grand
Union Canal in Harefield in 1797, to revert back to use as a paper mills in 1870. In 1882 the site was
acquired by the United Asbestos Company. Asbestos products were manufactured at the site (with
the factory expanding during the First World War) until it closed in 1931. Three rubber companies
joined together to occupy the site from 1935. The rubber company relocated in the 1980's. Various
planning applications in relation to the demolition of buildings on the site were also noted.

* Made ground of varying thickness (maximum recorded 3.85 metres) were noted in all the reports
reviewed (both Geotechnical and Environmental) in the areas where exploratory holes were sunk.

* Metallic contamination on site included both zootoxic (harmful to humans/animals) and phytotoxic
(harmful to plants) compounds, found to be widespread in the made ground (based on CLEA
residential with plant uptake criteria). (See figure 4.1 at the back of the document.)

* Significant (2-50%) content of chrysotile asbestos fibrous insulation was present within the made
ground in two locations in area A.

* Significant hydrocarbon type contamination present in the made ground at two locations in Area A
and on location in Area B, which included Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH), and in places
Polyaromatic Hydrocarbons (PAH), industrial solvents and phenols (see figure 4.2 at the back of the
document).

* In the groundwater, detectable levels of hydrocarbon type compounds were locally present, and
elevated concentrations of copper and arsenic were present in the groundwater samples tested.
The basic qualitative risk assessment to assess the risk to each receptor has been reviewed and
designated based on the limited (especially in terms of the area covered by the investigation)
information collected in this study, with the overall ground contamination risk rating for the site being
noted as Moderate to High. WYGE have noted further investigation work would have to be carried out
to formulate an effective Quantitative Risk Assessment (QRA) and remediation strategy, and to
adequately carry out groundwater modelling work. The need for land gas monitoring was also noted

The information provided does not cover the whole area proposed for development or the site issues
as completely as it could, and a number of uncertainties are noted in the report, but there is
sufficient information to indicate the breadth of contamination issues to be addressed at the site and
it has identified what further information is required. Of particular concern is the amount of asbestos
on site (the site has not been completely characterised so this is not known) as the Council's
preferred option is to safely remove all asbestos and asbestos contaminated matter from the site for
off-site disposal. Soil containing greater than 0.1 % asbestos is classified as special waste
according to the Environment Agency (EA) website, so disposal could be costly. At the very least the
asbestos contaminated material should be rendered innocuous if it is to remain safely on site.

Based on the above and the fact this site is included within the potentially contaminated land list for
the Borough under Part IlA, the standard contaminated land condition (see below) would have to be
attached to this planning application to cover both the site investigation work (broadly proposed
within the report) and the remediation work for the site. Should a different version of the condition be
used, please ensure a condition requiring the testing of imported soils is also included. The
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance on Land Contamination should be referred to for

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



guidance on the type of information required to satisfy this planning condition.

A number of landfill sites outside the Borough were noted in the report but one Hillingdon landfill and
a landfill noted by the EA within 250 metres of the site in Hillingdon were missed. The Hillingdon
landfill is a suspected asbestos pit and landfill gas is probably not an issue. However, the report
does note potential land gas issues due to the natural organic matter on the site as well as organic
matter within the made ground and therefore it should be conditioned for ground gas and any
necessary gas protection that may be required.

The site investigation information, any QRA information and the Remediation Strategy (and any
subsequent revisions/variations to this) should be forwarded to Environmental Protection Unit (EPU)
for comments as soon as they are available. A method statement for the safe investigation and
removal/remediation of asbestos contaminated material also needs to be provided before starting
works which clearly identifies how site workers and neighbours will be protected from any dust
generated at the site due to the relevant works. A separate condition to cover this may be advisable
under site management.

Ground water
The EA should be consulted with regards to groundwater issues.

Dust from demolition and construction

Current government guidance in PPS23 endorses the use of conditions to control impacts during
demolition and construction phases of a development. Within this in mind a condition is
recommended.

Conditions

-Site survey and remediation scheme

Before any part of this development is commenced a site survey to assess the land contamination
levels shall be carried out to the satisfaction of the Council and a remediation scheme for removing
or rendering innocuous all contaminates from the site shall be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority. The remediation scheme shall include an assessment of the extent of site
contamination and provide in detail the remedial measures to be taken to avoid risk to the occupiers
and the buildings when the site is developed. All works which form part of this remediation scheme
shall be completed before any part of the development is occupied (unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority). The condition will not be discharged until verification
information has been submitted for the remedial works.

Any imported material i.e. soil shall be tested for contamination levels therein to the satisfaction of
the Council.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Note: The Environment Agency, EA, should be consulted when using this condition. Contaminates
may be present in the soil, water (ground/surface) and gas within the land or exist on the surface of
the land.

Landfill gas condition for use for Major and Minor Applications where gas risk is considered
significant and monitoring is required

Before any part of the development is commenced, the applicant shall carry out and submit details
of a gas survey for the ground at the development site. Some of the gas tests within the survey shall
be taken below the proposed footprint of any new building. If gas is found, the applicant shall install
remediation measures to prevent gas ingress to any buildings on the development site, to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The condition will not be discharged until verification
information has been submitted for the remedial works.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



Reason: The Council's records show that the development site is located within 250 metres of two
landfill sites. The desk study also identified made an natural ground with the potential to exude
ground gas. A gas survey is required to clarify the gas issues at the new development site to
determine the remedial works which may be required, in accordance with policy OE11 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). Advice on this condition can
be obtained from the Environmental Protection Unit on 01895 250155 or the Building Control Officel

-The development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting surrounding dwellings from dust
emitted from any demolition or construction works, has been submitted to, and approved by the
LPA. The scheme shall include such combination of dust control measures and other measures as
may be approved by the LPA.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas.
HIGHWAYS OFFICER

The submitted transport assessment is not considered to provide a robust quantitative assessment
of the development transport impact on the highway network.

The site lines at the existing Royal Quay junction with Park Lane are inadequate. The internal road
width is 4.1 metres. It needs to be a minimum of 4.8 metres to allow a lorry and car to pass each
other. There are no pedestrian footways for almost half the length of this road. Some bin locations
are still more than the acceptable 10.0 metres from the public highway.

The application cannot be supported on transportation grounds.

WASTE STRATEGY
For this development a recommendation for bins would be 10x1100ltre refuse and 10x1100ltr
recycling bins.

The design of the bin chambers on plans would appear inadequate. The location of bins for access
for all residents seems to be less than adequate.

ACCESS

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan Policy 3A.5 (Housing
Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Documents 'Accessible Hillingdon' and
'Residential Layouts', adopted July 2006.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan. In addition, 10% of new housing should be built to wheelchair home
standards and should accord with relevant policies, legislation and adopted guidance. Nine Units
should be designed to Wheelchair Home Standards and shown clearly on plan.

EDUCATION

The Council is now seeking education contributions for all school sectors from all new housing
developments. This is due to a high increase in births, which will result in no spare nursery or
primary school capacity by 2012 and no spare secondary school places by 2019. The amount
sought from this development is £259,798.

S106 OFFICER

Following are my formal comments relating to the planning obligations as sought for the above
scheme.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



Planning Obligations sought for Royal Quay 43159/APP/2009/711

1. Affordable Housing:

The Financial Viability Appraisal submitted with the application has been independently validated
This has demonstrated that the level of affordable housing the scheme can support equate
to 25% by residential unit or 26% by habitable room.

2. Transport:

In line with the SPD a Green Travel Plan is required to meet the sustainable transport needs arising
from this scheme. It is likely that a Travel Plan bond of £20,000 will be sought to ensure compliance
with the Travel Plan or a remedial payment measure will be incorporated into the s106, to deal with
any future potential breaches. Any and all resulting Highways matters will be required to be delivered
and the cost met by the developer.

3. Education:

A contribution equal to £259,798 is sought form this scheme this breaks into the following: £41,530
for Nursery provision £90,379 for Primary provision, £69,251 for Secondary provision and £58,638
for Post 16 provision.

4 Health:
A contribution in the sum of £30,207.80 is sought as a result of this scheme (139.88 people x
£216.67).

5. Public Realm/British Waterway:
A contribution towards towpath and canal side improvements up to a sum of £100,000 is sought.

6. Community Facilities:
A contribution towards local community facilities in the sum of £30,000 is sought as a result of this
scheme.

7. Libraries:
A contribution towards library books equal to £3,213.24 is sought as a result of this scheme.

8. Construction Training:

A contribution equal to £2,500 for every £1 million build cost is sought as a result of this scheme or a
training scheme is to be submitted to and approved by the Council detailing how construction
training initiatives will be met on site.

9. Project Management and Monitoring:
A contribution equal to 5% of the total cash contributions is to be secured to enable the management
and monitoring of the resulting s106 agreement over the land.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The application site is contained within an Industrial and Business Area (IBA) where Policy
LE2 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies requires land to be used for
business, industrial and warehousing purposes (Use Class B1 to B8), unless it can be
satisfied that:

-there is no realistic prospect of land being used for industrial or warehousing purposes in
the future; and

-the proposed use does not conflict with policies and objectives of the plan

-the proposal better meets the plan's objectives, particularly in relation to

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



affordable housing and economic regeneration.

The UDP goes on to state that in applying this policy the following factors should be taken
into account:

* Evidence of a lack of demand for warehouse uses

* The length of time vacant premises or land have been marketed and the interest
expressed by potential occupiers

* The amount and nature of vacant floorspace in the borough

* The size and layout of existing premises

The Council's Employment Land Study (ELS) was published in July 2009 and contains a
review of all IBA's in the borough. Comments in relation to Royal Quay are contained ir
Chapter 8 of the document in paragraphs 8.36-8.43, under the heading Summerhous:
Lane. It is stated that the long vacant cleared site at Royal Quay has the potential for a
residential led mixed-use scheme, which would benefit the local area by making the site
more vibrant. The drawback would be that any mixed-use scheme would potentially erode
the employment designation status. The challenge for this site is to develop a scheme that
adds value to the local business community whilst not harming the amenities of any future
residents or those of the existing businesses. The recommendation for this site at
paragraph 8.43 of the ELS is as follows:

'Redraw the boundaries of the existing IBA to exclude the already completed housing
component in the north of the IBA, release the vacant part of Royal Quay to housing
through a site allocation policy and include Salamander Quay into a designated Locally
Significant Employment Location (LSEL)'

Therefore, the ELS forms a key part of the evidence base for the implementation of policy

LE2 and also for the emerging Core Strategy document. It indicates that the principle ol

residential development on the vacant part of Royal Quay is acceptable. However, the

issue of protecting the amenity of surrounding areas will need to be carefully considered.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The key planning policy document that the Local Planning Authority need to take into
account when assessing residential density is the London Plan February 2008. Policy 3A.3
of the London Plan advises that boroughs should ensure that development proposals
achieve the highest possible intensity of use compatible with local context, the design
principles in policy 4B.1 and with public transport capacity. The London Plan provides a
density matrix to establish appropriate densities at different locations.

The subject site is within a suburban setting and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 1. Taking into account these parameters, the London Plan Density matrix
recommends a density of 50-75 units per hectare and 150-200 habitable rooms per
hectare. The applicant's report advises that the scheme complies with the density
threshold. However, this is based on the entire application site which includes non-
residential land, contrary guidelines on how to calculate residential density identified by the
Mayor to support the London Plan. Council's officers have estimated the 'residential' area
of the site, including the access to Park Lane and Summerhouse Lane, as 0.94ha. Using
the correct net residential site area, the scheme achieves a density of 101 units per
hectare and 269 habitable rooms per hectare. This exceeds the density range within the
London Plan and the proposed density results in a number of other issues, identified within
the reasons for refusal.

The applicant has stated that if the density range is reduced to meet the London Density

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



Matrix the proposal would become unviable now and for the foreseeable future.

Nonetheless, given the context of the site, the proposed density is considered to be an over
development contrary to Policies 3A.3 and 4B.1 of the London Plan.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

ARCHAEOLOGY
The site is situated in an area of considerable archaeological and historic importance.

Previous archaeological work on the application site encountered re-deposited worked flint,
indicating archaeological activity from the prehistoric period in the near vicinity if not from
the site itself. This evaluation appears to be limited to the extreme south-western corner of
the area. However, other remains from the prehistoric period have been recorded from the
site, including an 'iron spearhead', recovered during groundworks in the early 20th Century

More importantly, however, it is also know that the site was development from the 16th
century onward, if not considerably earlier, with a series of mills representing various
different industries, including corn, paper and copper. Of particular interest is the sheet
copper rolling mill that was established in 1781 by the Company of Mines Royal. The
history of industrialisation of London's conurbation, as well as physical remnants of these
processes, would be considered of being of regional to national importance. Associated
with these works and the series of later mills on the site are the standing Manor House and
the West Factory Block, both of which are listed.

English Heritage did not considered that any further works need to be undertaken prior to
determination of the subject planning application but the archaeological position should be
reserved by attaching a condition to any consent.

CONSERVATION AREA AND LISTED BUILDINGS

The site is situated within Black Jacks/Coppermill Lock Conservation Area, designated in
1975 because of its special architectural and historic interest. There are two listed
buildings within the application site, The Watermill and the Manor House, both Grade Il. The
Lock Keepers Cottage which is found across the other side of the Canal, not within the
application site, is also a listed building.

The proposed buildings, due to their siting, density, bulk and scale would have a
detrimental impact on the character and setting of the Conservation area. Whilst the design
in principle is acceptable, the combination of the factors would result in the development
appearing cramped on the site where currently the characteristics of the area are open and
low density.

The proposed heights and scale of the proposed buildings and its relationship with the
Listed Buildings is poor and would appear do dominate the listed buildings. Whilst the
applicant has made attempts to reduce the scale and height of the buildings which are
closest to the listed buildings, the close proximity to the listed buildings together with the
proposed scale and bulk would undermine the nature of these listed buildings.

The Council's Conservation Officer has also raised concerns relating to the impact of the
proposal on the character and setting of the Conservation Area and the listed buildings
within the site. It should also be noted that the conservation area extends into Three Rivers
District Council and their officers' concerns mirror those of Hillingdon's officers.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Policy OL5 of the UDP Saved Policies 2007 seeks to protect the Green Belt from nearby
developments which may prejudice its visual amenity. Whilst the application site is not
within the green belt, the green belt immediately surrounds the application site across the
canal to the north and west and further beyond Barrington Drive to the east and south.

The proposal would be seen in the context of other buildings within the site and its
surroundings and therefore, it is not considered that the proposal would have a negative
impact on the Green Belt. It should also be stressed that Green Belt impact has not been a
concern on previous schemes involving 3-4 storey buildings.

7.06 Environmental Impact

See paragraphs 7.17 and 7.18.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE13, BE19, BE21 and OE1 seek to ensure that new development will
complement and improve the character and amenity of the area and harmonise with the
existing street scene. Policy BE4 requires new development within conservation areas to
preserve or enhance those features which contribute to the special architectural and visual
qualities of the area. Policy BE10 advises that planning permission will not normally be
granted for proposals which are considered to be detrimental to the setting of a listed
building.

The appearance of the proposed buildings is based on a modern interpretation of the
traditional building form found on site. This approach is considered acceptable in principle
however, given the Conservation Area and adjacent Listed Buildings, the detailing, finishes
and facade treatments must be of a very high standard and integrate with the surrounding
Listed Buildings and Conservation Area.

The Council's Conservation Officer has raised concerns regarding the lack of detailing and
design, which would result in a development that fails to respect the character and
appearance of the Listed Buildings and the Conservation Area. The proposed blocks D, E,
and F fail to incorporate local features and materials to incorporate these buildings with the
more traditional buildings on site. Some of the glazed enclosures are unclear and would
appear odd on the elevations and lack detailing in particular to buildings fronting
Summerhouse Lane.

The proposed building closest to the Manor House is approximately 7m away and due to
the L-shaped layout, it would wrap the Manor House to the north eastern corner, and would
appear to dwarf the Listed Building. This is due to the massing of the proposed Block A in
the context with the other proposed buildings (Block G, H and B). The overall massing and
bulk would dominate the Listed Building, Manor House. In addition, the prominent views to
the listed building from the public view points will also be obscured by the proposed Block
A.

The proposed siting of the buildings and the layout of the site would also make the site
appear cramped due to the close proximity of the distances between the proposed
buildings. The proposals are not considered to be to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the area, which otherwise is low density and spacious in character. As
such, the development would be contrary to policies BE10, BE13, BE19 and BE21 of
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies seeks to ensure
that new development within residential areas complements or improves the amenity and
character of the area. Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 require that new development
adequately protects the privacy, provision of daylight and sunlight to, and residential
amenity of existing properties.

In addition, the Hillingdon's Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) on Residential
Layouts provides further guidance in respect to privacy, in particular the distances between
facing habitable room windows should not be less than 21m and habitable room to flank
wall should not be less than 15m. With regards to the proposed residential units, Blocks G
and H fronting Summerhouse Lane would be closest to the neighbouring properties along
Barrington Drive. The distance between the proposed habitable room windows to the rear
elevation of the dwellinghouses on Barrington Drive is some 22m. Also, due to the
topography, the dwellinghouses on Barrington Drive would be situated at a higher level than
the proposed blocks and therefore there would be no unacceptable overlooking between
the nearest neighbouring properties and the proposed residential units.

Overall, the proposal is not considered to have any unacceptable overlooking, privacy or
daylight/sunlight impacts on the nearest neighbouring properties on Barrington Drive.

In relation to the impact to the neighbouring commercial occupiers, the nearest proposed
building (Block A) to Manor House is only 8m to 12m. Although the Manor House is
currently vacant, there is still a need to protect the commercial viability of the Manor House
and the amenity of future occupiers of the residential units. The proposed residential Block
B is also within close proximity to The Watermill, with only 16m separation distance. The
level of privacy offered to the future occupiers of the residential units is considered to be
unsatisfactory and contrary to policy BE24 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
September 2007.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies requires the
provision of external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of the
development and surrounding buildings, and which is usable in terms of its shape and
siting. Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 require that new development adequately protects
the privacy, provision of daylight and sunlight to, and residential amenity of future
occupiers.

In addition, the Supplementary Planning Document Hillingdon Design and Accessibility
Statement (HDAS) Residential Layouts seeks to ensure that an adequate amount of
conveniently located amenity spaces is provided in new residential developments and
appropriate level of privacy and daylight is offered to the future occupiers.

The proposed arrangement of the residential blocks fails to provide appropriate separation
distances between buildings and in particular, between facing habitable room windows.
The majority of the proposed blocks fail to provide the minimum required 21m distance
between facing habitable room windows. The applicant has stated that the blocks do not
provide facing habitable room windows between blocks however, in most of the cases, the
kitchen window would face the living room window or bedroom windows of another block.
As the proposed kitchens in all proposed residential units are open plan with the living
space, it is considered that the proposed separation distances between these windows are
not satisfactory and the majority of the blocks will overlook each other. The separation
distances range from 9m (between Block E and D) to 18m (between Block G and B). In the

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



case between Block D and Block C, the separation distance is approx 17m with habitable
rooms facing each other. It is also worthwhile to note that in majority of cases, the windows
lead out to a balcony and therefore, the distances between these balconies would be
closer than those referenced above.

With regards to amenity space provision, 93 out of 95 units are provided with private
balcony provision which range in size from approximately 4sq.m to 4.9sq.m. The total
usable communal external amenity space provision is provided in three separate areas and
the total amount equates to approximately 1879sq.m. HDAS seeks a minimum of 25sq.m
for 2 bedroom flats and a minimum of 20sq.m for 1 bedroom flats.

The amenity space adjacent to Blocks D and E is approximately 381sg.m in size and it can
be expected that this area would be utilised by the future occupiers of those blocks (24
units) due to its location. This area together with the proposed balcony provision, Blocks D
and E would provide sufficient amenity space for future occupiers. The amenity space
adjacent to Block F is likely to be utilised by occupiers of Block F (15 units) and amounts to
approximately 422sqg.m and this space again, would be sufficient for the future occupiers of
Block F. The decked amenity space area between Blocks A, B, C, G and H is
approximately 1076sq.m. This provision together with private balconies would provide
adequate amenity space for the future occupiers of the blocks mentioned.

The Mayor's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance on Providing for Children and
Young people's Play and Informal Recreation (March 2008) provides guidance to London
boroughs on providing for the play and recreation needs of children and young people
under the age of 18 and the use of benchmark standards in the preparation of Play
Strategies and in the implementation of Policy 3D.13 of the London Plan (2008). A
Benchmark Standard of a minimum of 10 sq m per child regardless of age is
recommended as a basis for assessing future requirements arising from an increase in
the child population of the area.

Among other requirements the SPG indicates that for children aged 5, 5-11, and 11+ play
space of an appropriate standard should be available or provided within a reasonable
walking distance of 100m, 400m and 800m, respectively. This distance should be
measured as actual walking distance taking into account barriers to movement etc.

The SPG provides guidance on what makes a good place for play. This is dependent on a
number of key elements, including the size of the space, location and accessibility, quality
and design, management and maintenance.

The Council's HDAS states that 'on larger schemes containing flats which would result in
family housing (two or more bedrooms) being sited more than 400m from a children's play
area, the development should provide for a usable amenity area incorporating a safe play
space for children, located within the development. This requirement is reinforced by
Policy R1 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007

While the majority of proposed units are provided with a small balcony, there is no safe or
appropriately equipped play space provided for children within the development. Further
there is no provision of an appropriate standard within 400m actual walking distance of the
development.

Despite the adequate quantum of amenity space within the development as whole, there is
inadequate provision of appropriately designed or set out play space to meet the play

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



needs of children arising from the development.

Given the lack of a dedicated children's play area it is considered that the proposed
development is contrary to Policies BE20, BE21, BE24 and R1 of the Hillingdon's Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies 2007 and Policy 3D.13 of the London Plan.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The site is accessed off Park Lane and has a PTAL rating of 1a (on a scale where 6 is high
and 1 is low). The proposal includes 146 residential parking spaces within a two storey
decked area and on the land surrounding the proposed residential building and a further
146 spaces would be available for the existing commercial use within the site. The
proposed parking spaces would comply with the Council's maximum parking standards.

The accompanying Transport Assessment provides trip generation figures from example
sites to make assumption of trip generations from the proposed development. However the
Transport Assessment fails to provide examples of similar sites to the application site with
similar PTAL rating and also the dwelling mix. Therefore, it is considered that the submitted
transport assessment is not considered to provide a robust quantitative assessment of the
development transport impact on the highway network contrary to Policy AM7 of the UDP
Saved Policies September 2007.

Furthermore, the site lines at the existing Royal Quay junction with Park Lane are
inadequate and the internal road width is 4.1 metres (it needs to be a minimum of 4.8
metres to allow a lorry and car to pass each other), there are no pedestrian footways for
almost half the length of this road and some bin locations are still more than the acceptable
10.0 metres from the public highway. For these reasons, also, the proposal is considered
to be unacceptable.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

See paragraph 7.07.
7.12 Disabled access

The Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) require all new residential units
to be built to lifetime home standards and 10% of units should be designed to wheelchair
accessible standards. Further guidance is also provided on floor space standards for new
residential development to ensure sound environmental conditions are provided on site.

The Council's access officer commented that 10% of new housing should be built to
wheelchair home standards and all units to Lifetime Home standards which should accord
with relevant policies, legislation adopted guidance. The proposed development
incorporates some Lifetime Home Standards and no details of Wheelchair Home Standard
Units are provided.

The proposal would provide more than 10% of parking spaces for wheelchair accessible
spaces.

The proposal therefore would fail to comply with London Plan Policy 3A.5 and the Council's
Supplementary Planning Documents 'Accessible Hillingdon' and 'Residential Layouts'.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Policy 3A.9 of the London Plan states that UDP policies should set an overall target for the
amount of affordable housing over the relevant plan period taking into account, amongst
other things, the Mayor's strategic target for affordable housing provision that 50% of
provision (in habitable rooms) should be affordable and, within that, the London wide
objective of 70% social housing and 30% intermediate provision and the promotion of

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



mixed and balanced communities.

The application provides 24 affordable units out of the total 95 units proposed. The
applicant has submitted a financial viability appraisal to justify the proposed level of
provision and this appraisal has been independently validated. This has demonstrated that
the level of affordable housing the scheme can support equates to 25% by residential unit
or 26% by habitable room. The proposed 24 affordable units equate to 26% of total number
of habitable rooms and is considered acceptable. However, no legal agreement has been
signed to deliver the proposed level of affordable housing.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Immediately to the west of the site is the Grand Union Canal. The Grand Union Canal is a
site of Nature Conservation Interest. Policy BE32 seeks to enhance the role of the canal as
a wildlife corridor and secure environmental improvements. Policy BE38 seeks to retain
and utilise landscape features of merit and provide new planting where appropriate.

It is considered that the application is inconsistent with the above policies as the proposal
fail to provide clear objectives which promise to deliver a high quality landscape scheme or
any improvements along the canal in accordance with saved UDP policies BE32 and
BES3S.

The Council's Landscape and Trees Officer objects to the proposal due to the density, the
limited space available for providing attractive and useable amenity areas, the mix o
urban/waterside character, the proximity to the Green Belt. The heavy dependence on the
roof/decked garden (which will serve blocks A, B, C, G and H) increase the need for clear
landscape objectives which lead to a well design and detailed scheme. The landscape
objectives, as expressed in the DAS and on plan, remain unclear and the sparse
information provided lacks conviction. Therefore, the proposal is contrary to Policies BE32
BE38 and PR16 of Hillingdon's Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan sets out the Spatial Policy for Waste Management in
London and states that all developments should provided adequate storage facilities for
waste and recycling.

The Council's Waste Officer has indicated that 10x1100ltr refuse provision and 10x1100ltr
recycling provision will be required for the proposed development.

The proposed refuse storage is distributed within the site and would provide a total capacity
of approximately 19,000 litres. The bin stores proposed for Blocks E, D and F are more
than 25m to the collection point. In addition, some of the bin stores are within the building
and cannot be independently accessed. This would conflict with secured by design
principles.

Whilst the applicant has shown on a site plan detailing waste collection points and

indicated that waste management plan can be produced, the proposal would fail to provide

satisfactory provision for waste and recycling contrary to Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan.
7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6 and 4A.7 of the London Plan require all developments to
make the fullest contribution to achieving sustainable design and reducing carbon dioxide
emissions. Specifically with reference to Major Developments, developments are required
to identify energy efficiency savings and the provision of 20% reduction in the buildings
carbon dioxide emissions through renewable technology.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



The application is accompanied by an Energy Statement by WYG Engineering outlines
how the development would deliver the provision of 20% reduction of CO2 through
renewable technology. The report states that various options were considered throughout
the design stage and concluded that Ground Source Heat Pumps for the provision of hot
water for both space heating and domestic hot water is technically viable and would lead to
a significant reduction in carbon dioxide emissions. A micro-hydro scheme is also
proposed through the utilisation of an Archimedes Screw for the whole development which
could lead to a significant reduction in the electricity required from the national grid.

The submitted statement shows commitment to renewable technologies and had the
application be recommended for approval, the implementation and delivery of the
renewables would be conditioned to ensure that the proposal satisfied the policies within
the London Plan.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy OE7 requires appropriate flood mitigation measures to be implemented in areas
liable to flooding. Policy OE8 advises that permission will not be granted for development of
existing urban areas which would result in an increased flood risk due to additional surface
water runoff, unless the proposed development includes appropriate attenuation measures
to a standard satisfactory to the Council in consultation with the Environment Agency.

The Environment Agency has confirmed that it raises no objections to the proposal as the
applicant has submitted an appropriate Flood Risk Assessment and suitable flood
risk/drainage measures. Therefore, the proposed development is not likely to give rise to
unacceptable flood risks.

However, the Environment Agency did object to the original scheme as it did not provide an
adequate buffer zone to the watercourse and recommended that Block E be moved back
from the bank top to provide an open buffer zone of at least 4m alongside the Grand Union
Canal. The revised drawings show a 4m buffer zone alongside the Grand Union Canal to
the bank top and therefore this objection has been overcome.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

No air quality or noise issues are considered to be relevant for the application site.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The main concerns raised by residents, namely over development, traffic and parking
issues and impact on the conservation area have been dealt with in the main body of the
report.

7.20 Planning Obligations

Policies Pt1.39, R7 and R17 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan states that the
Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate, seek to planning obligations to achieve
benefits to the community related to the scale and type of the development proposed.

The following heads of terms have been identified for the proposal to be acceptable.

1. Affordable Housing:

The Financial Viability Appraisal submitted with the application has been independentl
validated. This has demonstrated that the level of affordable housing the scheme cal
support equates to 25% by residential unit or 26% by habitable room.

2. Transport:
In line with the SPD a Green Travel Plan is required to meet the sustainable transport
needs arising from this scheme. It is likely that a Travel Plan bond of £20,000 will be sought

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



to ensure compliance with the Travel Plan or a remedial payment measure will be
incorporated into the s106, to deal with any future potential breaches. Any and all resulting
Highways matters will be required to be delivered and the cost met by the developer.

3. Education:

A contribution equal to £259,798 is sought form this scheme this breaks into the following:
£41,530 for Nursery provision £90,379 for Primary provision, £69,251 for Secondary
provision and £58,638 for Post 16 provision.

4 Health:
A contribution in the sum of £30,207.80 is sought as a result of this scheme (139.88 people
x £216.67).

5. Public Realm/British Waterway:
A contribution towards towpath and canal side improvements up to a sum of £100,000 is
sought.

6. Community Facilities:
A contribution towards local community facilities in the sum of £30,000 is sought as a
result of this scheme.

7. Libraries:
A contribution towards library books equal to £3,213.24 is sought as a result of this
scheme.

8. Construction Training:

A contribution equal to £2,500 for every £1 million build cost is sought as a result of this
scheme or a training scheme is to be submitted to and approved by the Council detailing
how construction training initiatives will be met on site.

9. Project Management and Monitoring:
A contribution equal to 5% of the total cash contributions is to be secured to enable the
management and monitoring of the resulting s106 agreement over the land.

As the application is recommended for refusal, negotiations relating to the above
requirements have not taken place. However, as a S106/unlilateral agreement has not
been offered or provided a reason for refusal is recommended relating to the above
requirements.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

No other issues.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The application is for a significant development on part of the Royal Quay site at Park Lane,
Harefield. The application fails to provide a satisfactory development on the site due to its
design, density, lack of landscaping details and poor layout which are detrimental to the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area and the setting of Listed Building. The
proposal also fails to provide a satisfactory living environment for the benefit of future
occupiers of the development and has inadequate provision for disabled people. As such,
the application is not consistent with the provisions of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies September 2007, the London Plan and the Council's Supplementary
Planning Documents and is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

London Plan February 2008

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - Residential layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Documents 'Accessible Hillingdon'

Contact Officer: Jane Jin Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



Notes

aujoD JaAY

I Riverside
Cottages

Semmmmmaaa”

Fishery
Cottages

P -

e ——

T

Royal Quay |

%

.....

'

W 3 {
o R
e
L)

[
II 1
v
I
[ !

I'q;'
v

. H .l
vl s| &

||m' 2 S

=<1 N 3 g )
e b el g Brilig | Lyng
== 3

m’

i O H
I

bt

o b

@ n’ =

vl 11—
W BELFRY AVENUE

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

i, N |

Royal Quay
Coppermill Lock

Park Lane, H

arefield

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
43159/APP/2009/711 1:2,500 K >
Planning Committee Date J;v ’!t‘
North Page 47 |November 2009 T+ L LINGDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address YEADING BROOK BETWEEN TORCROSS ROAD & WHITBY ROAD
RUISLIP
Development: Shared use cycle/footbridge over Yeading Brook (River Crane), as part of the

proposed cycle track between Whitby Road and Queens Walk, Ruislip.
LBH Ref Nos: 66331/APP/2009/1968

Drawing Nos: E/A3 2402/004
Location Plan
004 Tree Survey
Flood Risk Assessment
Design & Access Statement
E/A0 2402/1 Rev. E

Date Plans Received: 09/09/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 09/09/2009
Date Application Valid: 01/10/2009 01/10/2009

23/10/2009
1. SUMMARY

This application to install a bridge across the Yeading Brook to facilitate a pedestrian/cycle
route between Queens Walk and Whitby Road. This would improve sustainable access
to and through this public open space, which forms part of a green chain. The path itself
would not require planning permission. The bridge would present an acceptable
appearance and would not be likely to disturb surrounding residential properties and
wildlife, given the existing use made of this area for recreation. The proposal would involve
the loss of two trees, but replacement planting has been secured by condition. Highway
safety would also not be prejudiced, subject to a lighting scheme for the bridge. Although
the scheme has attracted a significant amount of local opposition, one of the main
concerns being a potential increase in anti-social behaviour, the scheme is considered
acceptable as the provision of barriers and CCTV cameras, secured by condition, would
ensure that the bridge would be capable of use whilst minimising any associated anti-
social behaviour.

2. RECOMMENDATION

This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town
and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the
benefit of the land, subject to the following conditions:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 M1 Details/Samples to be Submitted

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of works on site, details of appropriate barrier(s) to restrict
the use of the bridge and construction details of the bridge to include appropriate anti-
vandalism devices shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The bridge shall be constructed and used in strict accordance with the approved
details which shall be permanently retained.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, and to reflect the guidance contained in Circular 5/94 'Planning Out
Crime' and the Council's SPG on Community Safety By Design.

4 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to commencement of works on site, details of a secure CCTV system covering the
bridge and its barriers shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved system shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained
in good working order.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, and to reflect the guidance contained in Circular 5/94 'Planning Out
Crime' and the Council's SPG on Community Safety By Design.

5 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The proposed bridge shall be constructed and designed in accordance with the
information submitted as part of the formal planning application, including Drw. Nos. E/A3
2402/004 received 01/10/09 and E/A0 2402 1 Rev. B received 23/10/09.

REASON

To reduce floods risk and ensure biodiversity interests are protected, in accordance with
policies OE7, EC1 and EC2 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

6 TL2 Trees to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be planted
at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the completion
of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out to
BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the development
or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

7 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

No site clearance works or development shall be commenced until the protective fencing,
shown on Drw. No. has been erected in accordance with the approved details. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a
minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing shall be retained in position until development
is completed. The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed
during the course of the works and in particular in these areas:

1. There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2. No materials or plant shall be stored;

3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 TL5 Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works, to include appropriate replacement trees, such as common
Alders and suitable marginal species such as yellow iris and pondsedge has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall
be carried out as approved. The scheme shall include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



- Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts,

- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage, power
cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

9 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever
is the earlier period.

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree, shrub or
area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority
first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

10 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Development shall not commence until details of the ramped accesses to the bridge,
including any barriers required as part of this permission, to meet the needs of people with
disabilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved facilities should be provided prior to the occupation of the development and
shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON

To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policies AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.13, 3A.17
and 4B.5.

11 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of works on site, full details of a lighting scheme for the
bridge shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
lighting scheme shall be implemented prior to the bridge being brought into use and
thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure the safety of pedestrians and cyclists, in accordance with policy AM7 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

OL11 Green Chains

EC1 Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation
importance and nature reserves

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE34 Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on
rivers

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

6 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and
13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

7 146 Renewable Resources

To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction methods,
you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy resources which do not
produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions, including solar, geothermal and fuel
cell systems, and use of high quality insulation.

8

You are advised of the need to provide Approval in Principle and Design and Check
Certificates to the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of works on site.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

This proposal involves an area of public open space which occupies the north and south
banks of the Yeading Brook, between Whitby Road and Torcross Road to the west of
Queens Walk. This space mainly comprises an open grassed area with the tree lined
water course running through the middle which links Queens Walk in the east with Victoria
Road, some 770m to the west. Residential properties fronting Whitby and Torcross Roads
abut the open space to the north and south respectively, typically separated by access
roads running along their rear boundaries which are not fenced off from the public open
space. In addition to the open eastern and western ends, access to the space can also be
gained from various access roads sited between the adjoining properties from Whitby and
Torcross Roads.

The proposed bridge would be sited to the north of Nos.147 and 149 Torcross Road.

The area forms a Green Link and a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade Il Local
Importance as designated in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies, September 2007). It is also within Flood Zones 2 and 3.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to install a shared use cycle/pedestrian bridge across the Yeading Brook
(River Crane), to allow the creation of a footpath/cycle path which would link Queens Walk
with Whitby Road. The path itself would not require planning permission. This route would
form part of the Field End Greenway path. Greenways are essentially off-highway routes
connecting people to facilities, parks and open spaces. The submitted plans show that the
path would pass to the south of Yeading Brook, to the rear of properties fronting Torcross
Road to the proposed siting of the bridge, to the north of Nos. 145 and 149 Torcross Road.
The path would access Whitby Road along a service road between Nos.168 and 170
Whitby Road, linking with another access road which serves the rear gardens of properties
on the opposite side of Whitby Road and Bessingby playing fields.

The bridge would have an internal width of 3.0m and be raised approximately 0.8m above

the level of the river banks, with ramped accesses and 1.4m high handrails above the path
surface.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Not applicable to this application.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.4

PT1.6

PT1.12

PT1.35

To safeguard a network of Green Chains from built development to provide a visuz
amenity and physical break in the built up area and opportunities for recreation ant
corridors for wildlife.

To safeguard the nature conservation value of Sites of Special Scientific Interest,
Sites of Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation, designated local nature
reserves or other nature reserves, or sites proposed by English Nature or the
Local Authority for such designations.

To avoid any unacceptable risk of flooding to new development in areas already
liable to flood, or increased severity of flooding elsewhere.

To accord priority to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes, and to seek to provide a network
or cycle routes through the Borough to promote safer cycling and better conditions
for cyclists.

Part 2 Policies:

OL11
EC1

EC2

BE13
BE20
BE21
BE24
BE34
BE38

OE1

OE3
OE7
AM7
R16
AM13

Green Chains

Protection of sites of special scientific interest, nature conservation importance
and nature reserves

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
Proposals for development adjacent to or having a visual effect on rivers

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measure:
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witl

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 6th November 2009
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 6th November 2009

6. Consultations
External Consultees

62 neighbouring properties have been consulted and 3 notices have been put up on site. 8
neighbouring properties have responded in total.

6 responses received oppose the proposal on the following grounds:

(i) The bridge would increase unsociable behaviour and the quality of life for surrounding residents
would deteriorate;

(i) Cycle track would cross attractive unspoilt land;

(iii) Proposal would interfere with vista from upstairs window of property

(iv) Proposal would be detrimental to wildlife;

(v) No need for cycle track as apart from main roads, surrounding residential roads are quiet;

(vi) Given downturn in the economy, money should be spent on schemes that are absolutely
essential. This scheme should be abandoned;

(vii) Proposal would reduce security at the rear of adjoining properties. Properties in Torcross Road
have just recorded interest in having security barriers erected. Cycle path would negate any benefit;
(viii) Safety of cyclists/pedestrians using path would be jeopardised due to heavy use of service
road, including commercial deliveries and access to garages. Road improvements needed on
Whitby Road to allow safe crossing to Bessingby Park;

(ix) Proposal would increase litter;

(x) When previously complained about fly-tipping on service road, Council said this was private land
and my responsibility to arrange for its removal. If | am responsible for its upkeep, then my views can
not be ignored;

(xi) Proposal would contravene human rights.

A petition with 37 signatories has also been received from the residents of Torcross Road, objecting
to the proposal on the following grounds:

(i) Area experiencing many incidents of vandalism and anti-social behaviour at rear of properties in
Torcross Road. Bridge will allow another means of access and escape;

(i) Seeking to have alley gates fitted in Torcross Road due to vandalism and proposal will weaken
the case for these;

(iii) Proposal is a road safety risk as cycle path would use the alley approach to the service road at
the rear of properties on Whitby Road which is used and only just wide enough for a car;

(iv) If cycle path is necessary, would be much more economical by avoiding need for bridge by
running it along the north side of Yeading Brook to Queens Walk which would only require clearing of
undergrowth that blocks existing footpath;

(v) The local Community Officers on a recently started Neighbourhood Watch scheme have
expressed their opposition to the erection of a bridge;

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



(vi) Bridge would encourage motorbikes, both mini and track, to use both sides of the brook;
(vii) This is a senseless waste of money and doubtful if surveys have been carried out to identify a
need,;

A second petition, with 40 signatories, mainly from the residents of Whitby Road has also been
received, but no grounds of objection have been cited.

2 responses received are generally supportive of the proposal, but raise the following
concerns/queries:

(i) Support the proposal in principle, but the route of the path needs to be re-considered as path
should follow the bank of the brook and not bisect the green space as a) path in centre of green
space would pose a safety risk for children who often use green space for ball games, b) improve
privacy and reduce noise etc. from adjoining rear gardens, c¢) routing path nearer brook would
improve user enjoyment, and d) ease on-going management of the area.

(ii) If proposal to erect security gates on access roads in Torcross Road (which we opposed) is
followed in Whitby Road, where will path go?

(iii) Existing access roads that will become part of cycle route should be adopted and maintained by
local authority as more cost effective,

(iv) There seems little advantage of this route as two routes already exist to get from Queens Walk
to Whitby Road, ie. via the shops in Whitby Road or along the riverside path to the rear of the shops.
The latter is not well maintained and this proposal may be used as an excuse to close existing
footpath.

(v) A better site for crossing point would be nearer to the mid-point of the existing road bridges.

(vi) Existing footbridges across the Yeading Brook in this area need to be maintained and better
approaches to them provided.

(vii) Scheme should be to high standard to reduce cost of future maintenance.

(viii) How much will scheme cost?

Environment Agency:

No objection, provided condition is attached to ensure bridge constructed in accordance with
approved plans. The bridge has been regulated via the Flood Defence Consent process and
therefore we have no concerns from a floor risk perspective and has been designed to have minimal
impact upon the ecology of the river and its corridor. Sufficient clearance has been allowed along
the bank to allow movement of wildlife along the bank and the necessity to fell any large trees has
been avoided, though some lopping may be required. The orientation of the bridge means that light
will be able to enter below the bridge. To mitigate the loss of some habitat along the banks, some
planting of suitable marginal species (such as yellow iris or lesser pondsedge) should be undertaken
along the open bank on either side of the bridge once completed.

Thames Water:

There are public sewers crossing the site. In order to protect public sewers and to ensure that
Thames Water can gain access to those sewers for future repair and maintenance, approval must
be sought from Thames Water where the erection of a building/structure or an extension to a
building or underpinning work would be over the line of, or would come within 3 metres of a public
sewer. Thames Water will usually refuse such approval in respect of the construction of new
buildings/structures, but approval may be granted in some cases for extensions to existing buildings.
The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss
options available at this site.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Internal Consultees
Highway Engineer:

The planning application is for providing a shared use cycle/footbridge over Yeading Brook (River
Crane). The actual cycle track between Whitby Road and Queens Walk is not considered to require
planning permission.

The location of the footbridge is acceptable; however, Highway Structural Engineer and Cycle
Officer should be consulted on the acceptability of the structure and layout of the bridge.

Adequate lighting should be provided on the bridge, which should be covered by means of a planning
condition.

A condition requiring details of the surface material and layout is also recommended to be applied.
Trees and Landscape Officer:

The construction of the proposed cycle/footbridge will require access close to existing vegetation,
(as described in the tree survey). Therefore, adequate fencing will be required to protect these trees
and their root systems during construction. The protective fencing shown on the layout drawing is
satisfactory.

The development also requires the removal of two trees, (T2 - Crack Willow and T3 - Sycamore,
referring to the tree survey). Due to this, a group of three trees (positioned in a triangle 5m apart)
should be planted on the large open space between the proposed cycle/footbridge and Torcross
Road. The open space is situated on a flood plain, therefore a group of common Alders (Alnus
glutinosa) is recommended.

The layout drawing should be revised to include details of this tree planting.

Therefore, subject to the revisions and conditions TL2, TL3 (modified to delete the first sentence of
the paragraph which asks for detailed drawings of fencing) and TL6, the application is acceptable in
terms of Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP.

Crime Prevention Officer:

No objections to this provided a) construction of the bridge itself uses nuts that should either be
shear-nuts or spot welded to avoid the dismantling problems recently encountered on the Eastcote
pedestrian bridge, and b) there should be a recorded CCTV system installed to cover the bridge and
barriers across the path itself to slow all users (but most especially any illegal motorcyclist) so that
relevant standard identification images of mis-users can be obtained. This should be conditioned
with the standard of the CCTV system to be agreed.

Whilst mindful of the residents concerns over this bridge, as TFL, Green Spaces and others are
very supportive of this cycle link | am sure that it can be made to work with minimal associated anti-
social behaviour linked to it. Indeed, a CCTV system covering this choke-point could well help
identify and deal with current motorbike mis-users in this area.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

An important strategic objective of the Council is to promote a network of cycle paths
across the Borough (Pt1.34 of the saved UDP). The site forms part of a green chain,

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.1

712

713

where policy specifically encourages suitable recreational facilities to be provided and
supports improved public access to and through these areas (Policy OL11 of the saved
UDP). There is therefore no objection in principle to this scheme, subject to other policy
objectives being met.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

This is dealt with at Section 7.14 below.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed bridge, approximately 0.8m high above the banks of the river with 1.4m high
handrails would appear as a modest structure over the river that would be afforded some
degree of screening by bankside trees. Furthermore, the design of the bridge with handrails
of a simple design would not be out of keeping with the surrounding area, in accordance
with policy BE13 of the saved UDP.

Impact on neighbours

The bridge itself, given its modest size, would be sufficiently distant from the nearest
residential occupiers so that their amenities would not be adversely affected through
dominance, loss of sunlight or privacy.

Both sides of the river are publicly accessible at all hours, both from Queens Walk and
Victoria Road ends and at numerous points along Whitby and Torcross Roads to the north
and south. It is therefore unlikely that the use of the cycle/ footpath would give rise to
additional noise and general disturbance over and above that resulting from the existing
public use of the open space.

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

This application is only for the bridge itself and the actual route of the foot/cycle path
beyond the siting of the bridge does not fall within the remit of this application.

The Council's Highway Engineer advises that there are no objections to the siting of the
bridge, but a structural engineer and cycle officer should be consulted on the bridge.
Conditions requiring details of the lighting, surface material and layout should also be
attached.

Urban design, access and security

This has been dealt with at Section 7.07 of the report.
Disabled access

The proposed bridge would have appropriate ramped accesses to allow use by the
disabled. The barriers that are required by condition would also need to ensure that
appropriate access arrangements for disabled persons are provided.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



714

715

7.16

747

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Green chains are important for wildlife as they provide a valuable corridor along which
animals can move and plant species migrate, rather than any unique intrinsic value of the
habitat itself. Given the existing recreational use made of the area adjoining this part of the
Yeading Brook, any additional disturbance to wildlife likely to be generated as a result of the
use of the bridge would not be significant. The proposal would involve the loss of two trees,
a crack willow and a sycamore. The loss of these trees could be mitigated by replacement
tree planting, which has been conditioned. The Environment Agency advise that the
scheme would have minimal impact upon the ecology of the river and its corridor, subject
to some planting of suitable marginal plants. This has been conditioned. As such, it is
considered that the scheme complies with policies OL11, EC1, EC2, BE34 and BE38 of
the saved UDP.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

By providing a more attractive route for pedestrians and cyclists, this proposal would
improve the sustainability of the area.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposed bridge, being raised above the banks of the river would not impede river flow.
The Environment Agency does not object to the proposal. As such, the scheme complies
with policy OE7 of the saved UDP.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

As regards the points raised by the individual responses, points (i) and (vii) is dealt with in
the main report. As regards point (ii), if the access on Whitby Road were to be gated, as
this is private land, it is likely that a new route would have to be found for the path. Points
(iii), (iv), (v) and (vi) are noted. Point (viii) is not a material planning consideration.

As regards points raised by the petitioners, points (i), (iii) and (vi) are dealt with in the main
report. As regards point (ii), this proposal will not weaken case for security gates in
Torcross Road as public access is not restricted to the area at the rear of properties in
Torcross Road. Points (iv), (v) and (vii) are noted.

The two responses of general support, plus their additional comments are also noted.

Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

The proposed bridge would allow for greater access to and from the area. One of the main
concerns raised by local residents is the potential of the bridge to increase the incidence of
anti-social behaviour in the area.

The provision of a pedestrian/cycle route through this area would encourage greater use of

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



the area, with the attendant benefit of increased natural surveillance. The Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Officer advises that the bridge should be fitted with barriers
across the path to slow all users, particularly any illegal motorbikes and that CCTV should
be installed to monitor the use of the bridge. He also advises that the means of
construction of the bridge should be adequate to prevent possible dismantling. With such
measures in place, the Crime Prevention Officer supports the proposal and further advises
that a CCTV system covering this bridging point could help to identify and deal with current
motorbike misusers in the area. Details of the means of the bridge construction, barriers
and a CCTV system have been conditioned.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

This scheme forms part of a wider initiative to improve pedestrian and cycle routes within
the Borough. The proposed bridge is of an appropriate design and as both banks of the
Yeading Brook provide public open space, the scheme affords little scope for additional
noise and general disturbance over and above that currently associated with the public use

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



of the open space. The loss of two trees can be mitigated by the requirement for
replacement planting. With appropriate mitigation measures, such as barriers and CCTV
cameras, the bridge would also improve pedestrian and cycle access to and through the
area without the likelihood of any significant increase in anti-social behaviour and these
measures have been conditioned. The scheme is therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

(a) Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
(b) London Plan (February 2008)

(c) HDAS: 'Accessible Hillingdon'

(d) Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

Yeading Brook between
Torcross Road and
Whitby Road, Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
66331/APP/2009/1968 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 64 | November 2009

LONDGN




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address LAND REAR OF 114, 116 & 118 ABBOTSBURY GARDENS EASTCOTE

Development: Single storey detached two-bedroom dwelling with associated parking and
new vehicular crossover, involving demolition of an existing garage

LBH Ref Nos: 66232/APP/2009/1711

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement

Tree Survey Report

2009/116/001B

2009/116/002C
Date Plans Received: 05/08/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 05/08/2009
Date Application Valid: 12/08/2009 25/09/2009

30/09/2009
1. SUMMARY

It is considered that the design and location of the proposal would not compromise the
aims and objectives of the relevant policies contained within the adopted London Borough
of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and there are no
material planning considerations that would justify a refusal of permission. It is accordingly
recommended that the application be approved.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HH-T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HH-M1 Details / Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 HH-OM1 Development in accordance with Amended Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
amended plans received 15/09/2009 and 30/09/2009 hereby approved unless consent to
any variation is first obtained in writing from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

4 HH-RPD3 Obscured Glazing

The windows and door in the north facing elevation shall be glazed with permanently
obscured glass for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

5 B16 Details/Samples to be Submitted

Development shall not begin until details of windows (including materials, colours and
finishes and details of glazing bars) to be used have been submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance.

6 RPD6 Fences, Gates, Walls

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no fences, gates or walls shall be erected other than those
expressly authorised by this permission.

REASON
To protect the open-plan character of the estate in accordance with policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7 RPD7 Exclusion of Garages, Sheds and Out-buildings

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no garage, shed or other outbuilding shall be erected within the
curtilage of the dwellinghouse.

REASON

To protect the character and amenity of the area and prevent overdevelopment in
accordance with policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

8 RPD9 Enlargement to Houses - Roof Additions/Alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no addition to or enlargement of the roof of any dwellinghouse shall
be constructed without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To preserve the character and appearance of the development and protect the visual
amenity of the area and to ensure that any additions to the roof are in accordance with
policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



9 M3 Boundary treatment - details

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type
of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment shall be completed before
the [use hereby permitted is commenced] or [building(s) is (are) occupied or [in
accordance with a timetable agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority].
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

10 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The development hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until the dustbin and recycling
storage facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter,
these facilities shall be permanently retained on site.

REASON

To ensure a satisfactory form of development in compliance with the UDP Saved Policies
September 2007.

11 TLS Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage, power
cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

12 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever
is the earlier period.

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree, shrub or
area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority
first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

13 SUS4 Code for Sustainable Homes details (only where proposed as

No development shall t8e place until an initial design stage assessment by an accredited
assessor for the Code for Sustainable Homes and an accompanying interim certificate
stating that the dwelling has been designed to achieve level 3 of the Code has been
submitted to, and approved in writing, by the local planning authority. No dwelling shall be
occupied until it has been issued with a final Code certificate of compliance.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in policies 4A.1 and
4A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008).

14 TL1 Existing Trees - Survey

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than
1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-

(i) Existing and proposed site levels.

(i) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

15 TL2 Trees to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be planted
at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the completion
of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out to
BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the development
or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

16 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be commenced until
these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected in accordance with
the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority
such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing shall be retained in
position until development is completed. The area within the approved protective fencing
shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and in particular in these areas:
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2. No materials or plant shall be stored;

3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

17 TL7 Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation. Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

18 SUS5 Sustainable Urban Drainage

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) /if appropriate/ and to
ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices 4A.12
and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

19 OoM2 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

20 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The parking spaces, as shown on Drawing No. 2009/116/002C, shall be provided and
retained in connection with the development hereby approved for as long as the
development remains in existence.

Reason:

In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety and to ensure that parking is provided for
the development in compliance with policy AM14 of the adopted Unitary development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance.
It is considered that the bulk and design of the proposal would not result in a dominant or
discordant feature in the street scene or the wider area, and therefore no undue harm
would result. As such, the proposal is considered to be in-keeping with the appearance of
the surrounding area.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
HDAS Residential Layouts
CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved
Policies, September 2007)
LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

5 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning & Community
Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

7 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

8 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and
13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site currently forms part of the rear gardens of Nos. 114, 116 and 118 Abbotsbury
Gardens. The three houses back onto Lowlands Road and No.118 is located at the junction
of Lowlands Road and Rushdene Road. As such the site fronts the corner of both these
street, with a frontage of 13.8m along Rushdene Road and a 21.7m long frontage along
Lowlands Road.

The area is a typical inter-war suburb with a mix of detached and semi-detached houses
and bungalows on generally spacious plots. The host houses along with the other houses
in this street are detached and semi-detached houses, as are the properties on Lowlands
Road (although it is the fenced rear gardens that the application site is opposite). The
properties on the opposite side from the application site across Rushdene Road are
detached bungalows and directly front the application site.

The area is known as the Deane Estate and is characterised by half brick, half render
properties, some with their origins in the arts and crafts movement, other clearly influenced

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



3.2

3.3

by the Art Deco movement. Mature trees and fenced gardens situated at back of pavement
are commonplace and add to the open suburban character of the area.

The site itself comprises several mature trees and is fenced off with a variety of fencing
and part walling. A single detached garage (contemporary to the housing in the area) is
situated in the rear garden of No.118 and is accessed via double gates at the corner of
Rushdene Road and Lowlands Road.

Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a detached bungalow. The building would
be positioned at its closest, 3m from the back edge of the pavement along Lowlands Road
and 3.8m from the back edge of the along Rushdene Road. The properties principal
elevation would be towards Rushdene Road where a vehicular entrance to a 16m long side
driveway would be sited 9.5m from the corner of the site.

The building will have a total depth of 10.7m, a total width of 8.9m and a full-hipped roof at a
maximum height of 6.6m. It is proposed to relocate 2 Japanese maple trees into the rear
garden, subject to the approval of a landscape scheme for the whole site.

The property would have additional design details of a smaller projecting hipped element on
the rear and Lowlands Road frontage and a gabled element on the Rushdene Road
frontage. 0.65m high boundary walling will enclose the Rushdene Road frontage and will
continue part way along the Lowlands Road frontage, before increasing up to a 1.7m high
fence to enclose the remainder of the site.

Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

None

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

area

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Layouts

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved Policies,
September 2007)

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

65 neighbouring occupiers and the Eastcote Residents Association consulted. 16 letters and a
petition containing 58 signatures, objecting to the proposal have been received raising the following
issues:

i) Contravention to the original ethos of the design of the area;

ii) Foreshortened gardens will be out of keeping with the area;

iii) Proposed garden is smaller than average in the area;

iv) Small proposed living space;

v) Complicated roof design;

vi) Will appear as an isolated dwelling;

vii) No compensation for loss of trees;

viii) Trees still have many years of life in them;

ix) Does not enhance the character of the area;

X) Loss of residential amenity;

xi) Loss of light;

xii) Risk of highway danger to children attending the local school,
xiii) The amendments only serve to make the roof higher and have not addressed the complicated
roof shape which is out of character with the area.

Internal Consultees
Tree and Landscape Officer

There are several small trees, two groups of trees, and a mature cypress hedge on site. They have
been surveyed and found to be of relatively low quality (and visual amenity value), such that they
should not constrain the development of the site.

The Site Plan does not show all of the trees, groups and hedges, and does not identify them by
reference to the survey. However, it is clear that two trees and the groups of trees will remain in the
gardens of 114 and 118 Abbotsbury Gardens, and part of the one group will be retained on the site.
The other trees and the hedge will be removed to facilitate the development.

However, the Site Plan should be revised to identify, by reference to the survey report, and show all
of the trees and groups to be retained or removed. It should also note that, if practicable, the two
Japanese Maples will be transplanted to the rear garden of the proposed dwelling.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



There is scope for landscaping of the site (to fit with the surrounding gardens). In that context, the
loss of the mature conifer hedge (group G3), which does not make a positive contribution to the
visual amenity and landscape of the locality, the defective Cypress (tree 1) and the two small,
immature, Japanese Maples, will not be detrimental to the visual amenity of the area. It may also be
possible to transplant the two Japanese Maples to form part of a landscaping scheme associated
with the proposed development.

Subiject to the above revisions and conditions TL1 (services and levels), TL2, TL3, TL5, TL6 and
TL7, the scheme is acceptable in terms of Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP.

Waste and Recycling Co-ordinator
Recommends bin and recycling storage area and waste grinding facility are provided.

Environmental Protection Unit - Recommend informative on site construction.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policy H12 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 states that proposals for
development of backland sites in residential areas will only be permitted if no undue
disturbance or loss of privacy is likely to be caused to adjoining occupiers. This policy
recognises that some houses with long back gardens may provide more garden area than
is actually required and can be developed for housing purposes, provided that proposals
conform with other policies in the plan. It is also specified that a proper means of access is
required. There is therefore no objection in principle to this development subject to the
proposal satisfying Policy H12 and other policies in the UDP (Saved Polices, September
2007).
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The scheme would have a residential density which equates to approximately 120
habitable rooms per hectare (hrpha). Whilst this would be under the London Plan's
recommended guidelines having regard to the sites' Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) score of 1b (which suggests a level of 150-200 hrpha, 30-50 units per hectare), this
density would be more comparable with the surrounding residential development and this
marginal shortfall is not considered enough to warrant the refusal of Planning Permission
on these grounds alone. As such, the proposal is considered to comply with the intentions
of Policy 4B.3 of the London Plan (2008).
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.06 Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The Deane Estate is a characteristic 1930's development comprising semi-detached and
detached properties with a variety of house styles. Although properties immediately
adjoining the application site are semi-detached there are detached properties opposite the
site and on this Estate. The properties are situated on large plots of land and generally
have long gardens.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



Policy BE13 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 states that development will not
be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or
other features of the area which the local planning authority considers it desirable to retain
or enhance.

Paragraph 4.10 of the SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts, states that the height of new
buildings should be determined not only by the proportions, siting and lines of the
surrounding buildings, but also by the relationship between the proposed buildings and the
wider public realm. As a general rule the established front and rear building lines should
guide the siting of new dwellings.

The proposal fronts two streets and therefore must accord with two building lines, although
it must be noted that its relationship to these building lines is informal and will not follow a
typical pattern of development. With regards to Rushdene Road, the proposal is set back
behind the flank wall of the host property No.118 Abbotsbury Gardens. This is both to give
the building a more subordinate appearance and to satisfy the 21m distance requirement
for overlooking. None-the-less the proposal is satisfactory in terms of its siting in relation to
the existing building line and the street scene.

The property is sited on the corner of Lowlands Road and the property on the opposite
corner, a bungalow, is the main reference point in terms of scale and design. The street
scene is angled on the opposite side of the junction, however, the building line is mindful of
this and sites the property further in than the property opposite. This street scene which
continues on into Cannonbury Avenue is stepped, with the property referred to above (57
Rushdene Road) being sited 4m forwards of the properties in Cannonbury Avenue, as
such a further step in the building line would not be considered inappropriate.

The SPD states under paragraph 5.6 that corners and junctions typically provide a much
more complex set of constraints than simple lengths of street and give the opportunity to
create a strong landmark, building up the quality of the urban character for the area as a
whole. In these instances, the buildings on a junction are more likely to relate to one
another than to their immediate neighbours.

In addition Paragraph 4.24 of the SPD states that over time rooflines have contributed to
the character of the townscape, and a diverse roofline with a variety of pitches is
considered to improve the richness of the townscape where this adequately respects the
wider streetscene.

Considering the nature of this site as a corner site the provision of a bungalow with a full
hipped, pitched roof with subservient features is considered to respect the constraints of
the surrounding properties in terms of height and scale and is considered to be acceptable
in terms of its bulk and appearance in the street scene.

The proposal, although sited within the rear garden space of existing houses, is not
considered to comprise regular backland development as it fronts onto two roads. It is
considered that the bulk and design of the proposal would not result in a dominant or
discordant feature in the street scene or the wider area, and therefore no undue harm
would result. As such, the proposal is considered to be in-keeping with the appearance of
the surrounding area, thereby complying with policies BE13 and BE19 of the UDP (Saved
Polices September 2007) the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



The Councils adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on Design and
Accessibility Statement (HDAS) for Residential Layout offers the following guidance that
must be accorded with if new housing is to be considered satisfactory:

Para 4.9 states that all residential developments, including habitable rooms and kitchens,
and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight. Care must be taken to
ensure that the new development is of an appropriate scale and mass and that proposals
for new landscaping avoid overshadowing of proposed and adjacent buildings. The
distance provided will be dependant on the bulk and size of the building but generally, 15m
will be the minimum acceptable distance. It should be noted that the minimum 21m
overlooking distance will still need to be complied with.

The application proposes to site a bungalow with a total height of 6.6m in the rear gardens
of three established two-storey houses. The bungalow would have hipped roofs so as to
reduce the volume of the roof above the eaves at 2.6m.

A distance of 16.3m is maintained between the proposed dwelling and the host properties,
which when considering the more subordinate scale of the structure to these houses and
the limited windows in this facing elevation (being principally an obscure glazed bathroom
window) is considered acceptable and will accord with the 15m minimum distance.

A distance of 24m is maintained between the proposed dwelling and the nearest corner of
the closest bungalow on the opposite side of Rushdene Road. Whilst principal habitable
room windows are proposed in this elevation the minimum 21m distance is satisfied.

The comments and objection of neighbouring residents have been considered, however it
is considered that the proposal would comply with Policy OE1, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of
the London Borough of Hillingdon (UDP) (Saved Policies 2007) and as such these
objections do not substantiate a reason for refusal.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Section 4.7 of the SPD: Residential Layouts, states careful consideration should be given
to the design of the internal layout and that satisfactory indoor living space and amenities
should be provided. The proposed internal floor space for the new dwelling would be over
66m2. The SPD states that the minimum amount of floor space required for a 2-bedroom
house or bungalow is 63sg.m and therefore the proposal would comply with this advice.

With regard to the size of the garden, the SDP: Residential Layouts: Section 4.15 states
that a 2 bed dwelling should have a minimum garden space of 60m2, and the development
would comply with this advice, with a rear usable garden area over 140m2. Whilst there
would be a reduction in the amenity land for the remaining dwellings, the amenity space left
for these properties would still be in excess of 100m2. Therefore the proposal would
comply with this advice and with Policy BE23 of the Hilingdon UDP (Saved Policies,
September 2007).

It is considered, that all the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the
development still maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore
complying with Policy 4A.3 of the London Plan (2008).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed development would remove the existing vehicular access which is located at
45-degrees, directly on the corner of Rushdene Road and Lowlands Road, and proposes a
new vehicular access onto Rushdene Road (9.5m from the junction).

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



In addition the existing garage, which has no apron/forecourt and is therefore dangerous in
terms of vehicular manoeuvring will be removed and a new driveway will be provided with a
2.1 x 2.1m clear visibility splay across the rear garden of No.118.

Paragraph 4.33 of the SPD states that all new developments, whether new build or
conversions should provide parking in accordance with the parking standards set out in the
UDP and the London Plan. The proposal provides 2 car parking spaces on the side
driveway and this is acceptable and in compliance with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Paragraph 4.39 of the SPD states that parking areas for bicycles should be designed as
part of the wider landscape and should complement the buildings and the external area.
Three cycle spaces are provided by the pedestrian access into the site, on Lowlands
Road, and are considered to be satisfactory in terms of position and number.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Paragraph 4.26 of the SPD states that well-defined boundary lines help reduce the
occurrence of crime, enhance private amenity and contribute to the quality of the
streetscene and the environment generally. High walls, gates, fences and solid barriers will
normally be resisted by the Council, as they can prevent an alienating frontage, diminish
the benefits of natural surveillance and encourage graffiti and vandalism.

The plans have been amended so as to introduce windows on the elevation towards
Lowlands Road resulting in better surveillance over the street. The property is set back
from the edge of the pavement, offering open and yet defensible space, with a low
boundary wall. As such, in urban design and security terms the proposal is considered
acceptable.

7.12 Disabled access

Disabled access will be provided at ground floor via a level threshold and the unit would be
a wheelchair accessible. The size of the unit is such that it would be able to satisfy Lifetime
Homes standards. Therefore the proposal would comply with Policy 3A.4 of the London
Plan and the Council's SPD HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 states that development
proposals will be expected to retain and utilise topography and landscaping features of
merit and provide new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate. Planning
applicants for planning consent will be required to provide an accurate tree survey showing
the location, height, spread and species of all trees where their proposals would affect any
existing trees.

With regard to the proposed development, the Council's Tree and Landscape Officer has
considered the application and the submitted arboricultural report and he considers that
the loss of some small groups of low quality trees, including the conifer hedge and a
defective Cypress to be acceptable. The proposal has been amended to indicate that the
two Japanese Maples will be transplanted to the rear garden. Thus subject to conditions
protecting the remaining trees and the requirement to submit a landscape scheme the
Tree and Landscape Officer considers the proposal to be acceptable and in compliance
with Policy BE38 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

In terms of waste management paragraph 4.40 of the SPD requires adequate and
appropriate space for waste and recycling facilities, including wheelie bins where
appropriate, recycling bins and composting facilities should be incorporated into new
developments. Bin and recycle storage is provided in compliance with these requirements.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

A condition is recommended to ensure compliance with level 3 of the Code for Sustainable
Homes.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raised by the objectors have been covered in the main report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

Observations of the Director of Finance

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposed development is acceptable and accords with policies
BE13, BE19, BE20, BE21, BE23, BE24, BE38, OE1, H12 and AM14 of the London
Borough of Hillingdon (UDP) (Saved Policies September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layout and is therefore
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007
HDAS: Residential Layouts: July 2006
The London Plan (2008)

Contact Officer: Caerwen Roberts Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



Canon Lane First a

=

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address
Land rear of 114, 116 & 118
Abbotsbury Gardens
Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
66232/APP/2009/1711 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 81 | November 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LIN

LONDGN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address LAND AT REAR AND FORMING PART OF 63, 65 AND 67 LOWLANDS
ROAD EASTCOTE

Development: Two storey, detached four-bedroom dwelling with habitable roofspace with
associated parking and new vehicular crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 56032/APP/2009/967

Drawing Nos: 1:1250 Site location plar
Design and Access Statement
TSG/65LR/PRK/07
TSG/65LR/PRK/06
TSG/65LR/PRK/04
TSG/65LR/PRK/05 Received 7th September 200¢
TSG/65LR/PRK/09 Received 7th September 200¢
TSG/65LR/PRK/10 Received 7th September 200¢
TSG/65LR/PRK/02 Received 7th September 200¢
TSG/65LR/PRK/01 Received 7th September 200¢
TSG/65LR/PRK/03 Received 7th September 200¢
TS09-118M/1 Received 7th September 200¢
TSG/65LR/PRK/08 Received 30th October 200¢

Date Plans Received: 11/05/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 11/05/2009
Date Application Valid: 21/05/2009 21/05/2009
07/09/2009
30/10/2009

DEFERRED ON 4th November 2009 FOR SITE VISIT . 21st October 2009

Members will recall that this application was deferred at the committee of the 6th October for
the following reasons:

1. For members to attend a site visit - this took place on the 21st October;

2. For plans showing the height of the proposed building in the context of existing buildings -
these plans are available;

3. A revised drawing showing the size of the proposed crossover to be reduced - This has beer
submitted and is considered to comply with the requirements of the Council's Highway
Engineer; and

4. To ensure that the appeal decisions for the last four applications on the site are attached to
the report, for members' information. These decisions are attached to this report.

Members are also informed that since the application was deferred a further petition containing
20 signatures has been received from the Eastcote Residents Association, requesting
representation at the Committee when the application is discussed.

1. SUMMARY

The application site has been the subject of a number of proposals for residential
development in the past. This current application has reduced the overall size and bulk of
the house and simplified the roof design in order to address the concerns of the Inspector
who dismissed the previous application at appeal. It is considered that the revised

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



scheme would not give rise to an overdominant or incongruous form of development.
Adequate amenity space would be provided for existing and future occupiers in
accordance with council policy and standards. The proposal would not be overdominant
or result in a loss of privacy to nearby occupiers, and the proposed means of access
affords adequate visibility and parking and is provided in accordance with the Council's
standards.

2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 M1 Details/Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 OM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

4 MRD4 Single Dwellings Occupation

The development hereby approved shall not be sub-divided to form additional dwelling
units or used in multiple occupation without a further express permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the premises remain as a single dwelling until such time as the Local
Planning Authority may be satisfied that conversion would be in accordance with Policy H7
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

5 MRD8 Education Contributions

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority detailing how additional or improved
education facilities will be provided within a 3 miles radius of the site to accommodate the

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



child yield arising from the proposed development. This shall include a timescale for the
provision of the additional/improved facilities. The approved means and timescale of
accommaodating the child yield arising from the development shall then be implemented in
accordance with the agreed scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to educational facilities
within the surrounding area, arising from the proposed development, in accordance with
Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Educational Facilities.

6 RPD1 No Additional Windows or Doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7 RPD2 Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

The first floor windows facing Nos.98-104 Abbotsbury Gardens and 63-67 Lowlands Road
shall be glazed with obscure glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken
from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 RPD5 Restrictions on Erection of Extensions and Outbuildings

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no extension to any dwellinghouse(s) nor any garage(s), shed(s) or
other outbuilding(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

So that the Local Planning Authority can ensure that any such development would not
result in a significant loss of residential amenity in accordance with policy BE21 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

9 RPD9 Enlargement to Houses - Roof Additions/Alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no addition to or enlargement of the roof of any dwellinghouse shall
be constructed without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To preserve the character and appearance of the development and protect the visual
amenity of the area and to ensure that any additions to the roof are in accordance with
policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



10 OM5 Provision of Bin Stores

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the screened
and secure storage of refuse bins within the site have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be occupied until
the facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved details and thereafter
the facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON

To ensure a satisfactory appearance and in the interests of the amenities of the occupiers
and adjoining residents, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

11 M6 Boundary Fencing - retention

A 1.8 metre high close boarded fence or imperforate wall shall be maintained on the
boundary with Nos. 98-104 Abbotsbury Gardens and 63-67 Lowlands Road for the full
depth of the development hereby approved, and shall be permanently retained for so long
as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To safeguard the privacy and amenity of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with
Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

12 H5 Sight Lines - submission of details

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until details of the sight lines
at the point of the vehicular access to the highway have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until the
approved sight lines have been implemented and thereafter, the sight lines shall be
permanently retained and kept clear of obstructions exceeding 0.6 metres in height.

REASON

To ensure that adequate sight lines are provided and thereafter retained in the interests of
highway safety in accordance with Policy AM7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan.
(February 2008).

13 H7 Parking Arrangements (Residential)

The parking areas (including where appropriate, the marking out of parking spaces)
including any garages and car ports shown on the approved plans, shall be constructed
prior to the occupation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained and
used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

14 H13 Installation of gates onto a highway
No gates shall be installed which open outwards over the highway/footway.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with
Policies AM3 and AM8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



(September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

15 RCU3 Loss of Garage(s) to Living Accommodation (Not Garage

Notwithstanding the pr&%iB'Fé of Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
the garage(s) shall be used only for the accommodation of private motor vehicles
incidental to the use of the dwellinghouse as a residence.

REASON

To ensure that adequate off-street parking to serve the development is provided and
retained, in accordance with policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

16 TL5 Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

 Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts,

- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage, power
cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

17 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever
is the earlier period.

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree, shrub or
area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority
first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

18 DRCA1 Surface Water/Sewage Disposal

Before any part of this development is commenced, details of a scheme for the disposal
of surface water and sewage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. All works which form part of this scheme shall be carried out before
any part of the approved development is occupied unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development drainage is in accordance with the required
standards and that the development does not give rise to an increased risk of flooding, nor
to an overloading of the sewerage system in the locality in accordance with Policy OE7 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policies
4A.14, 4A.17 and 4A.18 of the London Plan (February 2008).

19 OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan
shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115
for maximum permitted working hours).

(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safety and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto adjoining roads (including wheel
washing facilities).

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and parking
provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures to reduce
the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of the
demolition and construction process

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



20 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, the area in the roofspace shall only be used as
storage/non habitable space.

REASON

The space does not have any outlook and its use as habitable space would result in sub-
standard accommodation which would be contrary to Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and the Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

21 SUS5 Sustainable Urban Drainage

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and to ensure the
development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices 4A.12 and 4A.13 of
the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

22 OM2 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

23 SUS4 Code for Sustainable Homes details (only where proposed as

No development shall t®e place until an initial design stage assessment by an accredited
assessor for the Code for Sustainable Homes and an accompanying interim certificate
stating that each dwelling has been designed to achieve level 3 of the Code has been
submitted to, and approved in writing, by the local planning authority. No dwelling shall be
occupied until it has been issued with a final Code certificate of compliance.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in policies 4A.1 and
4A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance.
The scheme would not give rise to an overdominant or incongruous form of development.
Adequate amenity space would be provided for existing and future occupiers in
accordance with council policy and standards. The proposal would not be overdominant
or result in a loss of privacy to nearby occupiers, and the proposed means of access
affords adequate visibility and parking and is provided in accordance with the Council's

standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Layouts

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

LPP 3A.4 Accessible Developments

LPP 4B.3 Residential Densities

3 1 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

5 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning & Community
Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

7 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

8 147 Damage to Verge

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles
delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at
the applicant's expense. For further information and advice contact - Highways
Maintenance Operations, Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington
Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

9 123 Vehicle crossovers

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

10 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and
13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

11

The development must have a food waste grinder included as standard as part of the
kitchen sink unit to allow residents to indirectly recycle their food wastes by grinding it and
washing it down into the waste water system for composting by the relevant water
company.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises approximately half of the back gardens to the rear of three
semi-detached houses located on the northern side of Lowlands Road, which runs in an
east/west direction. Immediately to the east of No.63 the road turns to the north at 90
degrees. The proposed house would be orientated to face this road, and would be set at 90
degrees to the existing houses (Nos. 63-65, odd).

Lowlands Road and other roads within close proximity of the application site predominantly
comprise of two storey semi-detached houses with long gardens, a number of which have
extensions and loft conversions with rear dormer additions, creating rooms within the roof.

The site is within the "developed area' as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 2 storey four-bedroom detached house
with additional habitable accommodation in the roof space. There would be a single storey
side projection giving an 'L' shaped footprint. The proposed two-storey element would be
8.6m wide and 12.5m deep. The dwelling would be finished with a hipped roof, 5.5m high to
the eaves and 8.8m to the ridge. The house would have a single storey side projection,
which would be set back from the front wall by 7.55m and would be 3.8m wide by 6.45m
deep. This projection would wrap round the rear of the proposed dwelling at a depth of 1.4
and would span the whole of the rear elevation. This single storey element would be

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



finished with a crown and mono-pitched roof form at a maximum height of 3.4m. Roof
lights are proposed on the front, rear and side facing towards Abbotsbury Gardens. Two off
street parking spaces would be provided, one within an integral garage, accessed from
Lowlands Road.

With regard to the size and bulk of the current proposal in relation to the previous two
schemes (2008/2417 and 2005/1287), both of which were dismissed at appeal, the table
below lists the main points:

Width of 2 storey element 2009/967 =8.6m  2008/2417 =8.2m 2005/1287 =8.6m
Depth of 2 storey element 2009/967 =12.5m 2008/2417 =15.1m 2005/1287=15.1m
Height to eaves (2 storey) 2009/967 =5.5m 2008/2417 =5.3m 2005/1287 =5.3m
Height to Ridge (2 storey) 2009/967 =8.8m 2008/2417 =8.6m 2005/1287 =8.6m

Width of single storey element  2009/967 =3.8m 2008/2417 =3.8m 2005/1287 =3.8m
Depth of single storey element  2009/967 =6.4m 2008/2417 =6.4m 2005/1287 =5.2m
Height of single storey element 2009/967 =3.4m 2008/2417 =5.1m 2005/1287 =4.8m
Dormers 2009/967 =No  2008/2417 =Yes 2005/1287 =Yes

The siting of this current proposal remains the same as the previous application, however
the overall depth has been reduced by 2.6m and the height of the single storey side
element has been reduced to 3.4m. The previous scheme, as with the current application,
proposed a two storey house with a single storey side addition and integral garage,
although the current scheme now shows the siting of the garage on the northern side of the
proposed dwelling in order to overcome the inspectors concern regarding the lack of
outlook and necessity of artificial light that would be required by the proposed dining room,
due to the close proximity of the window to the shared boundary. The dormer windows
have been removed from the scheme and there are no gabled elements proposed.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

56032/APP/2001/400 Land At Rear And Forming Part Of 63, 65 And 67 Lowlands Road E:
ERECTION OF TWO FIVE-BEDROOM THREE STOREY DETACHED HOUSES

Decision: 08-03-2002 Refused

56032/APP/2002/1134 Land At Rear And Forming Part Of 63, 65 And 67 Lowlands Road E:

ERECTION OF 2 FIVE-BEDROOM DETACHED HOUSES WITH INTEGRAL GARAGES AND
REAR DORMER WINDOWS IN REAR ROOF ELEVATIONS

Decision: 01-08-2003 Refused Appeal: 12-03-2004 Withdrawn

56032/APP/2004/3302 Land At Rear And Forming Part Of 63, 65 And 67 Lowlands Road E¢
ERECTION OF A FOUR-BEDROOM DETACHED HOUSE WITH INTEGRAL GARAGE

Decision: 31-01-2005 Refused Appeal: 13-07-2005 Dismissed

56032/APP/2004/976 Land At Rear And Forming Part Of 63, 65 And 67 Lowlands Road Ec
ERECTION OF A FIVE-BEDROOM DETACHED HOUSE

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



Decision: 22-06-2004 Refused Appeal: 22-02-2005 Dismissed

56032/APP/2005/1287 Land Forming Part Of 63, 65 & 67 Lowlands Road Eastcote
ERECTION OF A FOUR-BEDROOM DETACHED HOUSE.

Decision: 21-04-2006 Refused Appeal: 19-04-2007 Dismissed

56032/APP/2008/2417  Land At Rear And Forming Part Of 63, 65 And 67 Lowlands Road E:

ERECTION OF A FOUR-BEDROOM DETACHED DWELLING WITH AN INTEGRAL GARAGE
AND OFF STREET PARKING AND NEW VEHICULAR ACCESS FROM LOWLANDS ROAD

Decision: 03-04-2009 Not Determined Appeal: 03-04-2009 Dismissed

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Permission was refused in March 2002 for the erection of two, 5-bedroom three-storey
detached houses (ref. 56032/APP/2001/400) for the following reasons:

1. The proposal would result in an over-development of the site with an excessive site
coverage and bulk of buildings that would be out of keeping with the general scale of other
semi-detached and detached buildings in the area. The proposal would be detrimental to
the character and visual amenities of the area

2. The size of the detached houses and their proposed location in the rear gardens of three
existing properties by reason of their overall size, siting, bulk and height would represent an
obtrusive form of development to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining properties.

Permission was refused in July 2003 for the erection of two, 5-bedroom detached houses
with integral garages (ref: 56032/APP/2002/1134) for the following reasons:

1. The proposal does not provide a 1m gap between off the boundary of the site and
between the new dwellings, giving rise to a cramped form of development, which would be
detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene and character and appearance of the
area.

2. The proposal having regard to the size of surrounding gardens in Lowlands Road, fails to
maintain an adequate amount of amenity space in order to relate satisfactorily with the
character of the area, and as such would be detrimental to the amenity of the neighbouring
occupiers and character of the area.

3. The proposal by reason of its siting, bulk and height would represent an obtrusive and
overdominant form of development that would be out of keeping with the general scale of
other houses in the area to the detriment of the visual amenities of the area.

4. The proposed access near the bend in the road would harm highway and pedestrian
safety.

Permission was refused for the erection of a five bedroom detached house with an integral
garage (ref: 56032/APP/2004/976) for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development by reason of its size bulk and location would not be in
keeping with the plan layout of the surrounding area adversely impacting upon the visual
amenities of the streetscene and locality. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



Pt1.10 and BE19 of the borough's adopted Unitary Development Plan.

2. The proposed development by reason of its location to the rear of adjoining gardens,
would result in a loss of privacy to adjoining residential properties at Nos.98, 100 and 102
Abbotsbury Gardens. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy H12 of the borough's
adopted Unitary Development Plan.

This application was dismissed on appeal on 22/02/05.

Permission was refused for the erection of a four bedroom detached house (ref:
56032/APP/2004/3302) for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development by reason of the siting, size, bulk and roof design would be
out of keeping with the character of the surrounding area and properties adversely
impacting on the visual amenities of the locality contrary to policies BE13 and BE19 of the
borough's adopted Unitary Development Plan.

This application was dismissed on appeal on 13/07/05.

Permission was refused for the erection of a four bedroom detached house (ref:
56032/APP/2005/1287) for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development by reason of its siting, size, bulk and design would be out of
keeping with the design and layout of the surrounding area, creating an out of scale and
visually overdominant form of backland development detrimental to the character and
visual amenities of the locality and street scene. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Policies BE13, BE19 and H12 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan.

2. The proposal does not provide a proper means of access to the new house, introducing
a traffic conflict point close to a bend which is likely to give rise to conditions detrimental to
highway and pedestrian safety contrary to Policy AM7(ii) of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan.

This application was dismissed on appeal on 19/04/07.

An appeal was lodged against the non determination of an application for the erection of a
four bedroom detached dwelling with integral garage and off street parking (ref
56032/APP/2008/2417). However, the Planning Committee determined that had the Local
Planning Authority been in a position to determine the application, it would have been
refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development by reason of its siting, size, bulk and design would be out of
keeping with the design and layout of the surrounding area, creating an out of scale and
visually overdominant form of backland development detrimental to the character and
visual amenities of the locality and street scene. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
September 2007 and the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2. The proposal by reason of the relationship to the proposed dining room to the northern
boundary of the application site would fail to provide a satisfactory outlook giving rise to a
substandard form of accommodation for the future occupiers of this property and would
necessitate the increased use of artificial light, which fails to meet the objective of Policy
BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007, the
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts and Policy 4A.3 of the
London Plan 2008.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



3. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of school
age and additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of
places in schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not been
offered or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the
Borough's adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

The appeal was dismissed on the 3rd April 2009.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

H12 Tandem development of backland in residential areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Layouts

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.
LPP 3A4 Accessible Developments
LPP 4B.3 Residential Densities

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



95 neighbours and Eastcote Residents Association were consulted. 26 individual responses and a
petition with 104 signatures have been received making the following comments:

1. We the undersigned, object to the application;

2. We do not want or need another house in the area;

3. The house is over large and out of keeping, appearing as a massive monolithic block, when
viewed from all angles;

4. It is cramped into one side of the site, and we are concerned he will ask for another on the other
side if this gets the go ahead;

5. The site entrance would be dangerous, in an already hazardous part of the road which is indicated
by the presence of double yellow lines to prevent parking;

6. The application describes the house as having a habitable roof space, and together with a fixed
staircase will mean the number of bedrooms could be easily increased;

7. The proposal would detract from the amenity of the area for other residents;

8. For over 70 years people have bought houses here for the large sized gardens, privacy, feeling of
open space and area of greenery to enjoy;

9. These suburbs were designed to provide a particular style of living, with owners agreeing to
covenants that this should be maintained;

10. The example of this developer having built an over large dwelling on Rushdene Road, squeezed
close to another house does not inspire confidence;

11. | am totally against this application and the many previous applications have all been dismissed;
12. The planning inspectorate has stated that a back land development on this site would not
enhance the street scene;

13. The applicant only owns No.65 Lowlands Road and therefore would not be able to implement
this proposal, as the remaining owners of the site do not wish to sell their land;

14. The roof design is not in-keeping with the street scene;

15. The inspector's report recommended pre-application discussions, this advice has not been
heeded, and therefore this proposal is unsatisfactory;

16. This would be visible from all directions. Please could the height of the ridge and eaves of the
dwelling be confirmed to be the same as the surrounding dwellings. Although, dormers and gables
have not been included, the footprint from the previous application which was larger than the
previous which was considered overly large for the area;

17. The single storey side element does not sit comfortably with the remainder of the building;

18. A tree report should be sought to ascertain any possible detriment to trees;

19. To shorten the gardens of the existing properties will result in the properties being out of keeping
with the larger area;

20. We are concerned about the precedent this will set in relation to other properties in Abbotsbury
Gardens;

21. The proposed crossover would facilitate easy and concealed access/escape routes for
burglaries;

22. The development will impinge of the privacy of existing homeowners;

23. The development will cause unacceptable noise and vehicular pollution in existing homeowners;
24. Having a thoroughfare in homeowners back gardens poses a safety risk for young children;

25. The continual harassment by this developer is in breach of Section 1 of Article 8 of the European
Human Rights Convention;

26. Baroness Andrews, Planning Minister stated, in the Daily Telegraph, that Planning Authorities
have the ability to set local policies that protect gardens from developments and separate them from
wider brownfield sites;

27. This application is blatant garden grab;

28. A two storey house so close to our rear boundary will change the light and ambiance of the
garden;

29. | was told another application could not be made within 5 years, however we have been
repeatedly harassed;

30. There is a covenant in place on the estate which the Council continually chooses to ignore;

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



31. The drawings are littered with mistakes and this is particularly worrying in view of the applicants
other site at No 41 Rushdene Road;

32. The views from our upstairs windows would be spoilt;

33. The Sewerage system in the area is particularly bad;

34. The rear gardens of Lowlands and Abbotsbury Gardens provide a wildlife corridor and the
development will reduce its benefit;

35. The services would need to be advanced;

36. It would spoil the look of the area;

37. The proposal is roughly twice the size of the adjacent properties;

38. It is unlikely to have a ground source heat pump and the siting for the plant for this has not been
shown - if it is to be in the garage then an assessment needs to be made to check adequate room
would still be available for a vehicle;

39. If approved permitted development rights should be removed;

40. This is not a case of a neighbour wanting to build an overbearing extension. it is a single minded
developer wanting to make money at our expense;

41. The garage seems somewhat undersized and there is limited off street parking available;

42. We are concerned whether the developer can be trusted especially after the length of time taken
to complete his other site on Rushdene Road (which is still not complete), and that the approved
plans were not followed;

43. The law does not now permit the planting of a hedge near a boundary, due to loss of light, yet
how can a three storey house be allowed;

44. Land drainage is extremely poor, and the sewerage system very old and not capable of efficient
operation - this development will exacerbate these issues;

45. We do not agree that the development will visually assimilate into the street scene, due to its
size and design. There is nothing that would match this development in size or ratio of a house size
to this plot;

46. We would not allow access to our land if this development were to proceed;

47. We are concerned with regard to the residential density for the proposal and whether it meets to
recommendations in the London Plan having had regard for the PTAL for the area, and if the loft area
where to be used as a room this would influence the 106 payments requested for the development;
48. There is an area of land shown on the frontage, adjacent to the public footpath - it is not clear
what this is for - if it is for parking it would be very difficult to access, in addition the proposed
driveway at 4.8m is very short;

49. The bin store is not shown on the plans;

50. If finances allowed we would mount a legal challenge for infringing our Human Rights - Perhaps
Hillingdon would like to mount a test case on behalf of Londons LA's. Surely there should be some
sort of redress against this type of continual proposals;

51. A four bedroom house will result in more than a two car ownership and result in additional cars
parking on the highway;

52. Please can the information supplied by the applicant be independently checked;

53. The amended drawings do not address the lack of information regarding the layout of the second
floor, nor the amount of natural light to that area;

54. The building is squashed over to one side, 1m from the side boundary. Please can the following
two points be taken into consideration when determining this application.

- The SPD HDAS New Residential Layouts, Page 9, 4.9 Where a two or more storey building abuts
a property or its garden adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible over
domination. The distance provided will be dependant on the bulk and size of the building, but
generally, 15m will be the minimum accepted distance...... Therefore this dwelling should be much
further away from the boundary with Abbotsbury Garden, taking into account that the footprint of this
dwelling is approximately the same as one pair of average semi-detached houses on the Deane
Estate. The Planning Inspector for the previous appeal was in agreement that the proposed dwelling
was poorly placed.

- The position of the driveway in relation to the bend in the road. The second application for this site
was for 2 detached houses. The original plans showed the driveways in the same position as this

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



application. During the course of the determination of that application, to comply with comments
from Mr. Adenegan Case Officer and Mr. Ranger Traffic Officer, the driveways were moved to the
centre of the site, to comply with road safety. This information is contained in a letter from the
Appellant to the Planning Inspectorate dated 25th November 2003. If there were objections to the
positioning of the driveway on the second application, then this position cannot be acceptable for this
current application;

55. The driveway and garage have been moved on this application to try to overcome habitable
rooms being 1 metre from a close board fence, which was an objection by the Planning Inspector,
but by so doing has made the position of the driveway un-acceptable, yet again.

John Wilkinson MP - No comments received

Clir Baker - Is it possible we could use the law, to put a stop to the constant applications being
submitted by this applicant. The application is for a single detached house, with no significant
differences from the previous applications, all of which have been refused.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer

In the appeal decision relating to application ref: 2005/1287 the Inspector concluded that an
acceptable access with adequate visibility could be achieved and the proposal would not be
detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety.

Provided the access as currently shown is reduced in width to 3.0 metres at the front boundary and
a Condition requiring details of the cross over are submitted for the LPA's approval prior to the
commencement of the development, no objections are raised on highway grounds.

Director of Education

On the basis of the creation of a 1x 8/9 room private house in Eastcote and East Ruislip, with no
demolition, the requested amount is £15,492.

Tree/Landscape Officer

There are a few trees on and close to site, however, none of them are protected by TPO or CA
designations, nor do they justify protection at this time.

As there are no new tree or landscaping issues introduced with the current scheme, the previous
tree and landscape comments apply:

"The proposed scheme does not affect any trees protected by a TPO but there is scope for
landscaping for this application. Subject to conditions TL5 and TL6, the scheme is acceptable and,
in tree preservation and landscape terms, complies with policies BE38 of the Saved policies UDP".

Waste and Recycling Officer

No commentary with respect of the design, however, they must have food waste grinders included
as standard as part of the kitchen sink unit to allow residents to indirectly recycle their food wastes
by grinding it and washing it down into the waste water system for composting by the relevant water
company. In addition the dwelling should incorporate in their design storage provision for an average
of 2 bags of recycling and two bags of refuse per week plus 3 garden waste bags every 2 weeks.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
Policy BE13 of the Adopted Hillingdon UDP (Saved Polices, September 2007) states that

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene, and BE19 states the LPA will seek to ensure that new development
within residential areas compliments or improves the amenity and character of the area.

The adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD): Residential Layouts: Section 3.4
states this type of development must seek to enhance the character of the area. Section
4.10 of the SPD explains careful consideration should be given to the height of new
buildings and the surrounding building lines, as a general rule the front and rear building
lines should be a guide for the siting of new dwellings.

Policy H12 states Proposals for tandem development of backland in residential areas will
only be permitted if no undue disturbance or loss of privacy is likely to be caused to
adjoining occupiers. This policy recognises that some houses with long back gardens may
provide more garden area than is actually required and can be developed for housing
purposes, provided that proposals conform with other policies in the UDP. It is also
specified that a proper means of access is required. There is therefore no objection to this
development subject to the proposal satisfying Policy H12 and other policies in the UDP
(Saved Polices, September 2007).

The previous application was tested at appeal (56032/APP/2008/2417), and the inspector
commented that during the course of the previous appeals certain principles had been
established relating to the site, as follows:

a) The site is suitable to accommodate development of the general scale proposed;

b) The separation between the proposed dwelling and others in the area would prevent any
undue dominance or disturbance;

c) It is possible to design the development to prevent overlooking;

d) A safe and workable access can be achieved;

e) The character of the area is not formed by the widespread presence of dormer
windows;

f) Whilst imaginative design should be encouraged, this should not be at the expense of
living conditions of occupiers;

g) The backland location is a sensitive one, particularly with regard to the effect of the roof
on the character of the area;

h) The area is not designated for its special character.

Given that there has been acceptance by Inspectors that the site is suitable for residential
development, the principle of a new dwelling in this location is considered acceptable.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The scheme would have a residential density which equates to approximately 145
habitable rooms per hectare (hrpha). Whilst this would be marginally under the London
Plan's recommended guidelines having regard to the sites Public Transport Accessibility
Level (PTAL) score of 1b (which suggests a level of 150-200 hrpha, 30-50 units per
hectare), this density would be more comparable with the surrounding residential
development and this marginal shortfall is not considered enough to warrant the refusal of
Planning Permission on these grounds alone. As such, the proposal is considered to
comply with the intentions of Policy 4B.3 of the London Plan (2008).

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

This is not applicable to this application
7.04 Airport safeguarding

This is not applicable to this application
7.05 Impact on the green belt

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



This is not applicable to this application
7.06 Environmental Impact

This is not applicable to this application
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The Deane Estate is a characteristic 1930's development comprising semi-detached and
detached properties with a variety of house styles. Although properties within the
immediate vicinity of the application site are semi-detached there are also detached
properties on this Estate. The properties are situated on large plots of land and generally
have long gardens. The houses are set back from the road frontage by approximately 8
metres to establish building lines. The area therefore has an open character and
appearance.

With regard to design, Policy BE22 states development of two or more stories should be
set away a minimum of 1 metre from the side boundary for the full height of the building.
This is to protect the character and appearance of the street scene and the gaps between
properties. The proposal would comply with this advice as the proposed dwelling would be
set in 1m from the northern boundary of the site. Whilst it was considered in the previous
appeal that due to the proposal being pushed over to one side of the site, it resulted in a
cramped appearance against one boundary, the applicant has revised the scheme to show
the "2m high close boarded fence' to remain on the front boundary of the side garden land.
With the front garden and 0.6m front boundary wall with vehicular access occupying only
the area directly in front of the proposed dwelling, to give the visual appearance of the
proposal being centrally sited in the open frontage. Furthermore, the Inspector in the
previous appeal proposal (ref 56032/APP/2008/2417), in relation to this issue stated:

"Many representations made in the appeal consider that the closeness of the proposal to
the boundary would lead to a cramped design. Whilst | agree that this would be the case, it
seems to me that the principal objection to the proposal is its overall bulk when seen from
the south east and the fussiness of the design. A smaller scale dwelling could sit more
comfortably within the space available, but it is the shortcomings in the design of the
appeal proposal have led me to dismiss the appeal. None of the many other objections
which have been made alter my conclusions."

As stated above, the Inspector concluded that the principle objection was the proposals
overall bulk when viewed from the south east and the fussiness of the design. On the
design the Inspector commented:

"It appears to me that the architect of the appeal proposal has failed to understand the
importance of the context. Whilst studiously achieving many of the parameters of height,
depth and roof pitch which make up local character, there has been a failure to maintain
the simplicity of approach. This to my mind is of fundamental importance because of the
scale of the building proposed, but would be important in any building. The design employs
some features which are redolent of nearby dwellings, but the differences in wall treatment,
division of windows, and the variety in scale of dormer windows, gables and roof lights
neglect the need identified by my colleague to avoid irregularity and cumbersome scale. |
accept that some features could be precluded by planning condition, but it is not possible to
carry out the redesign necessary in a planning appeal decision."

The revised scheme has now been reduced in depth to 12.5m (2-storey element), with the
roof of the single storey side at 3.4m in height. It is proposed to finish the dwelling with a
simple hipped roof that would be in-keeping with the design characteristics of the
surrounding properties and the dormer windows and gables no longer form part of the

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



proposal. The design approach has thus been simplified and is no longer considered to be
irregular or cumbersome.

Section 4.10 of the SPD states careful consideration should be given to the height of new
buildings and the surrounding building lines, as a general rule the front and rear building
lines should be a guide for the siting of new dwellings. The plans submitted indicate the
proposed new dwelling would have a ridge line at 8.8m, and an eaves height of 5.5m. A
survey plan of No.65 Lowlands Road has been produced and shows this property to have a
ridge height of 9.12m and an eaves height of 5.74m. The proposed dwelling would
therefore, be lower than this existing property, by 0.32m at ridge height and 0.24m at eave
height. As such the proposal would not be considered to be over-dominant in relation to the
surrounding properties.

It is considered that bulk and design of the proposal would not result in a dominant or
discordant feature in the street scene or the wider area, and therefore no undue harm
would result. As such, the proposal is considered to be in-keeping with the appearance of
the surrounding area, thereby complying with policies BE13 and BE19 of the UDP (Saved
Polices September 2007) and Policies contained the HDAS Supplementary Planning
Document: Residential Layouts.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD: Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential developments
and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight, including habitable
rooms and kitchens. The daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be
adequately protected. Where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden,
adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible over-domination, and 15m
will be the minimum acceptable distance. In this case the flank wall of the proposed house
would be situated 26m from the rear 63, 65 and 67 Lowlands Road and 34m from
properties in Abbotsbury Gardens. Taking into consideration these distances the proposal
is not considered to be overdominant, or result in overshadowing of adjoining properties.

The bend in Lowlands Road enables the proposed house to be accessed from a separate
entrance to those serving existing properties in Lowlands Road. This access is situated
some 30m from the rear of No.61 and the proposed additional house is unlikely to give rise
to an increase in pollution, noise and disturbance to adjoining properties to justify refusal.

The Inspector in the appeal decision dismissing application 56032/APP/2007/1287 (April
2007) stated:-

"The separation distances between the facing elevations of the existing elevations and that
which is proposed are such that there would not be any significant loss of residential
amenity whether by virtue of loss of light or harm to the outlook of existing occupiers."

The proposal would therefore comply with Policies BE20, BE21 and OE1 of the UDP
(Saved Polices September 2007).

With regard to privacy, the design guide requires that a minimum distance of 21m between
habitable room windows and private garden areas is provided in order to protect privacy.
The windows proposed in the first floor flank elevations facing Lowlands Road and
Abbotsbury Gardens are either secondary windows or are to non-habitable rooms and are
conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-opening below top vent. Furthermore, the
distance of the proposed house from the private garden areas of properties on Lowlands

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



Road and Abbotsbury Gardens would be in excess of 21m. With regard to roof windows,
amended plans have now been received which show the removal of the roof window in the
elevation facing 63-67 Lowlands Road, and the remaining roof windows in the rear
elevation and the side elevation facing the properties in Abbotsbury Gardens have been re-
positioned to have an internal sill height of 1.8m so that no vantage could be gained from
these windows. Therefore subject to appropriate conditions controlling the insertion of
further windows and obscure glazing the proposal is considered to accord with Policy
BE24 of the UDP (Saved Polices September 2007).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Section 4.7 of the SPD: Residential Layouts, states careful consideration should be given
to the design of the internal layout and that satisfactory indoor living space and amenities
should be provided. The proposed internal floor space for the new dwelling would be over
200m2 (not including the integral garage). The SPD states the minimum amount of floor
space required for a 5-bedroom house would be 108m2 and therefore the proposal would
comply with this advice.

With regard to the size of the garden, the SDP: Residential Layouts: Section 4.15 states
that a 4+ bed house should have a minimum garden space of 100m2, and the
development would comply with this advice, with a rear usable garden area over 400mz2.
Whilst there would be a reduction in the amenity land for the remaining dwellings, the
amenity space left for these properties would still be in excess of 100m2. Therefore the
proposal would comply with this advice and with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon UDP (Saved
Policies, September 2007).
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Highway safety issues were considered by the previous inspector's decision in relation to
application 56032/APP/2005/1287, for a four bedroom house on this site, and whilst the
vehicular access point for the current scheme has been re-sited further towards boundary,
it is not considered to result in a material alteration to highway issues and as such these
previous comments are still considered relevant and stated:

"Whilst | note that vehicles would have to either reverse into or out of the driveway to the
proposed dwelling, this arrangement is typical of many residential properties. | therefore
conclude that acceptable access with adequate visibility in both directions would be
achieved. | also note that the Council's Highway Engineer raised no concerns in relation to
the proposed access. In light of the above and given that one extra dwelling would not
significantly add to existing traffic flows | conclude that the proposal would not be
detrimental to pedestrian and highway safety."

Therefore the proposal is considered to comply with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).
7.11 Urban design, access and security

See Section 7.07
7.12 Disabled access

Disabled access will be provided at ground floor via a level threshold and there would be a
wheelchair accessible WC on the ground floor. This is considered to satisfy Lifetime
Homes standards. Therefore the proposal would comply with Policy 3A.4 of the London
Plan and the Council's HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

This is not applicable to this application
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

The Council's Trees and Landscape Section have been consulted on the application and
consider that whilst there are a few trees on and close to site, none of them are protected
by TPO or Conservation Area designations, nor do they justify protection at this time.
However, it is considered that there is scope for additional landscaping and thus conditions
requiring this are recommended.

Therefore the scheme is considered acceptable in landscape terms and would comply
with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Polices, September
2007).

Sustainable waste management

Section 4.40 - 4.41 of the SPD: Residential layouts deals with waste management and
specifies bin stores should be provided for, and wheelie bin stores should not be further
than 9m from the edge of the highway. No details have been provided in this respect.
However, the waste and recycling officer was consulted and recommended that food
waste grinders should be included as standard as part of the kitchen sink unit, and the
dwelling should incorporate in their design adequate storage provision refuse and recycling.
Therefore if members wish to approve this application it is considered these matters could
be dealt with by way of a condition/informative.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: Residential Layouts: Section
4.9 and Policy 4A.3 of the London Plan (2008).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposal is not within a flood plain, however, a number of concerns from local
residents have been raised with regard to the existing sewerage system in the locality and
land drainage problems. This matter was considered by a previous inspector's decision in
relation to application 56032/APP/2005/1287 (April 2007), for a four bedroom house on this
site. The conclusion was drawn that these matters could be adequately dealt with by way
of appropriate planning condition requiring the submission of suitable schemes for approval
by the Local Planning Authority. As such, if members wish to approve this application it is
recommended the above approach is taken to deal with this issue.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

This is not applicable to this application
Comments on Public Consultations

The following points raised are not material to the planning consideration of this application;
2,9,10,13, 15, 25, 27, 29, 30, 32, 40, 42, 46 and 50. With regard to the other points;

6 and 53 - The roof space has now been clarified and is now shown as a study

16 and 52 - A survey drawing has been received of No.65 Lowlands Road, which shows
the proposal to be lower than this property, this drawing was prepared by an independent
company and has been checked by officers.

18 - Tree and landscape advice has been sought from internal landscape officers and is
included in this report.

21 - The inspectors' decision in relation to application 56032/APP/2005/1287, for a four
bedroom house on this site, stated "I do not consider that the erection of a property on this
site would pose a security risk.'

26 - Baroness Andrews, Planning Ministers statement published in the Daily Telegraph.
Whilst, yes it is correct that Planning Authorities have the ability to set local policies that
protect gardens from developments and separate them from wider brownfield sites the
London Borough of Hillingdon does not currently have such a policy and therefore this

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



application is required to be assessed against the currently adopted policies and guidance
which would not preclude a development of this nature.

31 - Revised drawings have been received to address omissions/errors in the originally
submitted plans.

34 - The inspectors' decision in relation to application 56032/APP/2005/1287, for a four
bedroom house on this site, stated "I do not consider that the erection of a property on this
site would be detrimental to local wildlife given the limited scale of the proposal.’

38 - The internal dimensions of the garage exceed the minimum requirements and the
plant for the Ground Source Heating System is shown in the garage area.

43 - The law does not prohibit the planting of hedges adjacent to boundaries, but provides
redress if these then become a nuisance.

48 - The area on the frontage adjacent to the footpath would be a front garden, and the
footprint of the proposed dwelling has now been sited further back in the site to allow for a
5.7m driveway.

The remaining points are addressed in the full report.
7.20 Planning Obligations

Presently S106 contributions for education are only sought for developments if the net gain
of habitable rooms exceeds six. This proposal shows the creation of a private house with a
net gain of 10 rooms and therefore the Director of Education has suggested a contribution
of £15,492 would be appropriate for this development, towards Nursery, Primary,
Secondary and Post-16 education facilities in the Eastcote and East Ruislip Ward.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

This is not applicable to this application
7.22 Other Issues

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal is not considered to detract from the visual amenities of the street scene or
the amenities of adjoining residents. It provides a satisfactory form of accommodation for
future residents and would not prejudice highway and pedestrian safety. The proposal is
considered to satisfy the relevant policies of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007). As
such approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007
HDAS: Residential Layouts: July 2006

The London Plan (2008)

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Educational Facilities

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



Appeal Decision i

Temple Quay House

) L. 2 The Square
Site visit made on 3 March 2009 Temple Quay
Bristol BS1 6PN

. @ 0117 372 6372
_ o, by David Ward BSc(HONS) CEng MICE email:enquiries@pins.gsi.g
Yor0prn 6% FIHT ov.uk

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State Decision date:
for Communities and Local Government 3 April 2009

%
O

Appeal Ref: APP/R5510/A/08/2089531
Land to the rear and forming part of 63,65 and 67 Lowlands Road,
Eastcote, HAS 1TY

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a failure to give notice within the prescribed period of a decision on an
application for planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr Tarlochan Ghataorhe against the Council of the London
Borough of Hillingdon.

The application Ref 56032/APP/2008/2417, is dated 14 August 2008.

The development proposed is the development of a four bedroom detached house with
integral garage and off street parking with new and independent cross over from
Lowlands Road.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Site history

2. A report by the Council sets out the results of 5 applications for development

on this site, or one approximating to it. All were refused. Three of these
refusals were appealed?, all of which were dismissed. During the course of the
appeals certain principles have been established relating to the site, as follows:

(a) the site is suitable to accommodate development of the general scale
proposed;

(b) the separation between the proposed dwelling and others in the area
would prevent any undue dominance or disturbance;

(c) it is possible to design to preclude overlooking;
(d) a safe and workable access can be achieved

(e) the character of the area is not formed by the widespread presence of
dormer windows.

(f) whilst imaginative design should be encouraged, this should not be at
the expense of the living conditions of occupiers

(g) the backland location is a sensitive one, particularly with regard to the
effect of the roof on the character of the area.

(h) the area is not designated for its special character.

! APP/R5510/A/04/1156854 22 February 2005; APP/R5510/A/05/1176150 13 July 2005;
APP/R5510/A/06/20298089 19 April 2007

Page 107



Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/08/2089531

Reasons

3.

I do not propose to make an exhaustive comparison between the appeal
proposal and those considered earlier. Nor have I carried out an examination of
other developments in the wider locality, since their contexts are different, and
they may or may not be examples of the high quality development which the
Government now seeks. This proposal has to be acceptable on its own merits,
in the light of local policies and any other material considerations. The first
considerations which I apply are those which I have set out above.

The Council, whilst not having determined the application before the appeal
was made, nevertheless gave it a full consideration, taking into account the
history, and concluded that permission should be refused for three reasons
which I summarise as the development being sited, and having a design, size
and bulk out of scale and being visually over dominant in a backland position,
detrimental to the character and visual amenity of the locality; that the
closeness of the dining room to the boundary would lead to a poor environment
for the occupiers of the dwelling; and that no contribution has been secured
towards the provision of school places.

It is clear that the last is not being pursued. The first reason for refusal relates
to one main consideration - that the immediately preceding Inspector
considered that the large expanse of roof would appear bulky and imposing;
and that the irregular shaped roof coupled with the irregular fenestration would
make the dwelling appear cumbersome and out of keeping. It would be a
discordant feature, in stark contrast to the simplicity of the existing dwellings.
This consideration is the first issue I address.

The proposed dwelling would be most readily visible from the north east, where
a frontal view would present itself along Lowlands Road, and from the south
east, where the view would be oblique, taking in the front and deep side
elevation at once. The principal context for the development would be the
openness of the rear gardens of Lowlands Road, and of dwellings in Abbotsbury
Gardens, whose rear gardens end at Lowlands Road in front of the site. The
eye also takes in Nos 65 and 67 Lowlands Road, which are simple buildings
with hipped roofs, and white painted rendered walls. Windows reflect that
simplicity. Rear offshoots at ground floor level only have sloping roofs. No 67
has an extension over its garage, which reflects the simplicity of the original
design. Approaching from the north east the flank of No 82, and the frontage of
properties on this part of Lowlands Road provide further context. These are
brick built dwellings, more opulent in design, with substantial overhanging
hipped gables to rounded bay windows. There are occasional shallow dormers,
again with hipped roofs. However, I agree with my colleague that the simpler
dwellings are the principal built feature, and that this site is a sensitive one.

It appears to me that the architect of the appeal proposal has failed to
understand the importance of the context. Whilst studiously achieving many of
the parameters of height, depth and roof pitch which make up local character,
there has been a failure to maintain the simplicity of approach. This to my
mind is of fundamental importance because of the scale of the building
proposed, but would be important in any building. The design employs some
features which are redolent of nearby dwellings, but the differences in wall
treatment, division of windows, and the variety in scale of dormer windows,

Page 108



Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/08/2089531

10.

gables and roof lights neglect the need identified by my colleague to avoid
irregularity and cumbersome scale. I accept that some features could be
precluded by planning condition, but it is not possible to carry out the redesign
necessary in a planning appeal decision.

The Council’s second objection relates to the closeness of the dining room
window to the boundary fence. One of my colleagues identified the need for a
balance between the ability of an architect to produce imaginative design, and
the need to provide good living conditions. This is not such a balance, since
this part of the design is ordinary. It proposes a dining room window on the
north west flank of the dwelling slightly more than 1m from the boundary
fence. A 2m boarded fence is shown, and it is to be expected that residents of
the adjacent properties would maintain or plant screening, since they object to
the proposal. The probability is that this room would be gloomy in winter. The
requirements for lighting would be increased, depending upon the use of the
room. Unnecessary energy use would run counter to the need for sustainable
development. Given the requirements to use low consumption light sources,
and the comparatively low energy use for light in a room such as this, which
may be used for perhaps two hours in an evening, I do not consider that the
undoubted conflict with the policies of the London Plan would be so great as to
dictate refusal. The Appellant’s offer to remove the intervening wall between
the lounge and the dining room would improve the access of light, although
this would be limited by the northerly aspect of the lounge and the depth of the
room.

Many representations made in the appeal consider that the closeness of the
proposal to the boundary would lead to a cramped design. Whilst I agree that
this would be the case, it seems to me that the principal objection to the
proposal is its overall bulk when seen from the south east and the fussiness of
the design. A smaller scale dwelling could sit more comfortably within the
space available, but it is the shortcomings in the design of the appeal proposal
have led me to dismiss the appeal. None of the many other objections which
have been made alter my conclusions.

PPS1 advises of the critical importance of pre-application discussions, and that
Local Planning Authorities and applicants should take a positive attitude
towards early engagement in pre-application discussions. It appears to me
that this advice has not been sufficiently heeded. Iteration of design through
appeal is unsatisfactory, and leads to unnecessary public disquiet. I commend
the Government’s advice in this instance.

David Ward

Inspector

Page 109



A ) b VR PPN The Planning Ingnectorate
< P The Planning Inspectorate
Appceal oeniuil 4/11 Eagle Wing
Temple Quay House
. .. 2 The Square
Site visit made on 13 March 2007 Temple Quay
Bristol BS1 6PN
® 0117 372 6372
e-mail: enquiries@planning-
inspectorate.gsi.gov.uk

by Karen L Ridge LLB (Hons)

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Date: 19 April 2007

Communities and Local Government

2 % Y1 Vi T s

Land to the rear of 63, 65 and 67 Lowlands Road, Eastcote, Middlesex HA5 1TY

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a refusal to
grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr T S Ghataorhe against the decision of the Council of the London Borough
of Hillingdon.

o The application Ref 56032/APP/2005/1287, dated 18 April 2005, was refused by notice dated
21 April 2006.

o The development proposed is the erection of 1 no. four bedroom detached house with integral garage
and off-street parking.

Summary of Decision: The appeal is dismissed.

Main
aix

iva i

eeNnag
DU

1. T consider that there are two main issues in this case, namely;

(i) the effect of the proposed dwelling on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, and
(i)  the effect of the proposed dwelling on pedestrian and highway safety.

Planning Policy

2. The development plan for the area includes the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) which was adopted in 1998. Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new
development harmonises with and complements the existing area. Policy H12 providees
that backland development in residential areas will only be permitted if it does not cause
disturbance or loss of privacy. UDP policy AM7 aims to prevent development which would
prejudice highway or pedestrian safety.

3. In addition I have had regard to the principles of good design enunciated in Planning Policy
Statement 1- Delivering Sustainable Development (PPS 1) and the imperative to make more
efficient use of land contained within Planning Policy Statement 3- Housing (PPS 3).

Reasons
Effect on the character and appearance of the surrounding area

e

The appeal site comprises part of the rear gardens of three properties on Lowlands Road.
The site has been the subject of previous applications and two separate appeal decisions
relating to different proposals. The proposal which led to this appeal sought to address the

concerns of a previous Inspector. In making my decision I have had regard to both of the

nrevious anneal decisions
DPEY T AY SN Ry TS T T AV ARsAse.

Page 110



Lowlands Road is an attractive 1930s residential street with an S shaped bend after no. 67
which is the point from where access to the site would be taken. The properties on
Lowlands Road comprise uniform semi-detached dwellings which are modest properties
with simple rooflines. The new dwelling would be located in a prominent position and
would form part of the Lowlands Road streetscene. Whilst the appeal site is large enough
to accommodate a dwelling, due to the visible location and the existing quality of the
surrounding area, it is important that any new dwelling is visually assimilated into the

Whilst the number of ridges, dormer and skylight windows in the roof have been reduced,
the roofscape remains relatively complex in contrast to the more modest properties which
would surround it. This would be particularly apparent in relation to the south eastern
elevation which would be highly visible when rounding the bend in Lowlands Road and
from vantage points between the houses and from within gardens. This south eastern
elevation would be some 15m long with a large expanse of roof which woul

and visuallv i 1mnnq1n0 The n'rpcmlar shapned roof co

G VISLQIl)Y P Osili [ - Awr

this elevation, would make the dwelling appear

of co plpd with the irr egnlar
cumbersome and out of keeping. I consider
. o
w

t tn the qi
LW ulv o1

=
5 &
=

ity nf t
Ly Ul ul

As a result of the foregoing, I conclude that the proposed dwelling would not be readily
assimilated into the existing streetscene. It would be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the surrounding area and therefore contrary to UDP policies BE13 and BE19.

Effect on pedestrian and highway safety

8.

1 have paid careful regard to the numerous representations regarding concerns about
highway and pedestrian safety. I am aware of the location of the nearby primary school and
have seen representations regarding parking on this part of Lowlands Road and the
congestion which occurs at the beginning and end of the school day. I have also seen the
traffic surveys which have been carried out. I consider it unlikely that highway users would
park their cars so as to obstruct the access to the proposed property. Whilst I note that
vehicles would have to either reverse into or out of the driveway to the proposed dwelling,
this is an arrangement which is typical of many residential properties. I therefore conclude
that acceptable access with adequate visibility in both directions could be achieved.

I also note that the Council’s Highway Engineer raised no concerns in relation to the
proposed access. In light of the above and given that one extra dwelling would not
significantly add to existing traffic flows I conclude that the proposal would not be
detrimental to pedestrian and highway safety. I therefore conclude that the proposal would
be in conformity with UDP policy AM7.

Other Matters

10. A number of other concerns have been raised by third parties, which include comments

about the disruption caused by the construction, by the appeliant, of another property at 41
Rushdene Road. This is not a matter which is material to my consideration of this appeai.
In the event that I was minded to allow the appeal, I consider that concerns regarding the
sewerage system and drainage provision could be dealt with by appropriate conditions
requiring the submission of suitable schemes for approval.

Page 111



11. T do not consider that the erection of a property on this site would pose a security risk or
would be detrimental to local wildlife given the limited scale of the proposal. The question
of any restrictive covenants is a separate legal matter which is not material to my
deliberations. The Town and Country Planning legislation permits planning applications
on land by someone other than the existing owner. The Council have accepted the proposal
on the basis made and there is no suggestion that it is an attempt to circumvent policies
which would require payment of monies under a section 106 obligation.

12. The proposed dwelling would be sited about 1m from the boundary with nos. 100 and 102
Abbotsbury Gardens. However, I consider that the separation distances between the facing
elevations of these existing properties and that which is proposed, are such that there would
not be any significant loss of residential amenity either by virtue of loss of light or harm to
the outlook of existing occupiers. The obscure glazing of first floor windows could be
conditioned so as to protect the privacy of existing occupiers.

Conclusions

13. T have taken into account all other matters raised, including the previous recommendation
by the Council for approval. Whilst I have found in favour in relation to the proposal on
highway safety issues and in relation to a number of other matters raised I consider that the
harm which would be caused to the character and appearance of the surrounding area is
overriding. Since there are no conditions which could overcome the harm to the
streetscene, the appeal must be dismissed.

Formal Decision

1QIMIIQQ armIman

tha 1
QiSiiiss uiC appclai.

et
2

Karen L Ridge

INSPECTOR

Page 112



N

F s e

Appe al D eClSl()ll The Planning Inspectorate

4j08 Kite Wing
. .. Temple Quay House

Site visit made on 15 June 2005 2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol BS1 6PN
®0117 3726372

by C J Leigh BSc(tons) MPhil MRTPI emal: enquires@pianning-
inspectorate.gsi.gov.uk

an Inspector appointed by the First Secretary of State Date
p PP Y Y 13 3uL 2605

Appeal Ref: APP/R5510/A/05/1176150

Land rear of 63, 65 & 67 Lowlands Road, Eastcote, Pinner, Middlesex, HAS 1TY

* The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a refusal
to grant planning permission,

* The appeal is made by Mr T S Ghataorhe against the decision of the Council of the London
Borough of Hillingdon.

* The application ref: 56032/APP/2004/3302, dated 6 December 2004, was refused by notice dated
31 January 2005.

¢ The development proposed is the erection of a four bedroom detached house with integral garage,

Formal Decision

1. Idismiss the appeal.

Reasons for Decision

2. The appeal site has been the subject of a number of proposals for residential development
in the past, most recently an appeal for one house that was dismissed in February 2005 (ref.
APP/R5510/A/04/1156854). In his decision, the Inspector commented that the general
height and siting of the house on the land would retain the overall open character of the
locality. I come to similar conclusions with regards to the scheme before me: sufficient
distance would be retained to the site boundaries and to other buildings in the area to
ensure a cramped form would not result.

3. The previous Inspector did, though, find that the proposed roof was bulky and complex.
Although evidently modified from the previous scheme, I come to similar conclusions with
the current appeal. The footprint of the proposed dwelling is relatively complex and large.
As a result, there still remains multiple hips in the roof form and this is combined with a
central flat roof, which appears to me to have been incorporated to reconcile the use of
extensive roof slopes and hips over the large building. There is also a substantial dormer on
the front elevation which, as the Council points out, dominates the front roof slope,
particularly due to the small distance retained to the ridge height. Eight rooflights are
proposed in the property to serve what would clearly be further accommodation within the
attic space. In my view, this creates a cluttered appearance to the roof slopes.

4. ]saw at my site visit that the existing properties in this suburban area are relatively modest
and are simple in form, with simple hipped roofs. In my opinion, the bulk of the proposed
dwelling and its associated complex and cluttered roof form would represent an
unaccepiabie comirast o this characier in a particulariy visible focation. This would be
contrary to the objectives of Policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan 1998.

5. Inote objections regarding overlooking of adjoining properties. The submitted plans show

that on the side elevations the windows above the level of proposed new fencing would be
obscure glazed or would be rooflights. T consider these measures sufficient to protect

Page 113



Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/05/1176150

b_,.
t

privacy. Similarly, I consider the length of the proposed rear garden to be adequate to
ensure no undue overlooking to the west, and the distance retained to existing properties to
the east would also be adequate to protect privacy. Although views from existing houses
would change as a result of the proposed development, I concur with the previous Inspector
that the development would be far enough away to ensure there would be no undue
disturbance or over-dominant effect.

6. Comments have been made as to the effect of the proposal on highway safety in the area.
The proposal would meet the Council’s requirements regarding parking provision and
access. Although it is evident to me from representations that Lowlands Road can be busy
at times, in my opinion the access to the site would be satisfactory for the additional traffic
generated by one house. The similar comments by the previous Inspector and the
Highways Authority lend weight to such an opinion.

7. Although I have found in favour of the appeal in scveral respects, it is my overall
conclusion that the earlier harm I have identified is sufficient to withhold planning
permission. I have dismissed the appeal accordingly.

(S lan

INSPECTOR

Page 114



. & - O in orate
Appeal Decision |oNB0R0 0F HLLINGDOMpumg s

Site visit made on 8 February 2045 ' :
Brispl BS1 6PN
23FEB 205 TR
by M A Hi[lye]' BSc MSc CEng CE FCIWEM e-mgl: enquiries@planning-

inspdctorate.gsi.gov.uk

an Inspector appointed by the First Sefretary of SttONMENTAL  Date '
SERVICES SROUT o' FEB 7005
- SERVE

Appeal Reference: APP/R5510/A/04/1156854 .
Land to the rear of 63, 65 and 67 Lowlands Road, Eastcote, Pinner, Middlesex HAS 1TY

» The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a refusal to
grant planning permission.

¢ The appeal is made by Mr T S Ghataorhe against the decision of the Council of the London Borough
of Hillingdon.

* The application Reference 56032/APP/2004/976, dated 1 April 2004, was refused by notice dated 13
July 2004. - ! _

¢ The development proposed is described as the erection of 1 No. five bedroom detached house with
footprint of 24% of plot size.

Summary of Decision: The appeal is dismissed.
Procedural Matters

1. Inthe interests of clarification I confirm that the written statements submitted for the appeal
contain many references to procedures for dealing with planning applications and the
Council’s handling of this and previous applications. These are not matters for my
consideration, and I shall make my determination on that basis.

Main Issues

2. From my reading of the written representations and inspection of the site ‘and its.
surroundings, I consider that there two main issues in this appeal. The first is the effect of
the proposed development on the character and appearance of the surrounding area, and the
second is the effect on the living conditions of adjacent occupiers, particularly those in Nos.
96 to 104 Abbotsbury Gardens, with regard to visual impact and privacy.

Planning Policy Context

3. The development plan for the area is the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan 1998
(UDP). Policy Part 1.10 of the UDP states that development will not adversely affect the
amenity and character of residential areas. UDP Policy BE19 says that development must
complement or improve the amenity and character of residential areas. UDP Policy H12
explains that tandem or backland residential development will only be permitted if there is
no undue disturbance or loss of privacy to adjoining occupiers. Supplementary Planning

" Guidance (SPG) is available in the form of the Council’s 1999 design guide-Residential
Layouts and House Design. Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) 3-Housing sets out the
government’s objectives of making more efficient use of land for housing without
compromising the environment. The recently published Planning Policy Statement (PPS)
1-Delivering Sustainable Development sets out key principles for development planning.

Page 115



Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/04/1156854

Consideration

4,

The site is part of the rear gardens of Nos. 63, 65 and 67 Lowlands Road. It is an element
of a 1930s suburban residential area with spacious frontages and large open back gardens
dotted with trees and boundary plantings. House types are varied, with short terraces as
well as detached and semi-detached dwellings, and the area retains its original character,
including the predominance of unmodified hipped roofs. »

The First Issue

5.

The development would replace garden land with a five-bedroom house on three levels, a
surrounding garden area and an access onto Lowlands Road. The mass of the building up to
eaves level and the overall height would be little different to that of nearby built forms of
semis and terraces. The development would be far enough away from existing dwellings to
ensure that it would not appear cramped and the front and side separation distances would
be no less than exist elsewhere in the vicinity. The remaining openness would be sufficient

to retain that element of the character of the locality. e

The roof of the dwelling would appear bulky and complex, in contrast to, and not in
keeping with, existing roofs in the area. Because of the footprint of the building the roof
would have multiple hips, and the contrast would be intensified in particular by the large
rear dormer with its uncomplementary flat roof, and by the seven roof lights. PPS 1 states
that Councils, while not attempting to impose architectural styles or tastes on developers,
should seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness, and the development would not
achieve this in the context of its roof forms and fenestration. The roof would be clearly
visible from a number of angles in Lowlands Road and from many private viewpoints

_across rear gardens, to the extent that it would appear unacceptably out of keeping in what

is a sensitive part-backland location.

I saw on my site visit that there are examples of rear roof dormers in the vicinity, but not to
the extent that they influence the area’s character. They are not a good reason for allowing .
an unacceptable development. I also saw a rear garden development nearby in The Link:
similar to the proposal, but each case must be considered on its merits. 1 conclude on’
balance on this issue that the proposed development would harm the character and

_ appearance of the surrounding area and would conflict with UDP Policies Part 1.10 and

BE19 in this respect.

The Second Issue
- 8.

With regard to the matter of privacy, windows in the new house facing northwards would
be set below the top level of a close boarded fence, or would be obscure glazed, or would be
roof lights facing skywards. There would therefore be no lines of sight from these windows
towards houses or gardens in Abbotsbury Road, and therefore no overlocking. The
separation distances between properties in clear window views from other vantage points
within the development would ensure no intrusion of privacy.

On the matter of visual impact, the development would be clearly visible from the houses
and gardens of Abbotsbury Road, and also from properties in Lowlands Road. The
development would change views in the area but there is no right to a view, and the
development would be far enough away from adjacent houses and garden areas to ensure
that it would not cause undue disturbance, dominate views or result in unacceptably

Page 116




14

4

&

9
- e

rd
]

R

Appeal Decision APP/R5510/A/04/1156854

overbearing conditions. There is an element of plant screening in some of the Abbotsbury
gardens and occupiers would have the potential to increase that if they wished. 1 conclude
on this issue that the proposed development would not be harmful to the living conditions
of adjacent occupiers, there would be no undue disturbance, and it and would comply in this
respect with UDP Policies Part 1.10, BE19 and H12.

Other Matters

10.

11.

12.

In other representations concern has been expressed regarding highway safety and
congestion. The proposal would meet the requirements for on-site parking and acceptable
access and highway visibility could be secured. The development would not increase local
traffic flow significantly, there being only one dwelling unit. There are no traffic
restrictions in the immediate vicinity of the site and the highway authority has not objected
to the development. I consider that there would be no harm in respect of highway matters.

Matters relating to construction details, local covenants and drainage details are best dealt
with by legislation other than the Town & Country Planning Act 1990. There are no

-proposals for development of the site to be considered at the present time by anyone other

than those of the Appellant.

I note that the dormer window facing west, in the roof, would be obscure glazed. This

. would provide light to a bedroom but that room would have no clear-glazed vertical

13.

windows. In my.view that would be a strain on the living conditions of the occupiers of the
room. Paragraph 54 of PPG 3 indicates that developers should be afforded some latitude in
their design and layout details, and imaginative design should be encouraged, but that
should not be at the expense of living conditions or the quality of the environment. 1
believe that this design detail, although not significantly harmful or a reason on its own for
refusal of permission, would be detrimental to the living conditions of the new occupiers.

Conclusions

Drawing together my findings in this appeal, I conclude that the development would result: -
in no harm in relation to the Second Issue and no significant harm in relation to Other -
Matters, but this does not outweigh the harm identified in the First Issue. ‘1 have considered
the conditions suggested by the Council but imposition of any or ali of these would not be
sufficient to allow the grant of permission. I have taken into account all other matters
raised in the written representations, including the recommendation of approval of the
proposal by Council officers, but none is sufficient to override the considerations which
have led to my decision.

Formal Deciston

14.

In exercise of the powers transferred to me I dismiss the éppeal.

INSPECTOR.

Page 117



y
N

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

Land at rear and forming part of
63, 65, 67 Lowlands Road

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
56032/APP/2009/967

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Committee

NorthPage 118

Date
September 2009

LONDON




Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group

Address 33 PARKFIELD ROAD ICKENHAM
Development: Single storey brick outbuilding to rear for use as shed.

LBH Ref Nos: 40891/APP/2009/1338

Drawing Nos: 1:1250 site location plan
09/2494/9 Rev A
09/2494/8
Arboricultural Survey and Report

Date Plans Received: 19/06/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/07/2009

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application site comprises a building plot, with a recently approved, partially
constructed, detached dwelling on the south west side of Parkfield Road. To the south east
of the site are two detached new dwellings of a similar size and design as the property
currently under construction. To the northwest, is no0.35, which is a bungalow. The road is
characterised by detached properties, mainly bungalows, although there are two storey
developments visible within the street scene. The site is within a developed area as
identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies September
2007).

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a detached, brick built,
outbuilding to the rear of the property, adjacent to the shared boundary with No.35. The
building would be 4m wide and 6.5m deep, finished with a hipped roof at a maximum height
of 4m.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
40891/APP/2009/1051 33 Parkfield Road Ickenham
Demolition of bungalow (Application for Prior Notification for proposed demolition)

Decision Date: 08-06-2009 Withdrawn Appeal:
40891/APP/2009/280 33 Parkfield Road Ickenham

Erection of two-storey 3 bed detached dwelling with associated parking, installation of new
vehicular crossover (involving demolition of existing dwelling)

Decision Date: 05-06-2009 Approved Appeal:
Comment on Planning History
None
2, Advertisement and Site Notice

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
3. Comments on Public Consultations
External:

10 neighbours, the Parkfield Road/Oak Avenue Petition Group, and Ickenham Residents
Association consulted and 5 letters and a petition with 28 signatures received making the
following comments:

1. We object to the outbuilding, its situation midway down the garden, adjacent to the fence
and would set a precedent, as all other sheds are either next to the house or at the bottom
of the garden;

2. The height, width, and depth would dominate the adjacent rear gardens;

3. The application is misleading as in one document it is called a shed and in another a
garage;

4. The site plan is inaccurate regarding No.35 (neighbouring property);

5. The shed will be an eyesore to no.35;

6. This proposal was removed from the original application at the officer's advice;

7. The size and construction materials mean this will be a permanent building, which will
be inappropriate and out of keeping in the area;

8 The size of the building is far bigger than that normally associated with a normal
residential house;

9. Due to its design, with garage type door, WC, water and sewerage connection, it would
suggest more of a workshop, than a shed;

10. Not just the intensions of use of the current owner, but also any future owner should be
considered;

11. The building would be over twice the height of the adjacent fence;

12. Due to the height the building would obstruct sunlight entering a large part of the rear
garden;

13. The building would exceed the permitted development allowances and therefore should
be moved further from the boundary or reduced to comply with permitted development
guidance;

14. The inclusion of a toilet, washroom, electricity, is unpalatable especially if we are sitting
in the garden, when the toilet is being used;

15. The proposal would infringe UDP Policies BE19, BE20, and BE21;

16. If permission were to be issued, | strongly request conditions are imposed regarding,
no business use, car parking or conversion to habitable use;

17. The arboriculturalist states any buildings should be at least 14m from any trees over
300yrs, it is not clear from the plans whether this is the case, but 20m would be more
appropriate given the foundations that would be required;

18. The outbuilding is acceptable providing no sewage services are laid or it can be open to
habitable accommodation in the future.

Officer comment - with regard to point 6, the proposal was removed from the original
scheme as further information was required in relation to the impact on nearby trees, and
this matter has now been addressed. The other comments are addressed in the body of
the report.

Internal:

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



Trees and Landscape Officer

Although there are a few trees on and close to site, there is only one protected Scots Pine
(T5 on TPO 514) located in the rear garden of no.35, in proximity of the proposed works.
The site frontage is dominated by an ornamental tree, landscaping and some hardstanding.
An Arboricultural Report has been submitted with this application.

| agree with the conclusions of the Arboricultural Report, however, if a path is constructed
to the shed, then a no-dig method must be applied to avoid damage to the RPA of nearby
trees, especially T5 on TPO 514.

In order to safeguard the valuable trees and shrubs of the proposed site during the
construction period, it is advisable to place a temporary protective fence in the rear garden,
protecting the trees from construction related activity eg. storage of materials and to
contain the working space close to the proposed shed. This matter can be dealt with by
way of condition TL3.

Subject to tree protection measures, it is considered that the proposed development would
not be detrimental to the health and public amenity value of the valuable trees, hedges and
landscaping features on and close to the site.

Overall, the scheme makes provision for the long-term retention of the valuable trees,
hedges on and close to the site. Subject to conditions TL2 (..."in accordance with drawing
no. 09/2494/9A Rev A'...), TL3 (modified to include 'trees in the rear garden only'), TL5
(modified to include details on no-dig/porous surfacing only) and TL6, the scheme is
acceptable and, in tree preservation and landscape terms, complies with policy BE38 of
the Saved policies UDP.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Extensions

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main considerations are design and impact upon the dwelling, the wider locality, and
the impact upon the amenities of adjoining occupiers, and car parking considerations.

Policy BE13 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) states development will not be
permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the existing street scene and
policy BE19 states development within residential areas should compliment or improve the
amenity and character of the area. The Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD): Residential Extensions: Section 9.0 states
detached outbuildings should minimize any overshadowing and loss of daylight and they
must also leave a practical amount of garden space and respect the design and
appearance of the existing house.

With regard to the impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties, the SPD:
Residential Extensions, Section 9.2 states in order to prevent over shadowing of adjoining
houses and patios, any detached outbuildings should be positioned as far away from the
house as possible and that they should be set in by at least 0.5m from the shared
boundary. The site layout/block plan submitted with the application shows the proposed
garage 0.9m away from the shared boundary and therefore would comply with this advice.
Section 9.3 states that if a pitched roof is to be used it should not exceed 4m in height and
at 4m the proposal would comply with this advice. As such, it is not considered that the
proposal would have a material impact on the neighbouring property, particularly given that
the roof would be hipped away from the shared boundary. Therefore the proposal would
comply with policies BE20 and BE21 of the UDP (Shared Policies September 2007).

The SPD: Residential Extensions, Section 9.3 states that windows should only be placed
on the elevation facing the owners' main house and the proposal would comply with this
advice as no openings would face the adjacent shared boundary. It is therefore considered
that the proposal would comply with policy BE24 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

With regard to design and appearance, the roof of the proposed garage would mirror the
design of the host dwelling and the materials to be used are of a similar nature to that of the
original house. It is considered that the size, scale, design and appearance of the proposed
outbuilding would be in-keeping with the original dwelling and the wider area. Therefore the
proposal would comply with policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the UDP (Saved Policies
September 2007) and Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions

With regard to the impact on existing trees and landscaping the Council's Tree and
Landscape Officer states that although there are a few trees on and close to site, there is
only one protected Scots Pine (T5 on TPO 514) located in the rear garden of no.35, in
proximity of the proposed works. The site frontage is dominated by an ornamental tree,
landscaping and some hardstanding. The tree officer agrees with the conclusions of the
submitted Arboricultural Report but recommends a number of conditions relating to the
protection of existing trees during construction. Overall, therefore the scheme makes
provision for the long-term retention of the valuable trees and hedges on and close to the
site and is considered to comply with policy BE38 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

A garden of more than 100 sq m would be retained and therefore would comply with Policy
BE23 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

With regard to car parking, the proposal would not alter the existing situation and therefore

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



adequate provision would remain and the development would comply with policy AM14 of
the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 OM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

3 M2 External surfaces to match existing building

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used on the existing property, No. 33 Parkfield Road.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

4 RPD1 No Additional Windows or Doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

5 RPD13 Restrictions on outbuildings

The outbuilding hereby approved shall only be used for the purpose(s) stated on the
application form and approved drawings and shall not be used for purposes such as ¢
living room, bedroom, kitchen, study or as a separate unit of accommodation.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



REASON

To avoid any future fragmentation of the curtilage or the creation of a separate residential
use, so as to protect the amenity of adjoining residential properties in accordance with
Policy BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
September 2007.

6 TL2 Trees to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained in accordance with approved drawing no.
09/2494/9A Rev A shall not be damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the
prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be planted
at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the completion
of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out to
BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the development
or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

7 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees in the rear garden, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to
the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the approved
protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and in
particular in these areas:

1. There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2. No materials or plant shall be stored;

3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 TL5 Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

- Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts,

- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage, power
cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

-details on no-dig/porous surfacingy,

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

9 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding seasons
following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever
is the earlier period.

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or in
the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased shall
be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree, shrub or
area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning Authority
first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



(September 2007).

10 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

The path to be constructed to the shed, shall use a no-dig method to avoid damage to the
Root Protection Area of nearby trees, especially T5 on Tree Preservation Order No 514.

REASON

To ensure that trees to be retained are not damaged during construction work and to
ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material considerations,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance:

Policy No.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision
of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Extensions

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the

approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
- carry out work to an existing party wall;
- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining

building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.
The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by
the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning & Community Services Reception
Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 35/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

33 Parkfield Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
40891/APP/2009/1338 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 129 November 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

4

y 60
HNILLINGDON

LONDGN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 126-128 HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Part change of use of Nos.126-128 from Class A2 (Financial and Professiona
Services) to Class D2 (Assembly and Leisure) for use as a bingo hall
(licensed under the 2005 Gaming Act) and alterations to front of No.128.

LBH Ref Nos: 3874/APP/2009/1837

Drawing Nos: AB-RUI-126-002 Rev. E
Design and Access Statement
Additional Information by Letter dated 14th August 200

Date Plans Received:  20/08/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/09/2009
1. SUMMARY

Whilst, it is accepted the proposal would bring a vacant unit back into use, the proposed
use would not be considered acceptable within a Primary Shopping Area and as such
would further undermine the retail function of the area and consequently its vitality and
viability to the detriment of the Local Community. It is considered that the proposed
change of use would be contrary to policy S11 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed use is not a use that is considered acceptable within a primary shopping
area and the proposal would thus result in a use which neither complements or
contributes to the attractiveness of the primary shopping area of the Ruislip Town centre.
It is therefore considered that the use would be detrimental to the vitality and viability of the
primary shopping area of the Ruislip Town centre contrary to Policy S11 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas
3

Had the application not been refused then further details would have been sought with
regard to the proposed internal floor layout of the area to remain in A2 use and whether
adequate facilities would be provided for that unit.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south west side of the High Street and comprises a
vacant ground floor unit in office use. The application property forms part of an end terrace
building of commercial units on the ground floor with offices or residential above. The street
scene is commercial in character and appearance. The application site lies within the
‘Primary Shopping Area' of Ruislip Town Centre and "Ruislip Village Conservation Area’, as
identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies, September
2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the change of use of the part of the ground floor from Class A2
(Financial and Professional Services - unrestricted) to Class D2 (Assembly and Leisure),
with a new doorway created to the front of No. 128.

It is proposed to revert Nos.126 and 128 back into separate units, although the floor area at
the rear of No.126 would remain with No.128, providing a floor area of 109m2 for the
proposed D2 use, and 41m2 remaining in A2 use.

5 full time staff would be employed and the proposed hours of opening would be 0900 -
2300 Monday to Saturday and 1000 - 2200 Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Mechanised and electronic bingo would be installed. Seating would also allow for paper
bingo, however, it is envisaged most games would be played on electronic bingo terminals.
Bingo would be played throughout the day and possibly linked to other bingo halls, on a
national basis.

The unit would offer its customers (and any passing adult shopper) an ancillary service of

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



freshly pre-packed snack food and hot and cold drinks. This would not be a takeaway
service and no alcohol would be served.

A window display would be provided, with a selection of priced goods for sale.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

3874/ADV/2002/76 126-128 High Street Ruislip
INSTALLATION OF INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FASCIA SIGNS

Decision: 30-08-2002 Approved

3874/ADV/2008/75 126-130 High Street Ruislip

Installation of one internally illuminated fascia sign, one internally illuminated projecting sign and
two green awnings.

Decision: 04-08-2008 Approved

3874/APP/2002/2078 126-128 High Street Ruislip
INSTALLATION OF A NEW SHOPFRONT

Decision: 25-10-2002 Approved

3874/APP/2008/1759 126-130 High Street Ruislip

Change of use of part of public highway in front of south side of premises for use as outdoor
seating area (comprising four tables and twelve chairs).

Decision: 04-08-2008 Approved

3874/APP/2008/2110 126-130 High Street Ruislip

Change of use from Class A2 to mixed Class A1/A3 use, for use as a coffee shop, and
installation of retractable awning on south elevation

Decision:

3874/D/90/1389 126-130 High Street Ruislip

Change of use from Job Centre and ancillary offices to Class A2 (Building Society) use on both
ground and first floors

Decision: 17-10-1990 GPD

3874/H/91/1367 126-130 High Street Ruislip
Change of use of first-floor A2 (financial and professional services) to Class B1 (offices)

Decision: 07-02-1992  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



None

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 28th October 2009
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 28th October 2009

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The application was given statutory site and press publicity and, 40 neighbours were consulted. A
petition of 59 signatures and 9 letters of objection have been received, which make the following
comments:

1. We object to the application as it will have an adverse impact on the character and vitality of the
Primary Shopping Area and is therefore contrary to Policy S11 of the UDP (Saved Policies)

2. The proposal will not make a positive contribution or enhancement to the character of the area
contrary to clause 8.18 of the UDP (Saved Policies)

3. There is already another amusement arcade in close proximity, at No.70 and will be one even
nearer if planning applications 34237/APP/2009/652 and 3862/APP/2009/653 (at No 80) are allowed.
4. The plans lack clarity and it is unclear what activity is proposed to take place at either Nos.126 or
128. There is no explanation of how the bingo hall is expected to operate in a small unit with the
proposed 5 members of staff

5. It is not clear what the intended opening times are, what the expected peak times, will 5 staff be
there all the time or is this a total number.

6. Are there any market research studies undertaken to give a predicted number of customers, age
profile, distance travelled and mode of transport. As this information is vital to assess the impact the
proposal would have on the amenity of the High Street. How can planning decisions be made without
more detailed background information.

7. The plans imply there would be 40 machines at the site. There is already an amusement arcade

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



at No.70 High Street that never seems to have any customers.

8. We should be encouraging more shops to trade in the High Street, with their associated benefits.
9. Policy S11 States the accepted uses in the Primary Shopping Areas, and a D2 use is not one of
these and therefore would be contrary to Policy.

10. A concern is that these premises would be licensed, and thereby out of bounds to under 18's,
which is not conducive to promoting a healthy, vibrant shopping environment.

11. There is no need for this facility and there is a bigger amusement arcade at No.70.

12. The site is within a conservation area where such outlets would not normally be permitted.

13. Even in a secondary shopping area the proposal would have to meet the tests as to whether it is
appropriate.

14. We object to the change of use as we do not think it is wanted or needed, and assume as well
as bingo there would be some gambling machines available.

15. We object to potentially 3 types of this use in the High Street, two of which in very prime
positions, as this would be harmful to the other neighbouring businesses and would change the
ambience of the street.

16. The applicants have already shown their disregard for planning conditions at their other site in
the street (No.70)

17. Class D uses and Class A2 uses, other than banks and building societies, fail to satisfy the
necessary criteria, and therefore the application should be refused.

18. It is noted there is an extant application (3874/APP/2008/2110), for a mixed A1/A3 use, and |
would consider there is a demand for this type of use, particularly with Tesco's now opening on the
adjoining site.

19. | cannot see that Ruislip would gain in any meaningful way from this proposal and a bingo hall is
likely to add to problems of noise, nuisance and litter, which will be exacerbated by its long opening
hours.

20. | except empty units are not good for the High Street, but this is not an adequate reason to
approve the application

21. A bingo hall will adversely affect the nature of the High Street to its detriment.

Crime Prevention Design Advisor - No comments received.

Internal Consultees
Conservation Officer:

This is a modern shop front within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. Following the recent
Conservation Area designation, any new development should preserve or enhance the character
and appearance of the area (PPG 15). The proposed scheme is for a change of use with the
installation of a door to No.128 along with the division back into two units. From a Conservation point
of view, there are no objections to the proposed change of use to the building. There are no shop
front changes proposed apart from the installation of the door, and there are no objections to the
same. The scheme shows a shop front display to the main window of No.126, which would be
appropriate in a conservation area.

Conclusion - Acceptable.
EPU:

I do not wish to object to this development, however should approval be recommended | would
recommend conditions relating to hours of operation, hours of delivery and waste collections, air
handling units and sound insulation as well as the construction informative.

Licensing - No comments received
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

The principle of the development

The Local Planning Authority's aim is to retain the retail function of all shopping areas to
meet the needs of the area each serves. Shops grouped conveniently together assist the
process of search for and comparison of goods and hence attract shoppers. As such the
Local Planning Authority will exercise strict control over the loss of shops to other uses.

Policy S11 establishes the criteria where service uses would be permitted in primary
shopping frontages, in order to maintain the viability of the retail function of a centre.
Subject to these criteria being met the uses considered as acceptable within shopping
frontages of primary shopping areas are retail (Class A1), banks and building Societies (but
not other Class A2 uses) and food and drink uses (Classes A3, A4 and A5). This is
reiterated in the supporting text (paragraph 8.25), which states some service uses are
appropriate and even necessary in Primary Shopping Areas. Banks, restaurants, food
takeaways, building societies are the most frequently used by shoppers, whereas estate
agents, betting shops, and places of entertainment tend not to be visited on shopping trips

Whilst it is accepted that this double unit is currently vacant, it is not considered the
proposal would comply with this policy or the advice in the supporting text. It should be
stressed that the existing vacant unit benefits from planning permission for A2 use class
(meaning it can be used for A2 or A1 uses without planning permission). It is therefore
considered that should this proposal receive consent it would have a negative effect on the
vitality and viability of this area and the proposal would not comply with Policy S11 of the
UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is within Ruislip Village Conservation Area and the Conservation Officer does not
object to the proposed change or to the only external change proposed which is the
installation of the door. Therefore the application is considered acceptable and would
comply with policy BE4 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) requires new development to
harmonise with the appearance of the existing street scene and area, and Policy BE15
requires alterations to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form, architectural
composition and proportions of the original building. With regard to the design of the new
entrance doorway proposed to No.126, this would be positioned in the place of an existing
window unit and have an aluminum frame to match. As such, it is considered that this
would be in-keeping with the overall design of the building, and harmonise with the same,
therefore in accordance with polices BE13 and BE15 of the UDP (Saved Polices
September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



7.09

710

7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted
if the impact can be mitigated. The Environmental Protection Unit has not raised an
objection to this application subject to conditions being attached to any permission granted
relating to hours of opening, hours of deliveries and waste collection, details of air handling
units and sound insulation, and subject to these conditions the proposal would accord with
policy OE1 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The site is situated on the High Street and limited on-street parking is available on both
sides of the highway. It is not considered the traffic generation between A2 and D2 uses
would be significantly different such that a refusal on this ground would be justified. The
proposal would therefore comply with policies AM7 and AM14 of the UDP (Saved Policies
September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

See Section 7.07
Disabled access

Level access will be provided at the entrance to the buildings, together with an entrance
doors having a clear minimum opening of 800mm with access pressure at the leading
edges not more than 20N pressure and a disabled WC would be provided. As such the
proposal would comply with Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and the Council's SPD HDAS:
Accessible Hillingdon.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to this application
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The site is not within a flood zone and no further drainage issues have been raised.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments received have been addressed in the main body of the report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislatior

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

Whilst, it is accepted the proposal would bring a vacant unit back into use, the proposed
use is considered to undermine the vitality and viability of the Primary Shopping Area and
therefore the range of goods and services available. As such, it is considered that the
proposed change of use would be contrary to policy S11 of the UDP (Saved Policies
September 2007).

11. Reference Documents

Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)
London Plan Policies (2008)

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

126 - 128 High Street

Ruislip

LONDON B

OROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
3874/APP/2009/1837 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 139 November 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

4

LONDGN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 290 WEST END ROAD RUISLIP
Development: Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to Class A3 (restaurants and cafes.)

LBH Ref Nos: 45677/APP/2009/1971

Drawing Nos: Location Plan at Scale 1:125(
Design and Access Statement

Date Plans Received: 10/09/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 10/09/2009
Date Application Valid: 21/09/2009

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of an existing vacant retail unit to a
restaurant within Use Class A3. The loss of the retail unit to a non-shop use would not
affect the minimum number of essential shop uses within the parade and as such the
proposal would maintain the character and function of the shopping parade and would
cater for the convenience shopping needs of local residents. Subject to conditions, the
proposal would not harm the residential amenities of nearby residents.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 N11 Control of plant/machinery noise

No plant and/ or machinery including all extract ventilation systems and odour control
equipment shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of noise and
fumes emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is
occupied/use commences and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good
working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

3 HLCA1 Restaurants/Cafes/Snack Bars

The premises shall only be used for the preparation and sale of food and any associated
clearing up between the hours of 08:00 and 23:30. There shall be no staff allowed on the
premises outside these hours.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining or nearby properties is not
adversely affected in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4 MCD10 Refuse Facilities

No development shall take place until details including location on the premises of facilities
to be provided for the covered, secure and screened storage of refuse at the premises
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of
the development shall be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance
with the approved details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON

In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

5 N13 Sound insulation of commercial/entertainment premises

The development shall not begin until a sound insulation scheme for the control of noise
transmission to the adjoining dwellings/premises has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented before the
development is occupied/use commences and thereafter shall be retained and maintained
in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Policy 4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Development shall not commence until details of access to building entrances and w.c.
facilities (to include ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door
width and lobby openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
facilities should be provided prior to the occupation of the development and shall be
permanently retained thereafter.

REASON

To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policy R16 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies 3A.13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

7 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No development shall take place until details of the height, position, design and materials
of a chimney or extraction vent and any air conditioning equipment have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be
carried out until the vent/chimney has been installed in accordance with the approved
details. Thereafter the vent/chimney shall be permanently retained and maintained in good
working order for so long as the use continues.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties in accordance with Policy OE1

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No chimney or extraction vent and any air conditioning equipment shall be used on the
premises until a scheme for the control of noise emanating from the site has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be
fully implemented before the development is occupied/use commences and thereafter
shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains
in use.

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties in accordance with Policy OE1
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas
S7 Change of use of shops in Parades
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
LPP 2A.8 Town Centres
LPP 2A.9 Supporting Sustainable Communities
LPP 4A.20 London Plan Policy 4A.20 - Reducing Noise and Enhancing
Soundscapes
LPP 4A.26 Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

6 114 Installation of Plant and Machinery

The Council's Commercial Premises Section and Building Control Services should be
consulted regarding any of the following:-

The installation of a boiler with a rating of 55,000 - 1% million Btu/hr and/or the
construction of a chimney serving a furnace with a minimum rating of 1% million Btu/hr;
The siting of any external machinery (eg air conditioning);

The installation of additional plant/machinery or replacement of existing machinery.
Contact:- Commercial Premises Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190). Building Control Services, 3N/01, Civic Centre, High
Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

7 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and
13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 125 Consent for the Display of Adverts and llluminated Signs

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a vacant ground floor retail unit forming part of West End
Parade, located on the south west side of West End Road, almost opposite its junction
with Sidmouth Drive. The parade comprises 11 commercial units on the ground floor,
nos.278 to 298a West End Road, with 3 upper floors in residential use accessed from the
rear. Opposite the application parade lie nos.1-14 New Pond Parade and to the rear is a
service road. This section of West End Road is commercial in character and appearance
and the application site lies within the 'developed area' as identified in the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the change of use from a retail unit to a restaurant within
Use Class A3. No external alterations are proposed.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
None

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



area

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas
S7 Change of use of shops in Parades

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

LPP 2A.8 Town Centres
LPP 2A.9 Supporting Sustainable Communities

LPP 4A.20 London Plan Policy 4A.20 - Reducing Noise and Enhancing Soundscapes
LPP 4A.26  Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations

External Consultees

36 adjoining owner/occupiers and the Ruislip Residents' Association consulted. No comments have
been received.

Internal Consultees

Waste Strategy: No objections subject to the inclusion of recycling facilities.

Environmental Protection Unit: No objections subject to conditions to control noise and fumes from
plant equipment.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The application site lies within a local parade and the adopted Unitary Development Plan
defines parades as:

"Groups of shops which provide at least 3 essential local shop uses and other retail and
service uses for people living or working within a walking distance of around 800m."

Local shopping parades serve an important role in providing convenience shopping that
caters for the needs of local residents. Paragraph 8.22 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) seeks to ensure that all residential
areas are within half a mile of five essential shop uses. Accordingly, Policy S7 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) states that
changes of use from retail will only be permitted if the parade retains sufficient essential
shop uses to provide a range and choice of shops appropriate to the size of the parade.

The application parade comprises 11 units, of which three are 'essential uses' as defined
in paragraph 8.21 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

710

September 2007). These are nos. 278 West End Road (Baker), 292 West End Road
(Chemist) and 296 West End Road (Newsagents). New Pond Parade, which lies opposite
the application property comprises 15 commercial units of which two are essential uses, 3
New Pond Parade (Newsagents) and 5 New Pond Parade (Grocer).

Given the above, it is considered that the level of essential shop uses is adequate to
maintain the viability, character and function of the parades and would be sufficient to cater
for the local convenience shopping needs of local residents. As such, the proposal would
not harm the vitality and viability of the West End Parade in accordance with Policy S7 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and
policies 2A.8 and 2A.9 of the London Plan 2008, which seek to develop and enhance a
network of specialist retail centres to meet special retail needs and to encourage
sustainable communities.

Density of the proposed development

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

This is not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

This is not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

No elevational alterations are proposed and therefore the proposal would not harm the
appearance of the street scene and surrounding area generally in accordance with policies
BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

In terms of assessing the effects of the proposal on residential amenity, the relevant
factors are those of noise, smell and disturbance. The nearest residential properties lie
above and adjacent to the application unit. No details of ventilation and or other mechanical
equipment have been submitted. However, it is considered that planning conditions
requiring details of the ventilation equipment prior to commencement of the use, the
installation of appropriate sound attenuation and insulation between floors and the
imposition of limitations on hours of operation and deliveries would be sufficient to maintain
the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby residential properties,
should planning permission be granted. The proposal would therefore comply with policies
OE1 and S6 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007) and policy 4A.20 of the London Plan 2008.

Living conditions for future occupiers

This is not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) requires 1 space per 25sgqm for non-shop uses. This
requirement is the same for shop uses. As no additional floorspace is proposed, no
additional parking spaces are required. As such, the proposal would not result in a
significant increase in on-street parking and would comply with policies AM7(ii) and AM14
of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 147



7.1

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

the Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007).
Urban design, access and security

This is addressed at section 07.07.
Disabled access

This is not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

This is not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

This is not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

The Councils Waste Management Service has advised that suitable recycling facilities for
all grades of paper and cardboard, cans, plastic bottles, and also glass bottles and jars
should be provided. To this end any refuse and recycling bins provided as part of this
development must be housed in chambers constructed according to the Council's
Standards.

A condition is recommended that suitable refuse and recycling facilities are provided prior
to commencement of the use and the proposal would thus comply with policy 4A.26 of the
London Plan 2008.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

This is not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

This is not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

This is not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

No third party comments have been received.
Planning Obligations

This is not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

This is not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

There are no other relevant issues.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlines above and that the proposal would comply with the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007), this application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies,
September 2007).

London Plan 2008

Contact Officer: Sonia Bowen Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 149



Eilmar Montessori Sct

Site Address

Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
290 West End Road Pl ina &

For identification purposes only. Ru ISllp an n ing ]
This copy has been made by or with Comm unlty seerceS
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Desi d Patent ) — -
A‘Z’fﬁr&g (th?;f’c“tj and ratens Planning Application Ref: Scale g
Unless the Act provides a relevant 45677/APP/2009/1971 1:1 ,250 ¥
exception to copyright. 3% d

: : ISl ey,
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Planmng Committee Date } ’t.
London Borough of Hillingdon

100019283 2009 NorthPage 150 | November 2009 FI L L INGDON

LONDGN




Agenda ltem 13

Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group

Address 20 CHESTNUT AVENUE NORTHWOOD
Development: Installation of 1 internally illuminated fascia sign (Retrospective Application)

LBH Ref Nos: 3401/ADV/2009/61

Drawing Nos: A3/133287 (Details of Sign)
1:1250 Site Location Plan
A3/133287 (Elevations)

Date Plans Received:  03/09/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 16/09/2009

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The site is located on the west side of Chestnut Avenue, at its southern end. The area is
residential in character and the site comprises an established leisure building containing a
fitness club. There is surface level parking to the side, front and rear of the building and the
site is on a slope with the land dropping away to the south. The application site lies within
the Green Belt as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved
Policies September 2007).

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks retrospective advertisement consent for the installation of 1 internally
illuminated fascia sign. The fascia sign is placed above the front pedestrian entrance ramp
to the building, adjacent to the entrance canopy and is 3.7m long by 1.625m deep,
comprising the fitness club name in white on a purple background. The sign is internally
illuminated.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

None
2. Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations
Ickenham Residents Association - No comments received

2 neighbour were consulted and two responses have been received, which make the
following comments -
1. The sign has already been put up a few weeks ago;

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



2. The size is too large and not in-keeping with the low key surroundings that this
predominantly residential street offers;

3. The sign, since installed has been left illuminated all through the night, even after the
club closes, causing light to defuse onto residential windows;

4. A similar issue occurred last year when the club installed very large lights to the parking
lot, this issue was partially addressed, but still resulted in us having to install blackout
blinds/curtains;

5. Opposed to any additional lighting = light pollution;

6. llluminated advertising is inappropriate in a residential area;

7. The applicant has already shown disregard for the surrounding area and this has
affected wildlife (absence of tawny owls, which used to be regular in the area).

Officer Comment - it is recommended that should members wish to grant consent for the
sign, a condition is applied to restrict the hours of illumination. The remaining points are
addressed in the report.

A copy of a letter signed by 14 residents of Chestnut Avenue sent to the Ward Councillors
and the Council's Parking Services and Parking Enforcement Unit has also been received.
This letter is requesting action relating to problems of traffic, congestion and parking in the
area which, it is stated, are exacerbated by the expansion of the fitness club.

Officer Comment - Applications for advertisements must only be determined on the issues
of visual amenity and highway safety. The issues raised by the residents are outside the
remit of this application and will be addressed by the appropriate Council Service.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and location
BE29 Advertisement displays on business premises

HDAS Shopfronts and signage

PPG2 Green Belts

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

Policy BE27 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) states that advertisements will
only be granted express consent if they are at such a size and designed so they
compliment the scale, form and architectural composition of individual buildings, they do
not harm the visual amenities of the area, and do not compromise public safety. Policy
BEZ29 states that the local planning authority will seek to limit the number of signs and the
size of advertisements in the interests of amenity and public safety.

Therefore the main considerations are the impact upon public safety and amenity.

The sign would have a minimal impact upon the use of the public highway as the main
vantage point would be at the end of Chestnut Avenue, which provides the vehicular
entrance points to the application site and Pine Tree Lodge. It is therefore considered that

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 152



this sign would not result in conditions prejudicial to pedestrian or highway safety.

With regard to amenity, the visual impact of this sign would be limited, having had regard to
its position. The sign is located well within the site, set some 25m back from the Chestnut
Avenue frontage and is mostly only visible from the car parking area of the application
premises. As such, there would be no adverse impact upon the character and appearance
of the street scene, the Green Belt or significant harm to the landscape character of the
area. Therefore the proposal is considered to comply with policies BE27 and BE29 of the
UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

With regard to the proposed illumination, illuminated advertisements are considered to lie
within one of four zones, which have been defined in accordance with the definitions in the
Institution of Lighting Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Light Pollution. These
are as follows:

E1 - Intrinsically dark areas (ie National Parks, AONB's or other dark landscapes).

E2 - Low District brightness areas (ie rural or small village locations)

E3 - Medium district brightness areas (ie small town centres, urban locations)

E4 - High district brightness areas (ie city and town centres with high levels of night time
activities).

This site is considered to be on the edge of a residential area and adjacent to open
countryside and it is therefore appropriate to deal with this application as being sited within
Zone E2. The recommended maximum luminance for this zone would be an illuminated
area of up to 10m2 = 600 candelas/m2, and for areas greater than 10m2 =
300candelas/m2. The application suggests a luminance level of 1000 candelas/m2 for the
proposed fascia sign and this would be over 6m2. It is therefore considered the suggested
levels of luminance would be too high, and as such should be limited (by condition) not to
exceed 600 candelas/m2 to comply with this advice.

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 ADV1 Standard Advertisement Conditions

i) No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission.

ii) No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to:-

(a) Endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome
(civil or military);

(b) Obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or aid to
navigation by water or air or;

(c) Hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or surveillance or
for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

i) Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 153



be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.

iv) Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public.

v) Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site
shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity.

vi) The consent hereby granted shall expire at the end of a period of five years from the
date of this consent.

REASON
These requirements are deemed to be attached by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

2 ADV4 Intensity of lllumination - specified

The intensity of illumination of the advertisement hereby approved shall not exceed 600
candelas per metre?.

REASON

To ensure that the brightness of the proposed advertisement(s) will not have an adverse
effect on the amenities of the area and to avoid distraction to passing motorists in
accordance with Policy BE27 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

3 ADV5 Time limit on illumination

The advertisement hereby given consent shall only be illuminated between the hours of
0900 and 22.30.

REASON

In order to protect the visual amenity of the area and/or highway safety in accordance with
Policy BE27 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 The decision to GRANT advertisement consent has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT advertisement consent has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning
Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including the London Plan
(February 2008) and national guidance.

BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and location

BE29 Advertisement displays on business premises
HDAS Shopfronts and signage

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 154



PPG2 Green Belts

Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 155



. El Sub Sta

N

.

-
-

Pine Tree

Lodge ~. ~.
~ .
. ~
RS
~
~
~
~
~ e
.
s
2
¢",
o' -
f&‘
L
.
B
.
L
.
.
L
.
EA
.
.
P
L PR
PR
L
- '
L (I}
f‘*
. '
4 - [}
PP
. N
L. e
. 3 v
>
P N
1
i
'
'
L

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

20 Chestnut Avenue
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
3401/ADV/2009/61

Planning Committee

NorthPage 156

Scale t

1:1,250 | N‘“
Date in Ry
November 2009 TFILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 14

Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group

Address 21 HILLSIDE ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Single storey front infill extension and loft conversion, involving conversion of
garage to habitable use.

LBH Ref Nos: 19722/APP/2009/1861

Drawing Nos: PL/003
PL/002
PL/001A
PL/004A
PL/0O05A

Date Plans Received: 25/08/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 12/10/0009
Date Application Valid: 28/08/2009 25/08/2009

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a detached bungalow on the north side of Hillside Road and
forms part of a large area of 1930's residential development within the developed area as
designated in the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

The area is characterised by interwar suburban housing, largely bungalows and chalet
bungalows along spacious well planned roads on a large estate of similar properties. The
area is subject to relatively steep topography and as such the application site is stepped up
from the neighbouring property to the west (No.19) and stepped down from the
neighbouring property to the east (No.23).

The property is within an established row of bungalows each of a similar style, making
strong references to the arts and crafts movement, being constructed out of brick, render
and clay peg-tile roofs. The building line is informal, with properties being both detached
and semi-detached and enjoying a variety of footprints, with forward projecting elements,
bay windows and canopied gables being common.

The application site has a simple form, with a principal frontage 7.5m wide, with a bay
window detail and steep hipped roofs, forming a pyramid like structure. To the rear, there
is a projecting ridge (3.8m long) forming a rear facing dormer window with half hipped roof
over. A more recent single-storey side/rear extension (set back 2.4m from the front
elevation) now provides the main entrance to the property, and has a flat roof that extends
up to the eastern boundary of the site, connecting with the flank wall of neighbouring
property No. 23. This extension extends across the entire rear elevation of the property at
varying depths between 2m and 3.7m in depth.

1.2 Proposed Scheme
The application seeks permission for the existing single-storey side extension to be

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 157



extended forwards, infilling the remaining 2.4m, so that it is flush with the main front
elevation. This will provide the properties new entrance, featured through double entrance
doors and flanking windows. Amended plans show this extension set in from the boundary
by 500mm.

Above this new infill extension is proposed a new side hipped roof, carrying across the
existing front and rear roof slope, along with its profile. Three roof lights would be
introduced on the new east facing flank roof slope, providing light to the new shower room
and existing study.

To the rear of this would be a second full height dormer window, attached to and mirroring
the existing rear facing dormer. As such it would be 3.4m wide and 3.3m high, with a half-
hip roof detail. The proposals would add a further double bedroom to the existing bedroom
and bathroom already housed in the loft space.

The plans also show a new roof light in the front roof slope (giving light to the existing
staircase). Furthermore, two 1m wide and 1.6m high solar heating panels are proposed on
the front elevation.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
19722/A/85/0495 21 Hillside Road Northwood
Section 53 certificate (P)

Decision Date: 01-05-1985 Refused Appeal:
19722/APP/2002/2924 21 Hillside Road Northwood

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY FRONT ENTRANCE/PORCH AND A SINGLE STOREY
REAR EXTENSION

Decision Date: 17-02-2003 Approved Appeal:
19722/B/85/0844 21 Hillside Road Northwood
Section 53 certificate (P)
Decision Date: 10-06-1985 Refused Appeal:
19722/C/85/0975 21 Hillside Road Northwood
Householder development - residential extension(P)
Decision Date: 02-08-1985 Approved Appeal:
Comment on Planning History
None
2, Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
3. Comments on Public Consultations
External:

7 adjoining occupiers and the Northwood Hills Residents Association consulted. 5 letters

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 158



from the resident of No.23 Hillside Road received stating the following:

* The proposal makes Nos.21 and 23 Hillside Road semi-detached;

* Concerns that the area is now a conservation area and extension of this nature would be
inappropriate;

* Concerns over maintenance to the side of No.23 Hillside Road; and

* Concerns over drainage.

A request has been made by a Ward Councillor that this application be considered at
planning committee due to potential conflict over the issue of rain water guttering as there
is a party wall between joint garages. The issue of this property being in an area of Special
Local Character should also be addressed.

Comment: The plans were revised to inset the side extension 500mm from the
neighbour's boundary, addressing the boundary issues raised above.

Internal:
Conservation and Urban Design Observations:

This is a bungalow located within the Hillside, Northwood Hills Area of Special Local
Character. The area is characterised mainly by 1930s bungalows, modest in size with
integral garages built well setback from the main elevation. The area has recently been
designated as an Area of Special Local Character (ASLC) particularly for the homogeneity
in building types. There have been extensions to neighbouring properties, prior to the
designation of the area and the adoption of the Design Guidance. The site itself has been
subject to previous planning applications, including the loft conversion, and two rear
extensions.

To the front, the existing garage is well set back from the main front elevation of the house,
characteristic of the established design of other houses in the street. The scheme
proposes to build a front extension to bring the existing garage in line with the main house
and convert the garage for habitable use. Whilst the conversion of the garage is
acceptable, given the homogeneity of the area, the front extension would not be in keeping
with the street scene. The proposed roof to the garage extension would add considerable
bulk to the front elevation and would be detrimental to the character and appearance of the
area. The extension would appear to be attached to the adjacent property, which would be
detrimental to the street scene of the area. It would, therefore, be unacceptable.

The scheme also proposes a large rear extension to the roof, to accommodate an extra
bedroom to the previously converted loft. The size, height and design of the proposed roof
extension, particularly taken together with the previous extension would be detrimental to
the character of the existing house and would not be subservient to the original house and
would, therefore, be unacceptable.

The double front entrance door including the side lights appear very wide and do not form
part of the original design and character of the houses, and would be unacceptable.

From a conservation point of view, the proposed solar panels should be relocated to the
rear elevation. Details showing the size, section and colour should also be submitted. If
depth of solar panels is up to 200mm, it would be considered within the Permitted
Development Rights of the owner (General Permitted Development Order as amended

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 159



2008), and should, therefore, be removed as part of the current application.

Given the previous history and the layout and design of the existing house, there is limited
scope of extension.

The conversion of garage to habitable would be acceptable, provided that the fenestration
is appropriately designed. Front and rear (loft) extensions are unacceptable.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Extensions

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE5 New development within areas of special local character

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issues for consideration with this application are the design of the proposed
development, impact on the area of special local character, impact on residential amenity
and parking.

Design

The area is characterised mainly by 1930's bungalows, modest in size with integral
garages which, in the main are well setback, from the front elevation. The area has recently
been designated as an Area of Special Local Character (ASLC) particularly for the
homogeneity in building types. There have been extensions to neighbouring properties,
prior to the designation of the area and the adoption of the Design Guidance. The site itself
has been subject to previous planning applications, including the loft conversion, and two
rear extensions.

To the front, the existing garage is well set back from the main front elevation of the house,
which is a characteristic of the established design of other houses in the street. The
scheme proposes to build a front extension to bring the existing garage in line with the main

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 160



house and convert the garage for habitable use. Whilst the conversion of the garage is
acceptable in principle, given the homogeneity of the area, the front extension would not be
in keeping with the street scene. The proposed roof to the garage extension would add
considerable bulk to the front elevation and would thus be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the area. In terms of siting, design, appearance and bulk this element of the
scheme is not considered acceptable.

The scheme also proposes a large rear extension to the roof and the size, height and
design of this roof extension, particularly taken together with the previous extension is
considered to be detrimental to the character of the existing house and in terms of its size
and scale would not be subservient to the original property.

It is, therefore, considered that both the front/side extension and the rear roof extension are
contrary to policies BE5, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted UDP Saved Policies September
2007 and the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Extensions.

Amenity

No.19 Hillside Road would not be adversely affected by the proposed single storey
front/side extension as it lies on the opposite side of the siting of this extension.

The proposed extension would project 300mm beyond the front wall of No.23, however, it
would not breach a 45 degree sight line taken from the habitable room window at No.23
closest to the side boundary with the application property. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would not harm the residential amenities of the occupiers of that property through
overdominance and visual intrusion.

With regards the rear roof extension, this does not result in any greater overlooking than
the existing extension and as such would not result in unacceptable loss of privacy to
neighbouring occupiers.

It is therefore, considered that the proposal would comply with policies BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007). The new windows would provide an adequate outlook and natural light to the rooms
they would serve, in accordance with London Plan Policy 4A.3.

A very extensive garden will be maintained and continue to provide adequate private
amenity space and parking for two cars would still be available on the existing hard
standing to the front, in accordance with policies BE23 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007.

6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed side/front extension by reason of its siting, size, scale, bulk, design and
appearance would fail to harmonise with the character of the existing property to the visual
detriment of the street scene and the Hillside, Northwood Hills Area of Special Local
Character. The proposal is thus contrary to policies BE5, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 161



Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the Adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed rear roof extension, in conjunction with the existing extension, by reason of
its siting, size, scale, bulk, design and appearance would fail to harmonise with the
character of the existing property to the visual detriment of the street scene and the
Hillside, Northwood Hills Area of Special Local Character. The proposal is thus contrary to
policies BE5, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and the Adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Extensions.

INFORMATIVES

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:

Policy No.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS Residential Extensions

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BES New development within areas of special local character

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



Contact Officer: Caerwen Roberts Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 163



Drajn

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

21 Hillside Road
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
19722/APP/2009/1861 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
NorthPage 164 | November 2009

‘jzi

FILLING

LONDGN

DON




Agenda ltem 15

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 315 WEST END ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Provision of 1.9m high close boarded timber fencing along the Masson
Avenue and West End Road boundaries, with new access gates and visibility
splays Masson Avenue ( Part Retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 61905/APP/2008/3233

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
05/06 - WER - SL/101 Rev F

Date Plans Received: 13/11/2008 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 13/11/2008

Date Application Valid: 13/11/2008 23/09/2009

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the retention of a close boarded fence. The fence is an
improvement over the palisade fence which is the subject of an enforcement notice and in
visual terms is considered to be acceptable.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The reduction in the height of the entrance gates and the creation of visibility splays on
either side of the entrance gate as shown on drawing 05/06-WER-SL/101 Rev F, hereby
approved shall be implemented within 3 months from the date of this permission.

REASON
To maintain highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 of the UDP
Saved Policies September 2007.

2 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Within three months of the date of this permission the fencing hereby approved shall be
stained to match the colour of the existing fencing on the site.

REASON
To ensure that the visual amenity of the area is maintained in accordance with policy
BE13 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 165



2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south-eastern corner of Masson Avenue and West
End Road and comprises a forecourt and single storey building presently used for car
valeting and washing. Within the site and along the southern site boundary are workshop
buildings that extend the entire width of this boundary. A number of cars are parked within
the forecourt of the existing buildings and a portacabin lies along the side boundary with 6
Mason Avenue. Along part of the West End Road and Masson Avenue frontages a 1.9m
high close boarded fence has been erected in front of galvanized steel palisade fence and
gates. The fence has been stained brown in colour. The remaining site boundary is
demarcated by part timber and brickwork wall and part timber panel fence with concrete
posts measuring 2.1m high.

To the east and north of the application site are residential properties; 6 Masson Avenue
lies immediately to the north east of the application site. The properties in Masson Avenue
comprises either low brick walls or hedgerows along the roadside frontages. To the west
is an area of undeveloped land and to the south is the sports ground with a hedgerow along
the roadside frontage. The application site lies within the 'developed area' as identified in
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and
adjoins an Area of Environmental Opportunity to the south.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the retention of the 1.9m high close boarded fence along
part of West End Road and Masson Avenue. The fence is attached to an existing palisade
fence and gate which was erected without the benefit of planning permission in 2006. The
applicant also proposes to reduce the height of the gate and section of the wall on either
side to 1m high to provide visibility for vehicles accessing the site.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

61905/APP/2006/1578 315 West End Road Ruislip

ERECTION OF 2.4 METRE HIGH GALVANISED STEEL PALISADE FENCE AND GATES
ALONG PART OF WEST END ROAD AND MASSON AVENUE FRONTAGES
(RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION).

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 166



Decision: 23-08-2007 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Members will recall that planning permission (ref: 61905/APP/2008/1578) for the retention
of a 2.4m high galvanised steel palisade fence and gates along part of West End Road and
Masson Avenue frontages, was refused at the North Planning Committee on 7th August
2007, for the following reason:

"The existing 2.4m high galvanized steel palisade fence along the West End Road and
Masson Avenue frontages, by reason of its siting, height, details and overall design,
presents an incongruous and visually intrusive form of development in the appearance of
the existing street scene. It is detrimental to the character and appearance of the existing
street scene and the visual amenities of the area. The proposal is therefore contrary to
policies BE13 and BE19 of the Borough's adopted Unitary Development Plan."

Members also considered it expedient to issue an Enforcement Notice requiring the
removal from the land of the steel palisade fencing with gates, in its entirety, and all
associated debris, and make good the land. A period of three months was given for
compliance with the terms of the Enforcement Notice.

The Notice was issued and was not complied with. A summons was served and on the 1st
December 2008 the applicant appeared at Uxbridge Magistrates Court. The applicant
pleaded guilty and was fined £2,000 and was ordered to pay costs of £1,000.

Prior to his appearance at Court, the applicant erected close boarded fencing in front of the

palisade fence, the subject of this current planning application. The palisade fence has
been reduced in height so that it is not visible above the timber fence.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 167



6. Consultations
External Consultees

37 adjoining owner/occupiers and the South Ruislip Residents' Association (2 groups) have been
consulted. No comments have been received.

Environment Agency: We have assessed this application as having a low environmental risk.
MOD Defence Estates: No safeguarding objections

National Air Traffic Services: No safeguarding objections

MOD Safeguarding: No comments received

Thames Water Development Planning Assets: No objections to this application

Internal Consultees
Trees/Landscape:

THE SITE
The site is a prominent corner plot at the junction of west End Road and Masson Avenue. According
to our records, a protected tree T1, on TPO No 289, was removed within the past year or so.

THE PROPOSAL
The proposal is retrospective and seeks permission to retain a new 1.9 metre high close board
boundary fence.

While no objections to the fence are raised it is noted that it was previously recommended that a
new tree be planted as a condition of the previous application ref. 2007/3129. A submission has not
been received in relation to the tree replacement.

RECOMMENDATION
If you are minded to approve this application | have no objection subject to a tree replacement
condition, TL5, TL6 and TL7.

Officer Comments - Planning application ref. no. 2007/3129 was withdrawn by the applicant on 25
June 2008. As this application does not involve a development that would require the removal of a
tree and as such it would be unreasonable to impose a planning condition requiring tree
replacement.

Highways:

No objections as the fence has been reduced to 1m for 2.4m wide on either side of the entrance
gates so as to maintain visibility when accessing the site on the highway.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

No objections are raised to the principle of enclosing this site.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

This is not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

This is not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 168



7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.1

712

713

714

Airport safeguarding

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

This is not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The close boarded timber fence is an improvement over the previous palisade fence. It
relates satisfactorily with the existing brick wall with timber fencing located between the
vehicular entrance and 6 Masson Avenue and does not harm the appearance of the street
scene. Therefore, the development complies with policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

The applicant was advised to reduce the height of the timber section of the gate and fence
along the left side as vehicles exit the site, to 1m to maintain visibility for vehicles
accessing the site. The fence to the right is an existing fence and therefore it is not
possible to require a section of this fence to be reduced. The palisade fence along the gate
and the section of the timber fence to be reduced would be retained at its current height to
maintain security of the site. However, the applicant has provided amended plans showing
the timber gate and the palisade fence reduced to 1m. The existing wall and a section of
the timber fence on either side of the entrance gate are also shown reduced to 1m for a
width of 2.4m. This is considered to be acceptable and would not harm the appearance of
the street scene.

The palisade fence (albeit reduced in height), the subject of an enforcement notice, has
been retained behind the close boarded fence. The palisade does not form part of this
planning application though and therefore is not under consideration.

Impact on neighbours

Given the nature of the development, the close boarded fence does not harm the
residential amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential properties, in accordance with
policy OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

This is not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The application now proposes to provide visibility splays on either side of the entrance gate.
This is considered to represent an improvement on highway and pedestrian safety, in
accordance with policy AM7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

This is addressed at section 07.07.
Disabled access

This is not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

This is not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

This is not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 169



715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Sustainable waste management

This is not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

This is not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

This is not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

This is not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

No comments have been received.
Planning Obligations

This is not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

This is not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

There are no other relevant issues.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 170



the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above and that the development complies with the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007), this application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

Contact Officer: Sonia Bowen Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 171



+
+
+

\
Wordsworth Court tos
S\, *
EANMERY
©
A

-
.

A
s
\

Glebe Farm

é“

. LS
1y .
.
PR LY
AR LY
\ s
(YN 3
Y .
ATRY
S
.

\
[
\
34.1ms N
.

Ny
[y
[y

by

Priors Farm

1 Py

A

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

315 West End Road
Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale g
61905/APP/2008/3233 1:1,250 K>
Planning Committee Date g;é’ ’!t‘
NorthPage 172 | November 2009] T+ L LINGDON




Agenda Item 16

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 80 HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Change of use from Class A1 Retail to Gaming Arcade (Sui Generis) (Dual
planning application with ref.3862/APP/2009/653.)

LBH Ref Nos: 34237/APP/2009/652

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
AB-RUI-80-001 Rev. £

Date Plans Received:  31/03/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 31/03/2009
1. SUMMARY

The proposed change of use would result in an unacceptable length of continuous
frontage of non-retail uses which would be harmful to the character, function, vitality and
viability of the Ruislip Town Centre.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal by reason of the increase in the width of the interruption of the retail frontage
would erode the retail function and attractiveness of the Ruislip Town centre, harming its
character, function vitality and viability. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy S11 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and
policy 3D.3 of the London Plan 2008.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 173



BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and

location

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

LPP 3D.3 London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail
Facilities.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the south west side of High Street, Ruislip, near its
junction with Ickenham Road and Midcroft, and comprises a vacant retail unit on the ground
floor with two upper floors in residential use. The street scene is predominantly commercial
in character and appearance and the application site lies with the Primary Shopping Area of
the Ruislip Town Centre and the Ruislip Village Conservation Area as designated in the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). The
application site is also covered by an Archaeological Priority Area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of a vacant retail unit to an
amusement arcade involving a use swap with 70 High Street, resulting in 70 High Street
becoming a retail unit and 80 High Street becoming an amusement arcade. No external
alterations are proposed.

The planning application for the change of use from retail to an amusement arcade at 70
High Street (3862/APP/2009/653) can be found elsewhere on this agenda.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There are no relevant planning decisions relating to this application property.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 174



BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and location

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

LPP 3D.3 London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail Facilities.
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 20th May 2009

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 20th May 2009

6. Consultations
External Consultees

54 adjoining owner/occupiers have been consulted. The application has also been advertised as a
development that affects the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. 1
letter of objection has been received making the following comments:

(i) This current and the application at 80 High Street should be refused as a games arcade is a blight
on the High Street;

(i) The amusement centre would be relocating to a more prominent location which would make
matters worse; and

(iii) The applicant has failed to comply with condition 2 of the Inspectors' decision letter which
requires a retail front window display to be retained.

Ruislip Village Conservation Panel: No comments received
Ruislip Residents Association:

You will recall the concerns expressed by the Association at the time of the original application for an
Amusement Arcade at No 70 (Ref 3862/APP/2005/1086). These were set out in letters to both the
Council and the Planning Inspectorate, and our view has not changed.

With regard to the current applications we have further concerns:

1. Since the applicant's Appeal on No.70 was upheld in July 2006, both of the current application
sites have been included in the extended Conservation Area. One of our objections to the previous
application at No.70 was the proximity of the original site to the then Conservation Area. The
Inspector appeared to dismiss this as a reason for refusal, stating the activity would be low key.
Since then however the applicant has obtained a licence to allow the unit to be split into two, and for
the installation of additional machines, some of which, we understand, pay out substantial prize
money.

As the unit at No. 80 is of a considerably larger floor area than that at No.70 the continuation of and
enlargement of a similar operation would be in conflict with both a low key activity and the Council's
policy regarding Amusement Arcades in Conservation Areas.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 175



2. In Condition 2 of the Appeal Decision dated 13 July 2006 there was a specific requirement
regarding the installation of a shop front as shown on the application plans. In an email to Clir Stone
dated 20/09/06 David Thackeray stated that the owner intended to comply with that requirement
within two weeks. We are not aware that this work was ever completed and perhaps you would
confirm the current status.

3. We note that each application refers to the other one assuming that both would be implemented if
approved. We trust that the application at No 80 will be refused but in the unfortunate event the
Council was obliged to grant consent then, conditions would be applied requiring that:

(a) The proposed operation at No.80 would require closure of the Amusement Arcade at No.70

(b) At No.80 a suitable shop front must be approved and installed before the premises are opened
as an Amusement Arcade.

English Heritage (Archaeology): No comments received
Ruislip Chamber of Commerce:

'We feel that the change of use from A1 retail to Sui Generis in respect of 80 High Street is totally
unacceptable as it would allow Agora Amusements to move into what is at present an A1 retail unit
in a prime High Street position. As you know, the Chamber objected to the change of use allowing
the Amusement arcade to open in 70 High Street but this move would make their premises much
more visible and we feel would be detrimental to the ambience of the High Street'

Metropolitan Police (Crime Prevention): No comments received.

Internal Consultees
Urban Design/Conservation:

This is a property within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area.

This application is acceptable. There are no external or internal alterations proposed. The high street
is a characterised mainly by commercial uses, and proposal is acceptable in design terms.

Environmental Protection Unit:

No objections subject to planning conditions relating to hours of operation, deliveries and control of
noise.

Councillor Phillip Corthorne:

| support the objections of the RRA, since the larger footprint, and the existence of the conservation
area make the continuation of such an enterprise on the new site inappropriate.

Although this was approved on appeal in 2006, | think the council needs to take a similar position to
the last occasion given the changes in circumstances.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

With regards to the proposed change of use to an amusement arcade, Paragraph 8.24 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) defines
primary shopping areas as 'the focus of retail activity in the centres and states that they are
either already generally dominated by retail shops or are areas which the Local Planning

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 176



Authority considers have prime retail potential'. Paragraph 8.26 states that as a guideline,
the Council will normally seek to prevent a separation or an increase in the separation of
class A1 units of more than approximately 12m, which is broadly the width of two typical
shop fronts. Class A1 shops should remain the predominant use in primary shopping
areas and the Local Planning Authority will expect at least 70% of the frontage to be in
class A1 use.

The 2009 shopping survey shows that out of 69 units within the primary area of the Ruislip
Town Centre, 43 units (62.3%) are in retail use. This equates to 61.1% of the retail
frontage. Therefore, the primary shopping area is already operating below 70% and any
loss of retail use would further harm the vitality and viability of the centre.

The proposed change of use would result in the loss of a retail unit. However, this
application involves a use swap with 70 High Street, involving the change of use of that
property from an amusement arcade to a retail unit and as such, overall, there would be no
net loss of retail frontage in the primary shopping area of the Ruislip Town Centre.
Furthermore, the applicant is willing to enter into a legal agreement to ensure that prior to
the commencement of the proposed use at the application property, 70 High Street is
changed to a retail unit which would involve the cessation of the current lawful use and all
structures and equipment associated with that use being removed from the premises.

With regards to separation of retail uses, adjoining the application site to the north is 78
High Street, a retail unit, while to the south west lies 82/84 High Street, a bank. The
proposed change of use to a non shop use would result in a 19m long break in the retail
frontage between nos.78 and 86 High Street. On this basis, the proposed change of use
would result in an unacceptable concentration of non-retail uses to the detriment of the
vitality and viability of the town centre contrary to policy S11 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

On the appropriateness and compatibility of the proposed use as an amusement arcade,
attention is drawn to an appeal decision relating to the change of use of 70 High Street from
a class A2 use to an amusement arcade. In allowing the appeal, the Inspector states at
paragraph 9:

"It would be reasonable to expect a complementary activity to be an integral part of the
town centre experience, in the same way as a restaurant, cafe or food take-aways. There
would be proper cause for concern if other uses were not visited on shopping trips."

Paragraphs 10 & 11 goes on to state:

"From the evidence given at the inquiry this type of leisure centre has been accepted
elsewhere as part of a primary shopping area as being complementary to the range of
retail uses, in the same way as a cafe or public house would offer a degree of rest or
recreation for people whilst they are out shopping. Such uses therefore contribute to
attracting visitors and generating spend in the centre.

In support of the appeal, the findings of various surveys of amusement centres in other
parts of the country were tabled which show that the majority of customers visit as part of a
general shopping trip. That is, it is an activity which for a number of people is part of, or at
least incidental to, a shopping trip. In my view, given the appearance of the premises and
the nil effect on the proportion of retail frontage and the pattern of use, this type of
amusement centre is not likely to harm the character of the Ruislip shopping area."

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 177



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

It is acknowledged that 80 High Street has a larger floorspace than 70 High Street and as
such could have a greater impact in the centre in terms of its activities/intensification.
However, given the Inspectors comments, it is not considered that a refusal on the grounds
of inappropriateness of, or incompatibility with, the character and function of the shopping
centre or have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area, would be sustained at appeal.

However, it is important to note that in the above referenced appeal, the proposed change
of use did not result in a reduction in the level of retail frontages or result in a separation of
non-shop uses exceeding 12m. In this particular case, the proposed change of use is
contrary to the latter. The Inspector states in paragraph 14 that "What is important
therefore is to have regard to the purpose of the policy (S11). The policy's aim is to
safeguard the character, function, vitality and viability of the Ruislip primary shopping area."

With this in mind, the proposal would clearly be contrary to policy S11 as it would result in
creating a lengthy and continuous interruption of non-shop uses which would be harmful to
the character, function, vitality and viability of the shopping centre. As such, the proposed
change of use would adversely affect the character and function of the Ruislip Primary
Shopping Area, contrary to policy S11 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) and policy 3D.3 of the London Plan 2008.

Density of the proposed development

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site lies within an Archaeological Priority Area. However, given the nature of
the proposed development, no archaeological remains would be affected.
Airport safeguarding

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

This is not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

No external alterations are proposed and therefore the proposal would not harm the
appearance of the street scene and the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area, in accordance with policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE27 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

In terms of assessing the effects of the proposal on residential amenity, the relevant
factors are those of noise, smell and disturbance. The nearest residential properties lie
above and adjacent to the application unit. The proposed use is not considered to generate
additional noise over and above that of a retail unit. It is therefore considered that planning
conditions requiring details of the ventilation equipment and the imposition of limitations on
hours of operation and deliveries would be sufficient to maintain the residential amenity of
the occupiers of adjoining and nearby residential properties, should planning permission be
granted. The proposal would therefore comply with policies OE1 and S6 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

This is not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 178



710

7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

7.18

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) requires 1 space per 25sqm for shop uses. This
requirement is the same for non-shop uses. As no additional floorspace is proposed, no
additional parking spaces are required. As such, the proposal would not result in a
significant increase in on-street parking and would comply with policies AM7(ii) and AM14
of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and
the Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

This is addressed at section 07.07.
Disabled access

This is not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

This is not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

This is not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

This is not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

This is not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

This is not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

This is not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The issue of compliance with previous appeal conditions (concerning a shop frontage) is
not relevant to this current application. All other issues are addressed in the report.

Planning Obligations

The proposal involves a use swap with 70 High Street which could be secured by way of a
legal agreement should planning permission be granted.
Expediency of enforcement action

This is not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

There are no other relevant issues.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 179



Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above and that the proposal would be contrary to the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007), this application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

Contact Officer: Sonia Bowen Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 180



.
Iy
~
Iy
.

Iy

s, Garage '\
. 3

S Ruislip

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH

| OF HILLINGDON
Site boundary 80 High Street Planning &

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with RUISIIp Community serViceS
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents . . . : o

Act 1988 (the Act) Planning Application Ref: Scale

Unless the Act provides a relevant 34237/APP/2009/652 1 :1 ,250 ¥

exception to copyright. })@ ]

. : ISl ey,
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Planning Committee Date 1 Qt.

100016283 2008 North Page 181| November 2009| -1 .|| NG DON

LONDGN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 182



Agenda ltem 17

Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 70 HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Change of use from Gaming Arcade (Sui Generis) to Class A1 Retail (Dual
planning application with ref.34237/APP/2009/652.)

LBH Ref Nos: 3862/APP/2009/653

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
AB-RUI-70-003 Rev. £

Date Plans Received:  31/03/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 31/03/2009
1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the change of use from an amusement arcade to a
retail unit involving a use swap with 80 High Street, Ruislip. The proposed change of use
would re-enforce the retail offer and would not result in a reduction in the retail character
and function of the shopping centre.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The premises shall not be used for deliveries and collections, including waste collections
other than between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00, Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 to 13:00
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank and Public Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy 4A.20
of the London Plan (February 2008).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 183



2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and
location
S1 New retail development within the shopping hierarchy
S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas
S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

6 15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 184



08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours and
13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises the ground floor of a two storey mid terraced building
located on the south west side of High Street Ruislip, near its junction with Ickenham Road
and Midcroft. The ground floor is currently in use as an amusement centre, granted
planning permission under appeal in July 2006. The upper floor is in residential use. The
street scene is predominantly commercial in character and appearance and the application
site lies with the Primary Shopping Area of the Ruislip Town Centre and the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area as designated in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007). The application site is also covered by an
Archaeological Priority Area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the change of use from an amusement arcade to a retail
unit involving a use swap with 80 High Street, which is currently a retail unit, resulting in 70
High Street becoming a retail unit and 80 High Street becoming an amusement arcade. No
external alterations are proposed.

The planning application for the change of use from retail to an amusement centre at 80
High Street can be found elsewhere on this agenda.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

3862/APP/2005/1086 70 High Street Ruislip

CHANGE OF USE FROM BANK PREMISES (CLASS A2) TO USE AS AMUSEMENT CENTRE
(SUI GENERIS)

Decision: 01-07-2005 Refused Appeal: 13-07-2006 Allowed

Comment on Relevant Planning History
The above application was refused at the North Planning Committee on 21st June 2005 fo

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 185



the following reason:

"The proposed change of use would have an adverse impact on the character and vitality
of the Primary Shopping Area of the Ruislip Shopping centre and is therefore contrary to
Policy S11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan."

An appeal was lodged and subsequently allowed in July 2006.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE27 Advertisements requiring express consent - size, design and location

S1 New retail development within the shopping hierarchy

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 20th May 2009
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 20th May 2009

6. Consultations
External Consultees

51 adjoining owner/occupiers have been consulted. The application has also been advertised as a
development that affects the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village Conservation Area. 1
letter of objection has been received making the following comments:

(i) This current and the application at 80 High Street should be refused as a games arcade is a blight
on the High Street;

(i) The amusement centre would be relocating to a more prominent location which would make
matters worse; and

(iii) The applicant has failed to comply with condition 2 of the Inspectors' decision letter which
requires a retail front window display to be retained.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 186



Ruislip Village Conservation Panel: No comments received
Ruislip Residents Association:

You will recall the concerns expressed by the Association at the time of the original application for an
Amusement Arcade at No 70 (Ref 3862/APP/2005/1086). These were set out in letters to both the
Council and the Planning Inspectorate, and our view has not changed.

With regard to the current applications we have further concerns:

1. Since the applicant's Appeal on No.70 was upheld in July 2006, both of the current application
sites have been included in the extended Conservation Area. One of our objections to the previous
application at No.70 was the proximity of the original site to the then Conservation Area. The
Inspector appeared to dismiss this as a reason for refusal, stating the activity would be low key.
Since then however the applicant has obtained a licence to allow the unit to be split into two, and for
the installation of additional machines, some of which, we understand, pay out substantial prize
money.

As the unit at No.80 is of a considerably larger floor area than that at No.70 the continuation of and
enlargement of a similar operation would be in conflict with both a low key activity and the Council's
policy regarding Amusement Arcades in Conservation Areas.

2. In Condition 2 of the Appeal Decision dated 13 July 2006 there was a specific requirement
regarding the installation of a shop front as shown on the application plans. In an email to Clir Stone
dated 20/09/06 David Thackeray stated that the owner intended to comply with that requirement
within two weeks. We are not aware that this work was ever completed and perhaps you would
confirm the current status.

3. We note the each application refers to the other one assuming that both would be implemented if
approved. We trust that the application at No 80 will be refused but in the unfortunate event the
Council was obliged to grant consent then, conditions would be applied requiring that:

(a) The proposed operation at No.80 would require closure of the Amusement Arcade at No.70

(b) At No.80 a suitable shop front must be approved and installed before the premises are opened
as an Amusement Arcade.

English Heritage (Archaeology): No comments received
Ruislip Chamber of Commerce:

'We feel that the change of use from A1 retail to Sui Generis in respect of 80 High Street is totally
unacceptable as it would allow Agora Amusements to more into what is at present an A1 retail unit in
a prime High Street position. As you know, the Chamber objected to the change of use allowing the
Amusement arcade to open in 70 High Street but this move would make their premises much more
visible and we feel would be detrimental to the ambience of the High Street'

Internal Consultees
Urban Design/Conservation:

This is a property within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area.

This application is acceptable. There are no external or internal alterations proposed. The high street
is a characterised mainly by commercial uses, and proposal is acceptable in design terms.

Environmental Protection Unit:

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 187



Application is acceptable with conditions.

Officer Comment: This is an A1 use class so there should be no need for conditions unless
connected to an A1 use.

Policy & Environmental Planning:
Application is acceptable with conditions.
Councillor Phillip Corthorne:

| support the objections of the RRA, since the larger footprint, and the existence of the conservation
area make the continuation of such an enterprise on the new site inappropriate.

Although this was approved on appeal in 2006, | think the council needs to take a similar position to
the last occasion given the change in circumstances.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Planning permission is sought for the change of use from an amusement arcade to a retail
unit and relates to the planning application at 80 High Street, Ruislip (34237/APP/2009/652)
for the change of uses from retail to an amusement arcade, which is also on this agenda.
The applicant proposes a use swap between the two uses.

With regards to the proposed change of use to a shop, Paragraph 8.24 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) defines primary
shopping areas as the focus of retail activity in the centres and are either already generally
dominated by retail shops or are areas which the Local Planning Authority considers have
prime retail potential. Paragraph 8.26 states that as a guideline, the Council will normally
seek to prevent a separation or an increase in the separation of class A1 units of more than
approximately 12m which is broadly the width of two typical shop fronts. Class A1 shops
should remain the predominant use in primary shopping areas and the Local Planning
Authority will expect at least 70% of the frontage to be in class A1 use.

The 2009 shopping survey shows that out of 69 units within the primary area of the Ruislip
Town Centre, 43 units (62.3%) are in retail use. This equates to 61.1% of the retail
frontage. Therefore, the primary shopping area is already operating below 70% and any
loss of retail use would further harm the vitality and viability of the centre. However, the
proposal involves a change of use to retail use which is encouraged under policies S1 and
S11 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

As such, the proposed change of use would not result in a reduction in the character and
function of the Ruislip Primary Shopping Area or lead to an unacceptable concentration of
non-retail uses to the detriment of the vitality and viability of the town centre.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

This is not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site lies within an Archaeological Priority Area. However, given the nature of
the proposed development, no archaeological remains would be affected.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 188



7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

710

7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

718

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

This is not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

This is not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

No external alterations are proposed and therefore the proposal would not harm the
appearance of the street scene and the character and appearance of the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area, in accordance with policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE27 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

In terms of assessing the effects of the proposal on residential amenity, the relevant
factors are those of noise, smell and disturbance. The nearest residential properties lie
above and adjacent to the application unit. The proposed use for A1 retail is not considered
to generate additional noise over and above the current use. It is therefore considered that
a limitation on the hours of deliveries would be sufficient to maintain the residential amenity
of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby residential properties. The proposal would
therefore comply with policies OE1 and S6 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

This is not applicable to this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) requires 1 space per 25sgqm for shop uses. This
requirement is the same for non-shop uses. As no additional floorspace is proposed, no
additional parking spaces are required. As such, the proposal would not result in a
significant increase in on-street parking and would comply with policies AM7(ii) and AM14
of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and
the Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007).

Urban design, access and security

This is addressed at section 07.07.
Disabled access

This is not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

This is not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

This is not applicable to this application.
Sustainable waste management

This is not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

This is not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

This is not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

This is not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 189



7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The third party comments generally relate to the change of use at 80 High Street
(34237/APP/2009/652) which can be found elsewhere on this agenda. Although it is
acknowledged that the two applications are intrinsically linked, the proposed change of use
to a retail unit complies with the Council's policies to maintain the viability and vitality of
shopping centres and to encourage a strong retail offer.

Should planning permission be granted, condition 2 of the Inspector's decision notice which
seeks the installation of a shop window for the display of retail goods would no longer be
relevant.

7.20 Planning Obligations

The proposed change of use to a retail unit is acceptable under the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). However, the proposal
involves a use swap with 80 High Street, Ruislip (34237/APP/2009/652), which is also on
this agenda. A legal agreement is therefore necessary to ensure that the retail use at 70
High Street is implemented prior to the commencement of the proposed use at 80 High
Street as an amusement arcade, should planning permission be granted for both
applications.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

This is not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other relevant issues.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation,
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to make an
informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion,
national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 190



9. Observations of the Director of Finance

As there are no S106 or enforcement issues involved, the recommendations have no
financial implications for the Planning Committee or the Council. The officer
recommendations are based upon planning considerations only and therefore, if agreed by
the Planning Committee, they should reduce the risk of a successful challenge being made
at a later stage. Hence, adopting the recommendations will reduce the possibility of
unbudgeted calls upon the Council's financial resources, and the associated financial risk
to the Council.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above, and given that the development complies with the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hilingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007), this application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

Contact Officer: Sonia Bowen Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 191



Wy
War Memorial %,

Y
+
+
+
+
'

'

-

, Rosedene

+

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

70 High Street

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
3862/APP/2009/653 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
NorthPage 192 | November 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

4

y 60
HNILLINGDON

LONDGN




Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Planning Committee

19th November 2009




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address ROYAL QUAY, COPPERMILL LOCK PARK LANE HAREFIELD

Development: Residential development of 95 residential units in 8 buildings of two to four
storeys, with decked and surface car parking for apartments and existing
offices, associated landscaping, access alterations and footbridge across

canal basin.

LBH Ref Nos: 43159/APP/2009/711

Date Plans Received: = 03/04/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 14/04/2009
Date Application Valid: 03/04/2009 30/07/2009
05/10/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 194



0B e By, 1A
s k3 i) P el

[ L T ——

B v -t e
.— -uo‘::au‘;-ono—iz
i

0B ) S O DO S YD D
@ R L I P G YD §
e Db e 4500 ) YD

Buiuueld

NV1d 31IS

" " " o " .




T
e

e

Buiuueld

NVY1d 400174 ANNOYO J3IMOT - LIS

Dasmt ol B ¥O O
L L e 3 e o VD D

) T 00 ] VD @
Ssunses w14 0 P Bt A0 YD

Page 196



0T By, e
s k3 i) P el

Bt 4 s 2 P 4 At Y

B v -t e
.— -uo‘::au‘;-ono—iz
i

w0 BN P By YO8 YD D
e ) R T 8 PR S YD D
T D T 00 ] VD 6

SOTIL e deand i o et fued 83 ¥E Y

Buiuueld

NVY1d 400714 ANNOYO - 31LIS

" " . o " .




Bt 4 s 2 P 4 At Y

g1/HY

o v -

e
2 0110 T84 D06 ¥O2 0110 ML
[Eil

o P YO WY TN ¥ O
L TR LA 08 R S YD) D
0T ) T 00 ] VD 6

SOTL St e i o8 peas Bl 0 ¥E Y

i BUILUR) ]

NVY1d 40074 1SdId - 31IS

" u . o M .

Page 198



:.MHWN,W,H,M Buiuueld NV1d 40014 ANOD3S - 31IS

u . ._ - . 5
I . -
g1/HY

A ]
5 10210110 04 Vs 10204008
i

e Pasmm Y O T ol YS O
e S L 3 o S VS D
oo P o o ] VD B

T At e 4 o S Bund A0 VD Y




::HHM.,H,.._...N Buiuue|d NVY1d 40074 QdIHL - 3LIS

" . ._ P . 5
I . -
g1/HY

wn oo -t e o - Lobeuas. e
i .-wo‘w-:a =4 000 ¥OLOLLO ML

0L PasE YD YRl YO O
e AT B 8 3 DA S YD D
0000 ) T 0 ] VD B

sl s sy 14 o phaa Bued 43 VD ¥




S| BuluUeld NV1d 40014 H1¥NO4 - 3LIS

SOTIL e e i o8 e B 3 vE Y




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e eTienn NY1d 400714 ANNOYO -V MO01d

Rl oavoays | - . . . T
[ I .
S1/uY v
UmMEN |
20-ZLEE
Eeg |
w oot
Besg |
0-400 Z00L
FEN
UE|g 10014 PUNGID Y 0N |
‘@ Eaus
R Siausdopanag Aundaid PRgaITH o

T | { Jeule |
L¥0/200. B Ly et
Buimelp aas 1noAe) o mid
Bunyed Jeos 104

Page 202

- Ao 9SNoH
e . Joue\

. S

d o019

21

60,6082 pauBliE jnake) §
WEBY U peonpal P0G - WD D
60, L0'¥2 FuUsueD

sapuueid ins of paepdn 965 vo @
B0E00E WO - panowa el Adoa yesg A

=g v |




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

Pt s s 3 o 4 e 4 it

Hel pavosun
S0/ uy
UMEIG
20-ZLEE
‘aleq
w oot
‘BESS
0-800 Z00L
4y
Bl 001 VS ¥ %0018
‘)i 188us |
P SjuiLdofaARG Kudoid PRIRH 10}
PlegRieH
BUE] WEY
hengy pioy
ealoug

!Ha.v...i-...._a%lvli
V085 ¥02 011D TE.4 D06% ¥O2 0110 L
e

s

bumg wa gt

wcdanng dipens; - LB patg - SRSy

I ll- n\
g g
=l
=
T
B0B0RT pasele Inoke) g
WEBY U peonpal P0G - WD D
60, L0'FE SUBWILED

sspuuerd s o palepdn %S YO @
BOE00E WD - Pesswal P Adoa yeig W

] omea _

G00/2004

Buimelp aas 1noAe|

Buideospue| 104

NV1d 40014 1SHId4 -V X001d

Page 203



] Buiuueld

Bty s o o o P 4 A Y |

d

Hil paosug

81/4y
umeIg

BO-ZLEE
2120

B oos
‘B|Eag

2-600 ZOOL
sy

ueld J00id puccag ¥ %o
Bl 123U

P Sjusdaiaang Auadaid Pyl 0}

pRyaEl

BUET WE

Aeng pboy
‘aloig

B i St pre
V085 ¥02 011D TE.4 D06% ¥O2 0110 L

SE]
i
e

R b

= i - '

F e
1
=
60.60°62 pasalie nofe| g
WEiBy 1y peongas P0G - VD D
B0, L0'FE FuUsueD

B0E00E

sapueid ins o paepdn 05 vo @
WD) - PaKOwWE 103 AdoD Yeig ¥

g

e |

G00/2004

Buimelp aas 1noAe|

Buideospue| 104

NV1d 40014 ANOOJS -V MOO01d

4
o
Al
()
(@)
Q)
o



]
s k3 s S tbma e
e pree s s sty e S

Pt s s 3 o 4 e 4 it

Ml pawoaug |
§1/4Y |
umeNg
s0zi-Ez
@leq
wid oo
BEIS
-0 Z00L
4y
UE|d 10014 pUNCID) § %001 |
ERECT
P Siupdopaang Aspdoid pioyaieH 10)

b o et

e voz oL
e

10 4 0005 Y02 01D WL

e
bumg wa gt

B ..\“.l' i |

Foo e |||_|II-_.|_A\

4

[49)

60,6062 paseye inofe) §

Wiy s peonpes g 00 -V D

B0, L0'¥E FjURLLCD

60 E00E

sapuueid ins o paepdn 965 vo @
WD) - pRnowal 163 Adoo yeag W

] omea _

Buiuueld

Lv0/200.

Buimelp asas Jnoke|

Buyied Jeos 104

NV1d 40014 ANNOYO - 9 007149

£V
21015 uig




]

e pree s s sty e S

Pt s s 3 o 4 e 4 it

Hdl .
PERYD |
g1/HY

UMEIQ |
e0ZitL
‘aleq
w oot
Besg |
2-210 ZoDL
4y
L 40014 FRil4 § %2008
‘)i 188uS |
BT Suadotanag fuadaid prigaiey 1o}
plegasey
BUET WE
Aeng ekoy
Jealong |

B0 BORE passye Inoke) g
WY v peonpR G0N - WD D
60,2002 SUBLIED

sipuued ins of paiepdn a5 WD @
B0,E0DE  VD- pasowss bl Adooyeig W

] omea _

Buiuueld

L¥0/200L
Buimelp ass jnohe|

Buideospue| 04

NVY1d 00714 1SdId - 9 007149

- . y . P

Page 206



p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

Pt s s 3 o 4 e 4 it

Hel paoay |
81/4y
umesg |
e0-ZLEE
sleq
wiB oo
-ajEag |
2-E10 Z00L
oy
UE|d IO PUSDES g ¥I0HE
Bl 12aug |
i Siussdojanng fuadoid pghiey o)

B0 BORE passye Inoke) g
WY v peonpR G0N - WD D

60, 20'FE SRS
sapuueyd s o palepdn 95 ¥O @

BOE0DE  VOD- PoAowe b9l Adeo ye] W

] omea _

S00/200L
Buimelp aas 1noke|

Buideaspue| 104

NVY1d 400714 ANOD3S - g ¥O01d

" . , . : iy s

Page 207



iz BUUUR)

e pree s s sty e S

e T T NV1d 0014 GdIHL - 9 ¥001d

HAL oosayn " . . . :
114y _HIHIHI\ —
UMEIG
20-ZL-EE
aleq
wd ook
‘Besg |
D-¥10 Z00L
4oy
uEld J0014 PAUL 8 %2018
‘)i 188us |
BT Suadajanag fuadaid prgaiey 1o}
PlegRieH
BUE] WEY
hengy pioy
ealoug

2 o s LBt prse
V085 ¥02 011D TE.4 D06% ¥O2 0110 L
Eil

bﬁv G00/200L
T — Buimelp aos 1nofe)
— .m....._m.l..__.]. Y Buideospue| 104
——r
=
©
o
N
)
(o)
©
o
60,60RET passyE nofe) §
whey ;s peonpau g 300 - VD D
60,200 FuUBUACD

sapuueid ins o paepdn 965 vo @
BOE00E WD) - pRnowal 163 Adoo yeag ¥

] omea _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e et NVY1d 40074 ANNOYO - D MO071d

§1/4Y
umMeNg
s0Zi-Ez
aleq
Wl o0k
BEIS
g-L00 Z00L
4oy

Bl 40014 PUNCUD 3 ¥I0HG

P SiuidoiAsg Abdaid u.”__-_.””m“w . el r\/ Jf\.u O /m.w

L¥0/200L
Buimmelp aas 1noke|

Buyied Jeo o4

54

Page 209

60, 20%E FUIUAOD
sapuueid ins o paepdn 965 vo @
60,E00E WO - panowal el Adoa yesg ¥

g e _




e Buiuueld NY1d ¥007T4 1S¥Id4 - 0 ¥0019

Hdl paoaun - . N . £y s
1/ 4y HIHIHI‘ —]
UMEIQ
SOZLEE
Eeg
B o0
BEDS
g-810 Z00L
4oy
Ul 20013 18 3 00K
@) jeaus |
A1 Susdojaang Auadalg prgliey o)
plEyBEH

G00/2004
Buimelp aas jnoke|

Buideospue| 104

Page 210

60, 20'FE Suswes
spuueid uns o) paepdn oes v @
BOE00E WD - Pescwal b Adoa YRl W

] uomeay _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e et NY1d 400174 ANOD3S - O M001d

§1/4Y
UMEI]
s0ziEz
aleq
W o0k
BEIS

g-610 Z00L
FENY
UEld 100|4 PUCIBS 3 ¥I0HE |
‘@l jeaus |

P SjuidoiaARE Ku00id PBIRH 10}

LH

LLH

G00/2004

Buimelp aas jnoke|
= Buideospue| 104

Page 211

60, 20%E FUIUAOD
sapuueid ins o paepdn 965 vo @
60,E00E WO - panowal el Adoa yesg ¥

g e _




240708
280909

300309

Dvaft copy text remaved - GA
GA - Block D bin store position

altered

comments

B GA Site updated to suit planners

Revison

A
[+

E1

For landscaping

Block F

layout see drawing

7002/005

Bin
Store

For car parking

o
=
5
-
Q
P~
53
3
R
Page 212

130 Mo Wk

Aentacts Project Maragers. Cusstty Sunveyors

Lescawer

LE? Tl

et 2116304 4400, Fax G116 304 5401

BB S £ e 5 2

for Harefield Progerty Developmnts Lid

' Sheet title:

Block D Ground Floor Plan
7002 021-C

| Scale:
1:100 @ A1

Project:
Royal Guay
Park Lane
Harafiald

Date:

23-12.08

| Drawn:
RR/LS
| Checked: TPH

Ref:

s s Ohrdnce Eusvey e T (agr o
v o A G v sl
H

A v o (e vt T it o iy
Fep LM Tradng

Planning[

BLOCK D GROUND FLOOR PLAN



p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

Pt s s 3 o 4 e 4 it

Hil paosugy

81/4y
umeIg

BOZLEL
a1eq

wiB oo
‘B|Eag

D-Z20 Z00L
Ay

UBl 20014 18414 Q ¥o0H
Bl 12aug |

P17 suauxdojnag Auadald pioyaseH 10f
PiRyBIEH

60.60°62 paialje
vopsod @uls g QPO -V D
60,200 SRS
sspuuerd s o palepdn %S YO @
BOEDDE WD - PoaswE ol Adoo YD W

] uomea _

S00/200L
Buimelp aas Jnoke|

Buideospue| 104

NV1d 400714 1SdId d ¥O01d

" . y " ; ..:..”

Page 213



p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

Pt s s 3 o 4 e 4 it

Hel pavosun
21/ 1y
UmEIQ
B0-21ET
aleq
wiB oo
‘B|edg |
2-€20 ZO0L
4oy
Ukl 10014 PUCSRS 0 W0
2 18aug |
BT Suadajanag fuadaid prgaiey 1o}
PietyBiEH

60.60°62 paialje
vopsod @uls g QPO -V D
60,200 SRS
sspuuerd s o palepdn %S YO @
BOEDDE WD - PoaswE ol Adoo YD W

] uomea _

G00/200L
Buimelp aas Jnoke|

Buideospue| 104

NY1d 400174 ANOD3S d M001d

" . y " ; ..:..”

Page 214



B et NV1d 400714 ANNOYO 3 Y0079

Hdl
paYIBYD " . s . gy
I I =
§1/4Y _ -
UMEIQ
Q0ZLEL
Rl
w oot
‘Bleag
2-920 Z00L
4y
LEj] 10014 PUNCID) 3 %201
B jeRys |
P Susdojaang Auadaly prgliey o)
PlegRIEH

——— Lv0/200.
g Buimelp ass Jnoke|

B
s

(o)
h
(qV]
()
(@)
Q)
o

60, 608T B0 Ulg MBU 3 ¥o08g - VD 2

60, L0'FE ElUFULCD

sspuuerd s o paiepdn %S YO @
BOEB00E WD - Pesswal pa Adoa yeig v

] omea _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

UB|d 00y 1814 3 %0
2 jBaug |
P Susdojaang Auadaly prgliey o)

60,6062 BOIBUIGMEU T ROE-VD D

60, 0P SRS
sspuued s of paiepdn aps WO @

BOB00E WD - Pescwa b Adooyeig W

g uomea _

NV1d 00714 1SdId 3 ¥007149

" . , " P

Page 216



iz BUUUR)

e pree s s sty e S

e eTienn NVY1d 40014 ANOD3S 3 ¥O01d

Hdl .
PERYD - . s . e v s
[
€1/ 4y |ﬂ
UMEIQ
SOZLEE
aleq
WEB o0
BEDS
0-820 Z0OL
4oy
UElg 40014 PUGIES 3 Ho0IR
‘Bl 188us |
P SjuiLdofaARG Kudoid PRIRH 10}
plEyBEH
BUE] e
hengy pioy
ealoug

¥

2 o s LBt prse
¥02 0110 R4 006% ¥O2 9110 L
Eil

R
i

L
lgpney  usmbmany ety - SRSy

:

s

g |
T .llll- ‘\
S’
=l \/
=
I~
—
(q\}
(O]
(@)
©
o
60,6082 0B UG MeU 3 W0E-VD O
60,200 FuUsuweD

sapuueid ins o paepdn o5 vD @
BOE00E WO - panowa el Adoa yesg W

] omea _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e T T NVY1d 00714 1SdId - 4 ¥O01d

LLT—— - . . . PR
§1/4Y o
umMeNg

s0Zi-E2
aeq|
Wl o0k
BEIS
- 180 Zo0c
4oy
Ul 20014 1841 4 %001 |
‘@l jeaus |
P Siupdofanng Aspdoid pioyaieH 10)
piRyaiEH
BUET e .
fenp ekoy ) o & ® o o
ealoug | ) . s ™ ° .

et e o it e . L] s . » = . - ~ .

108G HOL DLLO T4 0005 KL OILLD WL @ ™ L ]

d-.w.u._—

s, a1

meolaung lgeens usteay petyy  SPERRY

(10, | N

ey | Ia\.
e |
Ee——— g y\
el
& Ry, )
r L]
L ]
u&|
oo
—
Al
(0]
(@)}
©

40

60, 20%E FUIUAOD
sapuueid ins o paepdn 965 vo @
60,E00E WO - panowal el Adoa yesg ¥

g e _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e et NV1d 400714 ANOD3S - 4 007149

LLT—— - . . x :
§1/4Y o
umMeNg

s0Zi-E2
#leq
W00k
BEIS
g-260 Z00¢
4y
UE|d 10014 PUCISS § ¥001 |
@ jeaus |
P Siupdopaang Aspdoid pioyaieH 10)
piRyaiEH
BUET e .
Kengy pekoy : . °
ealoug | s ° .

oot e o Bt s . . ® = . ° .

58 #0215 =m4 06w FOE 9115 -

d-.w.u._—

s, a1

meolaung lgeens usteay petyy  SPERRY

(10, | N

ey | Ia\.
e |
Ee——— g y\
eV
[ ]
L ]
u&|
(o]
—
Al
(0]
(@)
&
Zia

60, 20%E FUIUAOD
sapuueid ins o paepdn 965 vo @
60,E00E WO - panowal el Adoa yesg ¥

g e _




e L 197877 @ NV1d ¥OOT1d ANNOYD - 9 Y0019

Hdl o - . . x gy e
Lol [ . |
§1/4y |g
UMEIQ
s0ZLEL
aleq
W 0oL
‘BEDS

0-550 Z00L
4y
LBl 10013 PUNCIS) © ¥0r Y
@ jEaus =3

Bi7 Sjunsdojanng Aundald PeYaIRH o) L
piByRIEH
BUET e
heng pioy -
eloug 1Nt

o
N
N
)
(o)
©
o
G00/200.
Buimelp aas jnoke)
Buideospue| 104
C

60.60'8E sue]
DENOH IBLILUNG 46 $2I3¢ MO[|E
0] PaJENE SINORE| DUl SANNS UIg
'PRATILUBS SRI00-IELS © ¥I0ME - VO 2
60, L0'%E UL
spuueid uns of paepdn 9es v @
B0, E0°0E WD) - pRsowal 163 Adoo Y W

] uomea _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e Z 19707 @ NVY1d HOO0T4 1S¥I4 - 9 M0019

- . . : s
[ . -
S1/HY o

T e — il
=

Page 221

sipuueid ins of paepdn 965 vo @
60E00E WO - panowal kel Adoa yesg A

g e _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e € [8A87 ©@ NV1d HOO14 ANOD3S - 9 M0019

- . . : s
[ I -
S1/HY o

Page 222

60.60'8E sue]
DENOH IBIING YO SSA00E MA[E
0} paueyie snoke| " Hul SaslE uq
‘PBADLUB SEA00-IEIS © ¥00MT - WD 2
60,200 U
sspuueyd ing o paepdn 985 vO A
60,E0°0E WD - panoiwal 13 Adoo yeig L4

g e _




p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

Pt s s 3 o 4 e 4 it

Hel pavosun
21/ 1y
UMEIQ
B0-21ET
aleq
wiB oo
‘|edg |
2-650 ZO0L
4oy
UElg s001 PUNGID H oI
B 1Baug |
BT Suadajanag fuadaid prgaiey 1o}
PietyBiEH

60.60'8E sue]
DENOH IBLILNG )6 $2I3E MOj|E
€] PAJBYIE SINOAR| " DUI BEI0IS UG
‘PIAIWAI SRIOC-IIEIS H P0E - VD D
60, L0'%E S0
sspuuid 1S of paEpdn A4S W k|
BOE0OE VO - posowe b Adeo ye] W

] ] _

§00/2004
Buimelp aas 1noAe|

Buideaspue| 104

L [9A97 @ NVY1d 0014 ANNO¥O - H X004

" . , " R

Page 223



p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e proe s s sty e S

Pt s s o 4 e 4 it

Hil paosugy
81/4y
umeig
B0-ZLEL
2120
v B 00z 00L
‘ajEag |

2-0%0 ZOOL

Jay
UEL 50014 J2114 H %308

‘i 138us |
P17 Sjusdaiaang Auadaid Pyl o)
PlegRIEH
BUET WE
hengy pioy

ealoug

¥

o o "y oot e
¥02 0110 R4 006% ¥O2 9110 L
Eil

R
i

L
lgpney  usmbmany ety - SRSy

i

s

g |
B
——

-\

e

4

60, 60'8E sue]
DENOH SIBUIUNG O $SI00E Moj|e
0] paJBYE SPNO; " AU sesms uiq
‘PEADWEY SI0D-JIEIS H ¥20MT - WD 2
60, L0'%E UMD
sspuueyd Ing o paepdn 085 v @
BOEDOE VD -pascwa ke fdoeoyely W

] uomea _

Z [9A97 @ NY1d ¥OO0T4 1SHId - H %0019

" . y x ; ..\,..”

Page 224



p——— sl o1 1] (8111 TP

e pree s s sty e S

e € |98 © NY1d 30074 ANOD3S - H M0019

- . . : T
[ I -
g1/ 4y e

Page 225

60.60'82 ouey
BENOH IBWILLNG O SSEI0E MOjje
0] PRUBHE SINOAE) U BRI0E LIG
‘PINOWAI SRIOO-IEE HP0E - WD O
60,0002 SluWED
sspuueid s o) polepdn %S YO @
BOEDOE VO -pasowa il fdooyeiy v

g e _




T s e

ZNOILVYAZT3 3LIS

| Buluuelg
] s




E% P T TI0 ] i
_E.J_Hl_. T __W_ AN _W_...._L _I._l_.m._.l_r; T [_H_ E m E

- E [LiINgEu ] | E L L E.CC.%

S Y DD 5
e Vi — B — i [aV}

i nzopmmw._._w

__ 00 oooooo mm.iﬂuum mEEu @EEE i

‘"U0 pooooo oW Hooo oWhooo diooo ob

0T ooonoo b Hooo ghbooo oibooo oby u..,

B h Hooo othooo obbooo B 1




Bujuuelg

o 0
~5 ﬂ::; To IPng oo opiospsgaoo oople,s Jifofo] alllio
= Ll oo, oo _Eu 0 umém% m _J;_ s S Wolool® | Mol on

M.?“ 1 mw amm m - " MMSE_ o | o oo fHoooooH o
— La - = ; L//\\\\\n|< _, — __ g~ 9NOILYA313 3LIS




Buiuueld SNOILVATT3 -V MO01d
o —r—

e

60,6082 passyE nofe|

WBIEy U paonpal Y 0K - YO
60, 20%E

sapuueid ins of paepdn 965 vo @
BOE0DE WD - pavowss b Adoo yeig




Buiuue|d

} SNOILVYA3T3 8 X004

]
WiE uoness|3

g psain 1=
[ : en

.mﬂmn oo Uooo U «lun 0 oo o
Moo 0o E_d.u
oo E"u oo o

0O
_ 00
log Euuu Upgoog U
TE lgoo oo

——— £ - e

Page 230

0011 Mg
(yBnouyy ng abpug) LG uonese|3

B0, GOET W .inl-!n.mlu 5
60,2002 SRR
w IBUUEKI NS of PEIEPN BXS WO @

w0 - pappe safipug uogessE
60-E0-0E  [EUONIDPE § parcias 19l Adea yeig W

_ R “omray _




= Buluue|d

0011 w05
8 uonEAR3
g BT 1 § - T e 1
iy ~ et
= T
WEire e
0 10 gt
we [
) =z
it Bitee
20 Lo
e T
oy ot
G S N T - s

U 0ood n

Ll ggog o -E
O Oooo o -l

- (EH

e .
Bt

T
wroe

oog |
ooo _.EED i alale w%

_E:__ T

NN

_Ziu f_mmﬁ[l_

o i

EEE

¢ SNOILVATT3 g M00714d

i)
¥g

5!

.....

DEE

60.60°62 pasale nofe| g
Wbiey v peonpas 00 -V D

B0, L0¥E FUBRUICD
sspuuerd s of palepdn %S YO @

BOE0DE  VOD- PoAowe b9l Adeo ye] W




Buiuueld

|
-
111

UONBABE SO
_ﬁl’%_s
B0IE U O 0 - WD 2

sapuueid ins of paepdn 95 vo @
BO0E00E WO - panowal kel Adoa yesg W

Bl |

SNOILVATT3 @ ¥0014d

1101

111

— -.!Jn
s

N

™

Al

o

(o))

©

o

I



Buiuueld

SNOILVATT3 - 3 MO0O719

. — g —

™
(o]
Al
(0]
(@)]
]
o

0L L 5

13 uoneas|3
B = = — o

__ __
| U | Ok

ME | i e

T wEme CH s
5

== ey

WS i




- Buiuueld SNOILVAZT3 - 4 ¥O01d

[ e T ——

Hdl
payoByD N . X . o
[ I I .
g1/ 4y B
UMEIQ
Q0ZLEL
‘@eq
L T TR
‘Bleag
g-¥50 Z00L
ey
sucqeAs(3 4 %01
Bl RS
I sjuswdoanng Auadoid pRgaIeH 10} ]
PleyRIEy £4 uonens3
BUET WiEd 0L| g
fengy pekoy e P4 UONEAS|3
waloig it
T Wi
1085 02 0110 T4 0005 $OE 140 L
e e
o101
i
2o 101
W
- I
= — )
s i ot
— 9
= e
ey
W
T
Ty
I0IE20T USRS
e
o 19 10
i &

[--TR L
24 uoiess3
0044 W35
14 UoHRABI3
0 00 0
(s
o
[Tig1
ot
[ris 2
o0 10 1
Wi
0 B3 2
[y
oo
weer
e KUAY
s
o
TS
s
[Nint
004 v} 0 W)
L WIS

60, 20% LA
spuueid uns o) paepdn oes v @

BOE00E WD - Pescwal b Adoa YRl W
] vomasy |




o s et s Ao w, o]

E__g_nn
Qelslfaljels}

SNOILVATTI H ¥0014d

S

moio | §_
oolioo o [ f.




HeL oooayn

£1/4Y
UMESQ

B0-ZL-EE
ajeq

wd DOk
ajeng

8560 Z0OL
1=y
-y UO0BG BUG

P Suawsdojaaag Auadaig

BUET WEY
Kengy pboy
Joalong

Buiyieq

Buiyieg

_;

g8

$8800Y JEN2NYBA

V-V NOILD3S 31IS

=M
Bunsixg




Buiuueld 0-0 NOILO3S 31IS

HeL oooayn

£1/4Y
UMESQ

Bo-ZL-EE

ajeq

wd DOL-L
ajeng

880 Z00L
12y

0 UON0RS BNG

BUET HIES
Kengy pboy
Joalong

Bunpied
o} dwey

Bued

-

WewiE)
1

aUE" asNOH Jallng

BH _
m mEnum|




e BUIUURL NV1d 3dvOSANYT - LIS

- . , . e
[ I .
10 HY e
UMEIG
#eg

BOAGED WSS Mau e th pase ufeen BN Y Y

_ g _.aIiE_




i O MY

Hal pavosun
vo
umEIg
609062
‘aleq
wWiB ook e
‘BEDS
W680 Z00L
4oy
1Eeq - ey Budeaspuen)
) jeaus |
BT Suadatanag fuadald prgaiey 1o}
plEyaE
BUE] e
hengy jioy
ealoug

b o e s "y o obrng. s
V085 ¥02 0LLO R4 D06 ¥O2 0110 L
e

et
e iy L
e R

E Bunjoaqg Buined oo|g siejue|d pasiey  piejjog [[EqUOULED

- e

g i & W , fnss, 5
T =
LY s Ly W S N WS WD Y




s BUIUUR]]

e proea s de Aasevy ,!uaasle.y.

[Tttt ey |

_uﬂﬁ@_._o
§1/ 4y
UMEIQ
e0ZLEL
e

‘eSS

SIHO0SE 18LE 190Weos] SIHOOPL 151Z JBGWEsa] SIHDOZ L 81T JBquianag SIHDO0L 181 J8quisag SIHO0E 1812 JBgUWeces

900 ZDDL
Jay
Apmg ung
B ERUS
P S1u0udoiaAB As0d0sd PIRGRIEH 10
PlegRIEH
BUE) YEg
Aeng peboy
Jealeig
o demn st et s
VoGt K02 0115 T4 006 KL BILG

U009 W1 sequaidas SIHO0Z | 1812 Jequades SIHOO0L 1512 Jequandes SHO080 1812 sequiades

SIHO0GL 1SLE dunp

R ———

. )?)1 anmmmE R .

SIHDODL WSLT e SIHDOPL IS LE T SIHO0ZL H1E e SIHO000L $LZ e

g vomeay |




I Riverside
Cottages

Royal Quay ;

aujoD JAAlY

1,
%

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

]
'
0 K l\K
. ElSub Sta " \
L
" II
III L}
'
0o
= 1
L— w
I'ml
s .
X L 2
Salamander *, ”:‘;: - ) ‘é
Qua; ey . g| £ .
y Vel - sl & Brillig Lyn{
(4] 5
mes | &
G O
bt
oo b
@ "’ @
w3
[Fliuiataiii BELERVAVENUE_ ____.
f pmmmmmmmmmmm
LI
o 0 a
; war |z
'
N A
* B 2
¥ L}
‘I‘ N Il ‘
[\ I
’ L}
'''' o .
5 .

Royal Quay
Coppermill Lock
Park Lane, Harefield

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale Pe.
43159/APP/2009/711 1:2,500 i s
Planning Committee Date 5”’ ’tf‘
North Page 241 November 2009 1L LINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address YEADING BROOK BETWEEN TORCROSS ROAD & WHITBY ROAD
RUISLIP

Development: Shared use cycle/footbridge over Yeading Brook (River Crane), as part of the
proposed cycle track between Whitby Road and Queens Walk, Ruislip.

LBH Ref Nos: 66331/APP/2009/1968

Date Plans Received:  09/09/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 09/09/2009
Date Application Valid: 01/10/2009 01/10/2009
23/10/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 242



JE— =
00 202 €v/3 — _— —_
— == — -—
ARy oy Bupnag ON el = —_— —
=
60/60/81 7 o8 )] 00z:4 pE= e i
eg umpag | peulieeg eas i
— == = i . — — —
Aening sasl e = e
=
] s
el e
i =
HLYd 3TDAD HO0HE ONIOYIA =i \ =S
eefoud
SLROGE GORI0 ON ME LD oM ey
ML G0N ZOCRABIN "LTRAS HoM B/MS LI SHD
dNOED NOUWIAU0Hd HEWISNOD ONY LNIMNOHANG
SLIA0Ed  LMGRGADEDN
NOQONITTIH:
m§

HLVd 3SN
d34dVvHS d3SOd0dd

Page 243

39dl44
d3S0Od0dd

HLYON




30068 HIVAL004 0N 1040

' * TovE o3 s e = b
O et o
o] mlam | TEEEERS

f
:
i

|
ﬁ

1
.
it

Ll
7

H

ok T
¥=¥ NO NOUWNAID

oot
T e ooy

(o anee)

e

A SHOVL

R

e

ok TS
8-8 NOU23S

[} - | 11

Anio) e WA B

-3 | [ 1

-]

(8]

\\\
nln\n\/
i uoyoIeton
jo




Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

Yeading Brook between
Torcross Road and
Whitby Road, Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
66331/APP/2009/1968 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

North Page 245 November 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address LAND REAR OF 114, 116 & 118 ABBOTSBURY GARDENS EASTCOTE

Development: Single storey detached two-bedroom dwelling with associated parking and
new vehicular crossover, involving demolition of an existing garage

LBH Ref Nos: 66232/APP/2009/1711

Date Plans Received:  05/08/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 05/08/2009
Date Application Valid: 12/08/2009 25/09/2009
30/09/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 246



0w PN UBISOQ 944

3 = ST Rl
o & g L 9 S ¥ € z L o ) seadyy

0200/9LL/6002 | 509 Mg

o Buweig 00L:L F 05211

afes |
ueld aNs
B ueid uonesotaus,

SAIUAIAYAI [EIUBWWNU 'F SUONEIO| B3I I -HION

21001583
‘suaples) Aingsloqay -

sjuawdojanag bury -

LY @ 00L:L % 05211

uoday Emynouogny yus puodsanod o)
nafe] a1 01 UONERNNY GO/GOISL ¥ MY
uonenbiyuos

1001 01 UORESNY GO/GOISZ 8 MY

SNON B3] [PUCRIDPY G0/60/DE I MY

Ueld aUS
aleog

ue|d uoneao aus

yoday jpmynouogry. o) puodsanod

1) b5 ggg ks peLsL
i, = BN UIPRD B
g 1 bs 556  whs ¢6'151

h.-&.ﬁ.ﬂ%fﬁwﬁa\\ll

i

s \\ \- s

v
-
.

e
e

Page 247



Side Elevation

A
s

Rear Elevation

Street Scene Along Rushdene Road / front Elevation

Ground Floor Plan

Rushaensg Fioad

Side Elavanen of Propoded Development

Gardon 10 T rear of 112 Abbotstury Gamens

Garden 10 1ha tear of 110 Abbotsbury Garans |

1 Garden 10 e toar of 108 Abbotsbury Gardens.

Rev B 25/09/09 Alteration to roof
Rev A 15/09/09 Aleration to Windows in
Side Elevation to address Lowlands Road

configuration

Street Scene Along Lowlands Road / Side Elevation

King Developments

Chert

Eastcote
“Flevations & Plan

mnm

" pbbotsbury Gardens,

Drawing No.

52000 | 2009/116/001B

Coppgt (B

PFG Design Ltd




Canon Lane First a

)

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Land rear of 114, 116 & 118 OF HILLINGDON

For identification purposes only. Abbotsbury Gardens C Plan!‘l\tlng & .

This copy has been made by or with Eastcote ' omm uml y ' ervices

the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

ii?ﬁrégshg'(a?fx and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale '

Unless the Act provides a relevant 66232/APP/2009/1711 1:1 ,250 P

exception to copyright. gg 3 QUOORS

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Plannlng Committee Date J *

London Borough of Hillingdon . .

100019283 2009 North Page 249 November 2009 +FI L L.INGDON

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address LAND AT REAR AND FORMING PART OF 63, 65 AND 67 LOWLANDS
ROAD EASTCOTE

Development: Two storey, detached four-bedroom dwelling with habitable roofspace with
associated parking and new vehicular crossover

LBH Ref Nos: 56032/APP/2009/967

Date Plans Received:  11/05/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 11/05/2009
Date Application Valid: 21/05/2009 21/05/2009
07/09/2009
30/10/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 250



60T ¥3800130
Qo[:\ :1YdS
90/ M¥d/ ¥159/bsL
NV1d %2019

WEL
| 3543H 13dM
/ i 333woe=H

/ TIYM 0139
/ HBIH IWLaWT1-9°0=M

N3 030VVORISO1D
WDIH 3s1awoz=3

BNIdYISANY 1408 =S
avody

R S S S ... S NV U

5

S NV MO

ot

DY

Page 251




6007 WIN

oo] ] FWIS
60 [N¥d/ ans3/bsL . o ™
v :
Nv1d %2078 oM SANVYIMOT
Qvod saNvIMO) L9 s '£9 SN
s g s o e iy el BB o S e e A AP s i s SO S . S W S0, oS
-
7
Ve
/
| /
_\ \ 1 1
_
s |
g
e I
s |
m_. I
2 " “us3H 3va1y "
g 4003 SAUGYd HUA 3TWWO) e &
| NOILVAZ3 3S > i >
| 3 " g
_ //h % ! .
#;
| . \\ -
| , ’ P
_ ,/ el C "
SN | 533w L — 4
§L _ we - 2 ] .
Ly N g7 H S9N _ £9°oN _
| 7 1| 1\ P |
2 . > 3 _
_ \_\ m m // m m _
| » »
T o - i f-d-_ i -\ § i |
1 = ! g e g e
ik - E 3 i & |
m m
_ g ] 3 .
ey |
|
_ _




moom.:xma ||||LI.||IJ Lﬂui.l. m_ _Jr_l.lnlll_l
QG:| Jvas ] - =i _ _ [ L _ _

10/33d/91S9/951L I

NVId 90074 ANNOND wooy DD \ _
BNIADM W05

BnINIG Wwood

- INTIL

g

&

J

3

£
£

Page 253

e

_r____l— — I/——m‘ -L 3Svowoog
35vyvD NIHOLW
il i
o, L B! mim
el -
_ | | i £ |
€

L

<A

DM ALun

YA

aWosN) D




6007 Y

£ Woodd43d -

I Wooya3g

4 WO0¥d39

05\ TWIS .
20 /3¥d /34159 /bSL
N¥1d ¥001d 1SYI4 .
Z Wooidq3g
R

Page 254

W

NYE




6007 MY
0g:] VYIS
¢ 0/ 3¥d/¥1S9/ BSL
NY1d Joo1d dNOI3S

S

AdnLs any

3Abvyols

/1

<

!
|1
4

Nre

Page 255



19/ oot/ /TECIS
6007 W38W3aL43S
0S:l 3IVIS .
¥0/%3d/ 4152 /9S1
NOLLYA3IT3 INOYd

¥0-01\

ot

) .
O
O O

Y5-Sl

% L]

¥l
Qvo¥ SINVIMOT LS9 SoN- 0T'b1

Page 256



L96/ 60T/ 4av /75095
£00T ¥3gW3L43S

aS:1 1vdS
S0/ X3d/ ¥1S2 DS L
NOILYAIT] ¥vid
$0-0
1441
¥5s)

C

=

L]

[ ]
L1

6007 < - {

T P88
avod SONVIMOT LIS SIN- 0Z-p|

A

. Page 257



L96/6002/3dV/ 7095
6002 ¥3IIW3Ld3S
0S:} WS

LO/ Add/ HNS9/bSL
NOlLVAIN3 3dIS MN

¥5Sl|

4

EE0Z ¢

gu&zﬁ:ﬂﬁ-mu.szgl

fo-ol -

L]

\

O

L]

Page 258



196 /6007 fadv 25095
6007 ¥3WWILIIS

QG il IWOS
90/M3d /9159 /bSL
NOILVA 313 3dIS 3S

$0-01

>

O]

1

O

—

+5'S1

28l
1oy Wn.zﬁ_zﬁ.n_u L9-59 "SON ~ 0Z° 6l

Nz

o0\

b€l

Page 259 e



L 96 /6002 /3 /25095
6002 ¥23W3L43S

ool il IWXS :
ol /X¥d/¥159 /95t $0-01 L

qyQd SanwvIMmol

NOLD3S 1No¥d 3N :
Y00\

—

SNOIL¥AI T NOILD3S

.y

A

qQvoy SaNvIMO

WOl 1035 3aiS AN L9™°N

00!

A
AVMVY W €8 d43AQ AWMV W RZ %3A0
e e N
ozpt -~~~ T T T T T T T ozt - - - —--=-=
(ATOWIAVE | AWM3AIXQ LNOWS ¥ L
gvoed SanNviIM 0ol T Wk NN WSy 1 Noli23S 3q1S IS ¥ Naq¥YD dv3Id ._
— +0'0) " D 0l

Add 3ABY WS -w Tl iMB1do0d INOAd
44 3A08Y W 8+ SLHD\T1100d 341S dNY IVIY

€2 35 ¢ .

<

el

S-St

+2-81

avoy SANYTMOTL9-59 "SON - 0T-61

7



000

T O 0 s LGNGO W0 O] PO Sl Y m
i » | e o
0, | V\WSLL-BOSL  uw Sumony
60 9NV e QoL i
;ﬂw R ZH—..M iy r .f.o
RANDIEH ADIHD
L
R
TTOM SAMYIMOT 59
ool

THHOWLYHD S NWHIO WL J
Mgy
e oL +
w0 (ASPAERN PUD pUB) \SJ 9001

il
35
313
132

i &
jift
§

i

%
s5bcbiunszreasecazsz BERBEDEY

H

i
.
]

z
iz i
S
5.4
§§1i§

P
i
i

&
giegés
]

iz
3353
fii
Page 261

i
i
i

23
i
)
|

i}

aegusnanarBelefasBRE o gt
i
; ]
i

i

NSZS NSZS

N7 i
bl (s m =

g




y
N

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

Land at rear and forming part of
63, 65, 67 Lowlands Road

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref:
56032/APP/2009/967

Scale

1:1,250

Planning Committee

NorthPage 262

Date
September 2009

LONDON




Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group

Address 33 PARKFIELD ROAD ICKENHAM
Development: Single storey brick outbuilding to rear for use as shed.

LBH Ref Nos: 40891/APP/2009/1338

Date Plans Received:  19/06/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/07/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 263



s-s_@ THSVAYN 4q'.useig £EEL 998 BOZO "1 MIT SYH MESHPPIN Jeuuld ®j0sod PO Pooy yBiy |
o | GRS swarmen G v ¥ o vy ) 'XASTTAAIN AVHNINDI ‘avOod a13idyevd €€
oy B/P6FT/60 "oN Big dIHSHINLYVd dO3TOVIN LL3TT119 3JHL
NVid 3L1IS av oy 731 4% 8Vd
f ,mu__ _,w._.a .ao ea:o
L’mm @ gie Ve
| 1] D - X @
m ﬁu«g&&mﬁh.mmﬁ =
._ f ﬂ.ammw%:.._mm_._.m_xm ¥ v.A_. MA
| [] "
(o]
(a\}
(0]
(@]
0]
o
|
- | x
T - : S
: __ mwm..n_aﬂ.
> i _,._.a;om / \
\A\\ o 2604004 | /r Nl
60/90/62 und
une ssaudia i

I01A3s g SbRUIRIP puUE S3WeU 3313 Y

apnjaul 0} uejd 3115 0] SJUBLUPUBLLY #90




IHSVYAYN 4g umoug
60/10/02 a4pQ
0S: 1 8|pog
8/¥6¥T/60 on ‘Big

SEEL 898 B0Z0 18} MIZT SVH xese|pply Jeuu|d ejosisol p|o pooy YBIH |

sjupjinsuo) BuluUD|d UMO] X S}08}1ydly pedaipoysn d@
dlHSdANIdY e dOFNIVIN L13TID FHL

'X3ST1AAIN "WVYHNINDI "avOd al3IdNyvd ¢

SNOILLYATTI ANV SNVId

NOLLYATTI LS¥YT HINOS

NOLLVASTF LSVS HINOS

NV Id J00Y NYTId

pays uspseb 1jing youg

‘)

NOLLYAITS LSIM HLHON NOLLWASTS LSV HIHON

Page 265




Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

33 Parkfield Road

Ickenham

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
40891/APP/2009/1338 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
NorthPage 266 | November 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

4

TN
T™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 126-128 HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Part change of use of Nos.126-128 from Class A2 (Financial and Professiona
Services) to Class D2 (Assembly and Leisure) for use as a bingo hall
(licensed under the 2005 Gaming Act) and alterations to front of No.128.

LBH Ref Nos: 3874/APP/2009/1837

Date Plans Received:  20/08/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 21/09/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 267



g

any

Z00-9Z L—INY—8v Ly

on Bumosg | samg

60/60/10

ww up suojsuawig
sioas

NOILYATT3 LNOYH ONILSIX3

w0 05%
iog) panaeyy siog umoig

NOILYAZTI LNOHY ® NVId ¥OON4
ONNOND Q3504084 ¥ ONILSIX3

o

4nsing

133415 HOIH BZL - 921 i

QL7 SIYLNID ONIAVO VHOOY

s

9ZL-IN¥-BY
on_aor fong

epose) Bunsixg

> NIIS30-110V .48

a3 pHOMUGRIDIBLEge! fjjoui-0
BOOFLZ OSBLD :99W
B08PY9 ¥OILO HeL

nre NN
UojdiwoipoN

onuoAy poomsussng ¥y
ubiseq slav

suBjsag

“uoissiwiad uspm Joud inoyim 4iod
o Bjoum Uj peonpaides 8q jou ADW PuD

9iqv Jo Auedosd sui 5| BuMBJp SIUL

LT

IVAOYddY d04

sasadind anss)

wiag

Godiasag “won

80/80/51

INSS1 NS0 2

BU7 50710

UIINIAY WY RO NG Lo

NOILYATT3 LNOYH d3S0d0¥d -

NY1d HOO14 ONNOYHD ONILSIX3

]

| o

oM

U

asn ev

piep
unog

— i r

UL O GuIRl, LN e
anBy 01,5000 IBAKE 61 3 —f -
Butids 100y LO SEIIAda 100

wn
MOPL BLSIX® O UoS0d =k
o Ui pauu, Buiedo Joop may

s

Beiose) Suisig

Buado
100p MaN

[

N¥1d HO074 ANNOYO a3s0d0dd

asn - v

e
|

L

(oszi:1)
dVIN NOILYDO1

35N 40 IONVHD

]

2 601 -VIHY BOCT 38N 20 JONYHD
ZA Gl “V3IHY HOOTH ONNOXS SNILSIX3

‘SY3YY YOO

saujyoep

MOpUIM
Aedsip jiejes iny

o

obuig - za

PaEA
unog

SHULP PICO B 10U WM POO) Yoeus Buinieg 1# ﬁ
JeUNOD) S9BS '

saulep

sauyoeN sauloel

sauioep

saul
L s g

m! Sl ) o

L

38 TUM 090 .VHOOY. FHL HOS

NOLLVOIddY 3LVHYVAIS HIONN 30N
SNOLLVINddY IOWNOIS TIV :3LON

STYIHILVIN S0 NOLLYTIVLSNI
% INIWIHNOOk HOS OIHNSYIN 3LIS 38 01 3005

‘31d03d G IBVSIA HO4 SSIIOV
4002 ‘00€8 S8 ¥ LN INSWNOOO Q3IA0EddY

40 SINSWIHINDIHE IHL HLIM SLO3JSY TTV NI ATdWNOD
THNOHS ONY TIOHSTUHL HSN14 V HLIM ONINIO HYI1D
ININDOB INNINININ ¥ 3AVH TIM J¥31 5000 3HL

“LINA MOGNIM ONILSIXS NV

40 NOLLISOd 3HL NI 3000 M3N ¥ 4O JAISNTONI
ONILSIX3 SV NIVINSH O1 51 INOHS dOHS O32V19

“S31ON TVH3INID

(0571 3TvDS) SIHLIW

oL 6 8 L 9 S ¥ € 4

Page 268




Lo
. .
P
P
-
PRt

Car Park

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

126 - 128 High Street
Ruislip

LONDON B

OROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &
Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
3874/APP/2009/1837 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 269 November 2009

4

ILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 290 WEST END ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to Class A3 (restaurants and cafes.)

LBH Ref Nos: 45677/APP/2009/1971

Date Plans Received: 10/09/2009 Date(s) of Amendmenti(s): 10/09/2009
Date Application Valid: 21/09/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 270



E.W \ m‘ﬁ.‘aj\m
&?\E}le heen

l..\(./

]

ORopese® A3
Lu5€

AR

Cieau thLmar\q_ﬁn

This deawing is the Copysight 0Y
JOHN - W - EVANG sl may not be
repsoduced or copled, in whale or in
pant, without exprass permission.

YQ)::CS? X':_Lé.v”h“ho}._)

Scae 1100

T Na 2250 zev A

J W EVANS
ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS
298 Woodlands Ave.

o e

Peotosen L whoee of LISE o
erar Suef Feom AL e AR,

290 Loest B R Rusd Cocves b Ls.

Y Q9917 OM Low




Eilmar Montessori Sct

_ OF HILLINGDON
Site boundary 290 West End Road Planning &

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with RUISIIp Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents . . : Y

Act 1988 (the Act). Planning Application Ref: Scale

Unless the Act provides a relevant 45677/APP/2009/1971 1:1 ,250

exception to copyright.

, , 1,
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Planning Committee Date Z RS
London Borough of Hillingdon

100019283 2009 NorthPage 272 | November 2009} T+ [ ILINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group

Address 20 CHESTNUT AVENUE NORTHWOOD
Development: Installation of 1 internally illuminated fascia sign (Retrospective Application)

LBH Ref Nos: 3401/ADV/2009/61

Date Plans Received:  03/09/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 16/09/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 273



A
85‘,?\',“3)'?@‘:‘* 0 OS Sitemap®

& @ a
P w ]
= 14 9
(4] P=) g
i) =) &
3 =l 2
190514m L” 3 T i 7 190514m
£l £y Iy B
/" ] ¢
! {7 Allot G
/ £
190500m s 190500m
190400m 190400m
|2
/]
= o
5
& 1
I
11
i
i
I
11
]
R 1 AR
il
i
iy 1
I
i
¥
1
L.
190314m AT 190314m
w o P
= (=] in
o] [Ta] 3
= o o
(%)) b= @
[=2] o o
= 3 g
Produced 14.08.2009 from the Ordnance Survey National 20 Chestnut Avenue

Geographic Database and incorporating surveyed revision
available at this date. ® Crown Copyright 2008.

Reproduction in whale or part is prohibited without the Metres
prior permission of Ordnarnce Survey. 0 20 40
= Northwood

Ordnance Survey, the OS Symbol and OS Sitemap are :
registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the national Scale 1:1250
mapping agency of Great Britain.

: Supplied by: National Map Centre HAG 1HR
The representation of a road, track or path is no Serial number: 00555800
evidence of a right of way. Centre coordinates: 509556 190414
The representation of features as lines is no evidence Further information can be found on the
of a property boundary. 08 Sitemap Information leaflet or the

Ordnance Suguey web sile:
ww.ordnanc&&@@@?ﬂ




C6LLLL BOTID XV 4
NNZ 955 X3553 "HOIFTAVY 'INYT SNOAAYID

CEELLL B9TI0 1AL

ALITY3Id OLNI S¥Y3IAl ONINYNL

SNODIS ANOHLNV NHOf

Jeal jonuos yim sdwe| juassaion) ajiym |00 Jo syueg

uonEUILLNG||

‘Allewalxs aLL0L-8H01 Auagyoelg TRES pue £)|eussiul ajum pajjleweus aaols asesubis

:sinojon
02:1 8|e3s
uoljoas apig ofioe GO |edo WWE Ul pajoeq PUE N0 [Dua)s |sued soe4
‘s195sn6 pue Buioesg [BUISIUI Yiim 218|dWoo WNIUIWNE WWE Wwol) s|gued 308} S|QBAOLISI YIIM WNIUIWNIE WWZ wouy asesubls
is|ealely
-asesubis papis ajbuis pajeulwn||| ou}
Lo
N
(q\}
” a VA ©
: 3
sdwe| m
| JUBISRIONY g a
3
W
w
anfuoe jedo 050 _ m.
dn pasoeq wuwg 3
||
|eued aoey
LWNIUILINJE Pap|o) WLLE
W gL
wuw poLe
; Bupmeap Bujuueld - poom £
0zl oleds  :3TV0S 6002/60/20 :31va PARE TR PR paiiiiicl els
Pt Uonthmseg 2 ON O/M Bumepm'N ‘A8 NMYHQa mmwcﬂ._h <J

A3d 18ZEELIEV 'ON OMA



E6LLLE BOTLD XV 4 REELLL BHEL0 1AL ALITY3Id OLNI S¥Y3IAl ONINYNL

NNZ 955 X3553 "HOIFTAVY 'INYT SNOAAYID w Z .U _ w \/ 7_ O _n_ ._. Z < 7_ _|_ O ﬂ

0S:1 9]E9S UO|JEAD]D BPIS aseoubis pap|s a|bu)s pajeujwn||| ouL 0S:} 3|E9S UOIIEAS|a JUOI4

100}y 0} ubjs Jo ap|SIAPUN WO WW SRS

Page 276

K2

ssoull} v

Bupmeap Bujuueld - poomyuoN 3118

051 9jedg 3VIS 6002/60/20 :31va

paufieg uondussag e M ‘ON O/M mE:N}:.Z A9 NMyda mmo:#_h <J

A3d 18ZEELIEV "ON OMQA




. El Sub Sta

N

Pine Tree

Lodge ~. ~

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

20 Chestnut Avenue
Northwood

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

it/

Planning Application Ref: Scale
3401/ADV/2009/61 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 277| November 2009

LONDON




Report of the Director of Planning & Community Services Group

Address 21 HILLSIDE ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Single storey front infill extension and loft conversion, involving conversion of
garage to habitable use.

LBH Ref Nos: 19722/APP/2009/1861

Date Plans Received:  25/08/2009 Date(s) of Amendmenti(s): 12/10/0009
Date Application Valid: 28/08/2009 25/08/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 278



¥ 1007d

UOISIBAUOD JJOT1 8
Lioisuayx3 juoly Asiojg ajbuig

Adl 9WH XSPRIN

suD|d 8J! ‘PooMULION
% Uonoo0] pooY SPSI 12 OlanLs SNINNY1d
0oLl 40/80/81 pIYPOQ SIA B I IVANLOALIHOY
(0SZ1:1) NV 1d NOILYDO1
N Yo iy wg
Wbukdos s Buwep By 9 $00.44 SNO|JDA
B U0 SUDISUBAD __m HIBUD O JORDELUOD
dued o) z___u B WD) _0_§

o=
aoues
pPBpJD0g 850|3
ubiy o08L Bix3
S5040
[-1=1V1- 73
WUl Wioyd
ubiy 00z B4x3
yb iy Wz
nuseL)

Page 279




200/1d

0oLl 60/80/81L

UOISIBAUOD JJOT1 8
Lioisuayx3 juoiy Asiojg ajbuig

AdLOVH PRI
"POOMULION
SUDId Butispa POy 8PIIH 12

PIYPOQ SIA B I

Oldn1s ONINNVd
TVINLOALHOIY

Wbukdos s Buweip By 9
BYS UO SUTISUBALAD (18 ¥28LD O JORERUOD

P 18 48 PO 8] O SRaqy
Auo sasoding Busue)d 205 Buweip IR W) S(ESS

unid JOC|d {54

£038

JONNOT

[JeEL]

upDid JOO|{ PUNCIS

m

— _w_ ONINIO

NIHOLA

HLVE

Za3a

FOVHYD

Page 280




v #00/1d

sub|d pasodold

UOISIBAUOD JJOT1 8
Lioisuayx3 juoiy Asiojg ajbuig

Adl 9%H XsppRIN
'DOOMUHON

pooy opisiiH 12 Olanls ©NINNY1d
0oLl 40/80/81 DIYPOQ SIA B I IVANLOALIHOY
UDId JOOI IS
€038
+a3a

Wbukdos s Buweip By 9

B IO SUDSUBLAD 118 ¥D8L 0] JORERUOD

P 18 48 PO 8] O SRaqy
Auo sasoding Busue)d 205 Buweip IR W) S(ESS

La3g

upid JOO|{ PUNCIS

—

[ 1
v
39NNO1
Hive

NIHILM

€3a38

Adnis

HIMOHS

Page 281




£00/1d

0oLl 60/80/81L

suolDAS|3 Bulsix3

UOISIBAUOD JJOT1 8
Lioisuayx3 juoly Asiojg ajbuig

Ad L 9VH XSPRIN
‘DOOMULION
pocy 2pisiiH L2

Biypod sIN B IN

OIdNLS ONINNV1d
TVINLOALHOIY

Wbukdos s Buweip By 9
BYS UO SUDISUBUAD 118 284D O JOROBRUOD

P 118 40 P 4 G S
Auo sasoding Busue)d 205 Buweip IR W) S(ESS

uoyoAS|3 AUl

uoupAs(g epis

UOHDABIT 0By

I

UORDAS(T Ul

Page 282




Y|  co0/d

UOISIBAUOD JJO7 8
Lioisuayxg Juoi4 Asioyg aibulg

Adl FH XSPRIN

uoyoes pascdold

CHEE
S652

LOBS

CLTE

Cil

UOUDAS|F ISy

N

'DOOMULION
RUCHEWSE Resodold pROY 8PISIIH 1Z Olanis ©SNINNV1d
00L:L 40/80/81 DIYPOQ SIA B I IVINLOIALHOHY
uoyoAe|3 8pis
XNT3A
o1%3
uoyoAS|3 8PS
XM13A XM13A XN13A

Wbukdos = Buwesp sy o
BYS U0 SUHSUBUAR IIE ¥38LD ) JORERUOD

Y 118 40 RO 8] 0} SR
A sasodind Buuueid o) Buwiip su woy) aes

UoyoAa|3 1uol4

—

ONNH_3711 38 0L
SHITHD HIWHOD

SH000 %
SMOONIM DAdN

OLX3 HILYN OL JA0EY
HI0T8 QIWIANTY HLIM
MHOMMDIHE 38 OL STT¥M

I3wvd 3015 % SH00O 318N0A JAdN

—

:

O,

I

] (1]

1

D1X3 HILYW
0L S3TL 4004

Page 283




Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

21 Hillside Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &

Northwood Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Scale ¢

Planning Application Ref:

19722/APP/2009/1861 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
NorthPage 284 | November 2009

Ey

HHILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 315 WEST END ROAD RUISLIP

Development: Provision of 1.9m high close boarded timber fencing along the Masson
Avenue and West End Road boundaries, with new access gates and visibility
splays Masson Avenue ( Part Retrospective application).

LBH Ref Nos: 61905/APP/2008/3233

Date Plans Received: 13/11/2008 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 13/11/2008
Date Application Valid: 13/11/2008 23/09/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 285



[ [ TalaTalalels] s ‘Buuuoig Jo4 pasoioig XD vVH, XPPIN

SO SUOIDAY| sup “dysin =
LOL/TS - N3M - 90/50 APASIY."R SLO, VO ‘P00Y DU 1SN BiE 0350d08d SV - NOILYA313 1SIM
st | (pAUID}@S g ©} Buidouds puo S58JpPY BYUS ey
(£V) 00SZ/1 °002/1 "0v) D5ELA 00U e | M08 HsOMAPOQ J0D Bsn Byx3) %Ua3 JeaI] U ieM Aiopunog *3 - OLYE 55083 GUIL FESGEET R WET WeN - WADEL ln_
040 g ‘ ke st R “SNUBNIN “N “JI = T L e [ .
%0 40 iog Gk oy iy Buwosg ey = — =
e o b 204 ¥ [ 0b69€0 01620 900 "¥EVEES 56810 19 - HHy 68N "weduaq ‘oue] ysnahlioH " aujstes, - wlfseq M1 = A =

BOD00. SUOHTAN3 OMG ADRONBL 10 AN D
Panowas usom 03
U W' 10 198 B3u8) DIOGA DEGK) ABUUIL G0 AN O
onss| Buuuoig B0 AoN 3
g soj pasinas ubay 83083 60 1085 |

BeEn 16N - 910D IO | woNo301 - GEIB

e WGy - 95U FAO0A §E0P BOW - WEOTE
¥S¥ 18700 N 4 5

+ poon
SININN200 LNYATTIN B0 paEn 10K - Jj0 BOROR 53109 Bunshy —————————————
T NOILONNPNGD NI Ov3X 38 OL SI ONIMMA SHL Z

& WIWONI L 0L ATILwiaanm #\ ﬁl oaRL wediesd

0318043y 38 0L SIOWVSIICID ANV INLEVLS HHOM
01 HOidg 3LIS NO_034w3A 3 0L SNOISNINQ 1M
E SIHLINNIA M SNOISNING T L

01e 1 sio3g

e e = = ]
30N34 MIN 40 TWL3a Q30yvINI I

__—picogiaassy pevsss ssowiy _

3

3 fw : S3)ON |DJBUBY
¢
.whww. Y,

weol

,uazubxg

=i

//
o

o
T 3
‘
£
B i
o i
H |
&

Wb Wl - 93a3 pon #EOD JRAUAL -

A a ! PR S e B |
\ _ m i i Sy
/ A | " o wa 220y By (2
515w 10 1590 yim sj0s ol | bumegaweiny | "
LR A K /_ | " sq——4-—---L |
(m] o e R ! Y ,-u:o.
| g : "
x | a
2 _ ~ ol
£7 M | £
- s . % I
Lty i g - _ B O
“BRavEL ZI0IIS o a L | 5 o0
osel 1w 3 H L £ w i & N
H H . E3 | # "
il 4 ! s T P _ f o
5 SR ir : NYd 3LIS ¥9 S ! i =
s P | |
21 — B Ppp—— Il
7 | L < o
3 s P
@ o i vy SR EY
/ fo _H_“

Bungiog ssuwoisnd H

Buayes poa e
e Bty et
T LT ey T

WO'Z « I - Hiem Asopunoq wiowyoum @ sequsl Buisiy

s100 sudfith U4

F—a11s suy

—O0—0p—— g

H - 9303} 1500 911300 punjauad 1o

—

s By

rn—u—c—n—

o
o— o —o—ao—o—

Q3S0d0¥d SY - NOILYA3T3 | HLYON _

“BUASUB J Pa00q 9501 Jequal WE1 mON - GOWOL WEH WO %ON - SA9D waN - 6258 “Foumie 99 01 B3uB) QUL IO WOUG BURET - OLZEt

€909 40 8Pk 3t wy'Z /
Bost wy /

A%0 B w| oW 9 o3uay yns o)

3us) puo SeiEh 930pRN ey 90 [om S30pay

Mmmm\me




Glebe Farm

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

315 West End Road

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
61905/APP/2008/3233 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 287 | November 2009

a’

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 80 HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Change of use from Class A1 Retail to Gaming Arcade (Sui Generis) (Dual
planning application with ref.3862/APP/2009/653.)

LBH Ref Nos: 34237/APP/2009/652

Date Plans Received:  31/03/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 31/03/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 288



4_ 100-08-IN-8Y IV
“asy oM Bupmnig | ezg)

60/£0/Z1 o Www uj suoisuaLg
- | (0s21ih)
ouosa 5 o0 dYIN NOILYDOT

QNNO¥Y 035040¥d ¥ OINILSIXI — NOJ somp

dnsinyg

13341S HOH 08 ous Sadyal

Q17 S3YINID ONINVD VHOOV Jusin W Lol vIYY

3SN 40 IONVHO

oo—.om omov cN o ON
6 - 6

08-Inyd-8v
N aor /ey

5091 12m

o PLORIUGPADIICHRqR: How-o e woazLg!
800£1Z 0S8L0 190N
BOSYYS ¥0I10 9L

nre sHN
usidasnupoN
BNUBAY POOMSUBBND i -
ubiseg eiqy 4O NOLLYTVLSNI ¥ INTNIUINIOUM £L8

.—= 404 OGNSV LIS 38 0L 34008
—uu= “QIAVIASIO ATVIT0 38 OL

“uojssjuued usyum Joud jnouym pod

£
=
P
2
€
N
4
V
nz«uﬂﬁ:ﬁ%ﬂﬂ:ﬂ. A8
a i 3SYHOUNY IAY 50009 A
suBlseq eiav. 1o Asedosd oul 51 SumbIp Sl 40 AYIdSIa 3AWH OL SMOTNIM TIV \
ONLLSIG SY NIVWZ 0L INOYS dOHS
IVAQUddY d04 @
V\
m

R . "SIION WaaNT

wioq uoudymsen “aoy
& 3NS5 TYNIDID v

W

2 €8

o Wz /gl

¥i8

wog4 /gl

NV1d HOOT14 ANNOYD d3S0d0Odd

‘
wosp /gt

soueAu3 1eaus ybIH

{0s:1L 3T¥0S) S3MLIN
[ | I I | | | | [TLTILITEY |
oL 6 8 L 9 S 14 € z I 0
NY1d 40074 ANNOYD ONILSIX3

souenu3 18NS YBIH

Page 289




§ Ruislip

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH

_ OF HILLINGDON
Site boundary 80 High Street Planning &

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with RUISIIp Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents . L : ot/

Act 1988 (the Act). Planning Application Ref: Scale /

Unless the Act provides a relevant 34237/APP/2009/652 1:1 ,250 2

exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Planning Committee Date 4 R

London Borough of Hillingdon

100019283 2009 NorthPage 290 | November 2009| +FI[LL.INGDON

LONDON




Report of the Corporate Director of Planning & Community Services

Address 70 HIGH STREET RUISLIP

Development: Change of use from Gaming Arcade (Sui Generis) to Class A1 Retail (Dual
planning application with ref.34237/APP/2009/652.)

LBH Ref Nos: 3862/APP/2009/653

Date Plans Received:  31/03/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 31/03/2009

North Planning Committee - 19th November 2009
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 291



(0sz1:1)

v _ £00-0L-Iny-av 84
“any ioN Bupmoug | emg
QU\MD\1N s ww uj suojsuawig lqz ZO_P(OOI—
ig L)
..8_ peRseyg ®10g umoig SSHIN
NY1d ¥0014 f + t t + Aretmtrrer
QONNOYY Q3S0d0¥d ¥ ONILSIXI — N0 oy € 00l 0g 09 oF 0z o oz £
4Nsiny M =
13381S HOIH 0L s @ o
2 2
QU7 SUINID ONIAYD YHOOY . = o6 €6
0L-IN¥-8Y wosZ /gl 4 woaz/g1
“TRo0riz 058.0 aon
B00S1Z 05BL n
By 2§26 YUY
g 3SN 40 IONVHO clg | c/8
===== UBiee0 sl A
SIVINALYW
> NISI0-110V. sraie
HO4 AUSIBOL
sl T e EEIL 3N
subiseq eiqy jo Apedosd ey 5| Bumoup siyj .
IVAQdddY d04
:esodsnd ene
»400 uoydioseq avy
§0/50/vZ 30551 9w v .\
= "
vi8 N " b8
L N¥1d 40014 ANNOYD d3S0d0ud wos /gt woap gt
‘e £1:86 26 =
= T p— = == & &
f e} —
4\ o DN
2 2 Al
(o)
Al
(0]
(@)}
/ ©
win ey Ly / DI
== 1
N¥1d HOO0T4 ANNOYD DNILSIXT
= p I T
| - S ]
_ z
s
&l Ll [l
-] a3ueD eweg Jnpy
|
l Jonog
soes -
| — ki
_ el 1]
| nen




kY
kY
+
+
+
s

'

-

, Rosedene

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

70 High Street

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning &
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref: Scale
3862/APP/2009/653 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 293 November 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

4

TN
T™ILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 294



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 6 October (attached) & 27 October 2009 (to follow)
	6 Royal Quay, Coppemill Lock, Park Lane, Harefield - 43159/APP/2009/711
	7 Yeading Brook between Torcross Road & Whity Road, Ruislip - 66331/APP/2009/1968
	8 Land rear of 114, 116 & 118 Abbotsbury Gardens, Eastcote - 66232/APP/2009/1711
	9 Land at rear and froming part of 63, 65 and 67 Lowlands Road, Eastcote - 56032/APP/2009/967
	10 33 Parkfield Road, Ickenham - 40891/APP/2009/1338
	11 126-128 High Street, Ruislip - 3874/APP/2009/1837
	12 290 West End Road, Ruislip - 45677/APP/2009/1971
	13 20 Chestnut Avenue, Northwood - 3401/ADV/2009/61
	14 21 Hillside Road, Northwood - 19722/APP/2009/1861
	15 315 West End Road, Ruislip - 61905/APP/2008/3233
	16 80 High Street, Ruislip - 34237/APP/2009/652
	17 70 High Street, Ruislip - 3862/APP/2009/653
	Plans for North Planning Committee

